Unified
for success

ASL

=

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BESRrmEBERAA"

(Incorporated in Bermuda with Limited Liability)
(REREZEEIMRLZERAE)

Stock Code F&IAMSRE : 771

INHERITANCE OF THE SPIRIT

A LEGACY OF PERSEVERANCE
#ONMEME BEARS

hailand | Singapore Malaysia
BRFED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F#&
Hong Kong | Mainland China | United States ‘ Europe ‘ Taiwan | Macau ‘ T
B R E A it EEd BRI 8 e EEi] N

* For identification purpose only

FEMRHR



7



Inheritance of the Spirit
A Legacy of Perseverance

#AXHHE > BEFR

2023 marked the 50th anniversary of Automated Systems Holdings Limited. From its inception as a
small-scale systems integrator, the Group has now become a leading IT professional services integrator
in the region.

This year's annual report theme, “Inheritance of the Spirit, A Legacy of Perseverance,” embodies our
rich history, commitment to innovation and excellence. As the year drew to a close in 2023, we proudly
unveiled a new brand and business strategy, presenting a fresh tagline of the Group - Unified for
Success.

The sleek illustrations — unified graphics — featured on the report's cover and pages, derived from
our logo's letter “A” exudes a strong sense of unity. Its upward silhouette symbolizes a progressive
momentum, reflecting our drive towards a prosperous future. Furthermore, carefully crafted icons
convey our focused approach to specific sectors and our expansion plans in the Greater Bay Area.

As we embark on the next fifty years, our group is committed to becoming a Unified Technology
Services (UTS) leader, bringing success to enterprises by building a bridge connecting innovative
technology to their business environment.
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Corporate

Profile

X

Automated Systems Holdings Limited (“ASL" or the
“Group”) was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited in 1997 (Stock Code: 771). The Group's
three main DevSecOps businesses are innovative
solutions, intelligent cybersecurity, and integrated
managed services. The Innovative Solutions business
is offering holistic business solutions to accelerate
customers’ digital transformation. Intelligent
Cybersecurity business is specialized in digital asset
protection & risks prevention. Integrated Managed
Services business is to manage clients' IT infrastructure
to cloud platform in the entire IT lifecycle with its
world-class, end-to-end and industry-specific services.

The Group’s primary business operations are located
in Hong Kong and Macau, with a presence extending
to the Asia Pacific, Europe and the U.S. With ASL's 8
offshore delivery excellence centers and 7 service
centers in Asia Pacific, over a thousand of high-caliber
experts, the Group is a professional and trustworthy
unified technology services partner.
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Unified for Success!

mal o E > HEIRK

Our Purpose

EMER

We'll build a bridge
connecting innovative
technology to

your business
environment.

ERERBR - FIA
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Our Vision
EMrFES

A unified digital world,
with technology that
makes life better

and creates value for
people, organizations
and society.

BR—(E#FERE
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HEREEE -

Our Mission
EMpyfEdm

Become the Unified
Technology Services
leader bringing
success to multiple
sectors worldwide.
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Our Core Values

BB OMERE

Our core values
define us, driving our
actions and shaping a
culture of excellence
and innovation.
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Unified Technology Services - UTS
AR & % AR 75 (UTS)

Proven in various industry sectors, our UTS empowers and accelerates an organization’s digital transformation by applying
the DevSecOps model to deliver ongoing digital value and achieve unified goals

BAMUTSTERETEBRZERE > BB ADevSecOpsR A SR MIFEN S BELBRAFNER > WM
BRIEIER B R

Tech unifying, consulting and business
planning, opportunity scoping, solutions
development, data management,

and artificial intelligence ("Al")
implementation/ cloud strategy
IAMTREE ~ SBAFEFRE  BieTd
PSSR ZE ~ BUREE > DUR A TSRS
FEFR/RIRERIE

Risk evaluation, cloud security, data
center security, threat prevention,
device management, and threat
intelligence

RgaHE ~ BEZ2 -~ SRR LRE - BE
Fhag ~ SREEIE > WRIEREBHE

Technology
Services

& R RS

Ongoing systems optimization, Al
operation, ITSM management, managed
services, integration services, and
opportunity monitoring

FHENRFEE - ATERESE  TSME
2 EERT - SRR 0 MRS ERE

Reasons to Believe 118912 H
Unified teamwork EFx1%[E

Our cohesive unified team with multiple skillsets and rich
industry know-how, build a bridge connecting innovative
technology to your business environment.

RAEE—RNEBESSENREREENTEN
# o ENERATRBR > MARMRE  BREGER
MRS R o

Unified resources EiEE&

We support our customers' business strategy, needs and
development by integrating resources across different
regions.

RMERBRETRAMENBE R ZRIEFRE &
KRR ©

Unified technology Rt & 1%

We empower your integrated digital journey with one-
stop coverage, sector-focused and converged cutting-
edge technologies.

BARE—ENART > BEARERL R SRIHR
% MEECRIGREBBE IR ©

Unified goals & B1Z

We create value for all our stakeholders with trust,
experience and technologies, and chart a better
digitalized future together.

RPLUEE - BREEMAFRAFNHERGEE  #
FRBBRFHIBBFERR o



Group Performance Overview

EEFEAHE

Revenue of the Group's core business (namely in Hong Kong and n EEZOER ENEBREMDAME > 275) WAE 2,360.4 B
other Asia Pacific regions) recorded HK$ 2,360.4 million, up 6.5%

compared to last year

B#T BEAFEHEE 6.5% (del 1 space before %)

The Group's gross profit was HK$ 246.0 million a EEFRNENA 246.0 BEETT

Adjusted EBITDA of the Group's core business (g) SELXFAIRE EBITOA 845 111.0 R

recorded HK$ 111.9 million

The Group recorded a profit for the year of HK$ 131.3 million, J £EFRinf% 131.3 BRAT > KEF 101.6 BRATER

an increase of 29.3% compared to HK$ 101.6 million last year.
The increase was primarily attributed to the increase in gains from

interest in an ass

ociate for non-recurring items
as compared to last year

29.3% - ZERTERHNIFERBREZHEARNRaBREFER

)

Group Consolidated Financial Result EE{F S MHFEEE

(HK$ million B&#7T)

Revenue Profit for The Year
B A 1 FREF
A 6.5% HK$2,360.4 A 29.3% HK$131.3
(2022 : HK$2,215.5) (2022 : HK$101.6)
\. . J
Basic Earnings Per Share Final Dividend
— SREARRF - - KREARR S —
(HK Cents #1ll) (HK Cents 781Ll)
15.75 3.0
(2022 1 12.19) (2022 : 3.0)
\ J \ J

Core Business &y 275

(HK$ million H&#7T)

Orders §TE - System Integrat

Other Businesses A#fi &Rl R E 75
W 1.1% HK$1,252.0

(2022 : HK$1,266.2)

Adjusted EBITDA *
#ZA%E EBITDA *

W 12.6% HK$111.9

(2022 : HK$128.1)

ion &

Order TE - Unified Technology
Services R EEHZIRES

A 7.6% HK$1,244.4

(2022 : HK$1,156.5)

Adjusted Net Profit *

KRR

W 4.5% HK$79.9

(2022 : HK$83.7)

Revenue

LON

A 6.5% HK$2,360.4
(2022 : HK$2,215.5)

Adjusted Operating Cash Flow *

ARCERERE *

W 12.2% HK$60.7
(2022 : HK$69.1)

Interest in Associates & Non-Operating Items B{& A F) 1 R IFEEI1EH

(o Operaing tems 2 43%

(HK$ million H&#7T)

Adjusted (Costs) / Incomes

Related to Corporate & Others *

EAREE R
EAhIE B HERE () / WA *

HK$(8.0)
(2022 : HK$16.0)

HK$(1.7)
(2022 : HK$(62.2))

HK$61.1
(2022 : HK$64.1)

2=

Please turn to the last page of the section to read notes. B ZIILZ T2 B BARRHTE ©




m DevSecOps Core Business Highlights
DevSecOps #ZUEFEE,
Innovative Solutions Business BIFf{TEMRSRER
Application Development FEFAF2FRI2 - Enhance Customer Experience with Innovative Applications (Dev) #| &I FE A2 IRA & B REER
Win Cases
Increase in orders for application development and IT outsourcing services

Recorded new high volume of orders for application maintenance

In terms of sector performance, the Group supported government initiatives such as smart city
development, for example, participating in the implementation of the “/AM Smart” platform

Key Developments

Continuing to focus in specific departments, resulting in significant achievements through the year
aES]

FERETRIE « BRARHRIMNIBRTFSETEIE M

FERETVEERE] B BRI S

TERRAE > FERSRERNHERSETERE > fli 1 2ETIESEITFENER
EHIEH

EREMPFIERS > RERNER T BEIRR

Intelligent Cybersecurity Services Business S RE4Q4 B 2 IRFE X
Cybersecurity 4848 %2 - Protect Your Assets with Intelligent Security Technology (Sec) BRE St Z 2 X i RELCHNEE
Win Cases

Further expanded the security business in the Greater Bay Area by leveraging the expertise of Security
Operation Center (SOC?) in Macau

Received orders for DevSec and |oT security solutions from large-scale enterprises

In terms of sector performance, the Group received significant orders from government and financial
sectors

Key Developments
Strengthened collaboration with Chinese brands
Established the third SOC at the Bay Area headquarters, enhancing information and network security
capabilities
eS|
BIERPINEEENZ M EDL SOCBBFERS » E— P HE T NERERZEER
BAREEERE DevSecR B MY B EZ i\@#ﬁ%ﬁxﬁl\]ﬂﬁ
TERRL > AERBHA © SREEERDITE
BEHIER
BRIET HPERIEMN S
REEAEFREZE=ESOC  IEABMMERZ 2 THELE

Integrated Managed Services Business Zf}i% & L EIRARTS £ 75
Omni-channel Managed Services 2REEIERRF - Simplify Your IT Operations to Increase Efficiency (Ops) L&Y IT EBLUR S M=
Win Cases

Received numerous projects in ITSM, DevSecOps, and managed services

Successfully renewed managed service contracts for several banks and clients in other industries, and
expanding business into the education sector

Secured a DevSecOps managed service order from a financial institution, providing comprehensive
service desk and application managed service

Key Developments
Continuously strengthened teamwork capabilities
anESL]
BRER/DITSM ~ DevSecOps REEBRHENER
MINAZRIBTREMITESZRESEERF SN > WEREEHFEHARPE
BB —REREIBRIDevSecOps EIRRFFTE » RELAMNRFB & ENRAIEFEERY
BAIER
R CE X7 (FRE




Received wider customer

st T &1tDevSecOpsiRF Rt EiRBENARTS
Developed hybrid cloud services, Enhanced one-stop managed services platform functionality
recognition
ES T EZNERED]

Enhanced Platform-driven DevSecOps Services, Provided Cloud-

native Solutions “as-a-Service”
BREER > TE it EERRFBTESINE
Significant increase in orders

BRI

STERREIEM

Successfully penetrated into

Continuous Services Optimization
FHEERIEART
Introduced Ops-as-a-Service’s New Product
L OpsENARTE 2 M E an
MARKETPLACE T
Powered by SOLUTION CENTER e
o a] o

the Government sector market

PRINiE BB T 5

ASL services

FOR MORE INFORMATION, PLEASE VISIT lEL y
WS TRES, HUHE s
Chinese Website English Website
L e TS
Managed Services Portal Launch
¥ EIRAR S S
Enhanced customer experience by connecting with
4 ASL IRFS > LUEEE R RSER




Implemented Sector-focus Strategy and Actively Expanded Footprint
in the Greater Bay Area

BERTREMRE BBHRXKEE

Enhanced Capabilities in Sectors which have Competitive Edges

MR BBITRNTHISRMEEN

Adjusted business operation models, integrated delivery resources and technical capabilities
based on the development characteristics of the information technology in sectors, to provide
better services to sector clients

ABEFBRN > WRETENENREREE » BN ERMEMES - HMATERRE
HBERD

Partnered with Leading Global Financial Technology Provider

BIHEKERTRBKMERD

FINASTRA

Enhanced training for tech talent and marketing Promoted ASL DevSecOps service capabilities

promotion in the finance industry and professional knowledge in the finance

TS E R IS8 SRR AR A A 153 industry
#EEEESREIIDevSecOpsiRFEEE D
GIEE A

Actively Expanded Fo

\ "\SL =
A : - Established headquarters in the Greater Bay Area in
SL!Emlim‘ August 2023

Expanded the technical team to enhance offshore delivery

ERRsy

ASL GREATER BAY ng. el

AND VI Lo PATES O, ey capabilities
' \ TEC=FN\ARKEBERIER
TRt ASEE ?m’%ﬁ&l_ S BES
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m ASL Solution Day 2023
ASL E:R75%EH 2023

Announced the Group’s New Brand Identity, Business Strategy and Strengths

EfTEENENRETER « BERBNRED

Leveraged our integrated service capabilities to demonstrate our unified solutions
MERRBENB/IZD > MHERTEMANBERREE
Introduced a new Cl system and business strategy

L ATRYCIBE R AN 2 B ERER

“ASL Solution Day 2023" was a content-rich event featuring
9 keynote speeches, 6 breakout tracks' presentation, and 18
exhibition booths, bringing a vibrant ambiance.

TASLEBRT5 22 H2023) RBEE > BRENBSIERS HRER
R \BRAL > HEIFREE -

A new corporate video introduced the Group's new market
positioning (Unified Technology Services = UTS) and sector-focused
services.

TEFRREBRNBER 2T HIBENM(Unified Technology
Services — UTS) » MUK T A RBIARTS ©

Symbolized the company’s transition towards a sector-focused integrated services partner
SEARERAUITERRBEMNGS RIBEMMBHNEE

Technology
Services

A& R AR TS

EHEEEARFE Operations &3



m Business Performance of Associates
FtE AT EFRRIA

An Associate with business in Europe and the U.S. EREHEAF

Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“GDH")

(HK$ million, USD/HKD exchange rate of 7.81 is used for conversion BE#TT » US1ETR7.81BTHRE)

Revenue Non-GAAP EBITDA Non-GAAP Net Income
KA JEiEFA & 540 EBITDA JEiEA g st 2R

A 0.8% HK$2,444.4 W 24.0% HK$345.6 W 31.5% HK$195.9

Business Developments ERER

Expanded client base by 33 companies, broadened delivery WINT = =S Em s BAT HIDKE ~ ENEMEATNR

locations in Poland, India, and Mexico, and reinforced sales
and research and development organizations

GDH's proficiency in artificial intelligence and other technical
competencies were recognized by hyperscalers

Numerous new clients embraced Al into their solutions

I3RS » 1E5R T SN E AN S A A

GDHBY A T2 C e DM BT B BEIR B T B AR R R 2R AYER
Bl

TOMEREMMNBRASERRBT ATER

One of the Major Associates in Asia Pacific -
DBRFEREATZ— -

i-Sprint Holdings Limited (“i-Sprint”)

Revenue

WA

A 11.4% HK$128.5

EBITDA

A 19.9% HK$29.5

(HK$ million, SGD/HKD exchange rate of 5.92 is used for conversion BEHTT » WS 1HINETRS. 928 TTIRE)

Profit
gl

A 2,316.3% HK$8.3

Business Developments

Successfully renewed contracts with multiple long-standing
clients

Products continue to receive industry recognition and
numerous awards

EBRR
INERZRERP

ERFEESERTIRSEREA



Outlook
e

Our strategic focus is directed towards advancing industry-
driven, high-value professional IT services. We prioritize the
following pivotal areas:

o Application and Integration of Innovative Technologies

o Sector-focus Approach: Leveraging our expertise and
understanding of clients’ business environments, we focus
on industries where we have a competitive edge

o Emphasis on Application Scenarios: Strengthening our
capability in technical integration and implementation to
enhance the value of our IT professional services

0 Regional Expansion and Coverage: Extending our business
operations beyond Hong Kong to widen our geographical
reach

Continuously enhancing our partner ecosystem, pursuing a
dual-line development with our suppliers from Mainland China
and the rest of the world, particularly focused on expediting
the establishment of Chinese brand ecosystems to effectively
meet market demands

Closely monitor the opportunities for the Group outlined in the
HKSAR Government's “Hong Kong Innovation and Technology
Development Blueprint” in promoting the development of
the digital economy, building a smart Hong Kong, and other
related measures, and continue to align with the Government's
initiatives

ERMELTOESHE > EEHLUTEREANSEETEEN
BHR R -

0 RUIRTRAMTAIFEFREAEERY

o MUTERBR ABFFNBHERE  UBEESTERRE
BmES - HHRERRABIER

o LUERBRAIE > MBEAirEmEsEses] » LE—%
RATEXERFHEE

o GEREMAEEES  REBLEHREREFBUIN

FEBCBHLERE  ETREAKEINIRHESRERE > 155
BRSO RTEREERRENLATERE

BUREEERITHERA SRR ERER S
FEEER  BERESEDBSHENEAER S  WFERS
BB 1%

Strive to be a leading Unified Technology Services Partner
in the region

NN A EAERNVRHESEHRIREHBH

Unified
Technology

Unified
Resources
BRES

RERH

Unified
Teamwork

Bt (e

Unified
Goals

HmBER

Unified
for success

Bl S 1F > HEIREK



Adjusted EBITDA: Adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation,
and Amortisation (“Adjusted EBITDA") is calculated based on profit for the year
excluding interest income and expenses, tax, depreciation and amortisation, fair
value change on investment properties, equity-settled share-based payments
expense, government grants, share of results of associates, gain on disposal of
interest in an associate, net gain on deemed disposal of partial interest in an
associate and remeasurement of employee benefit obligation.

Adjusted Net Profit: Adjusted Net Profit is calculated based on Adjusted EBITDA
adding back depreciation and amortisation and income tax expense and tax
adjustments from the remeasurement of employee benefit obligation and gain on
disposal of the partial interest in an associate.

Adjusted Operating Cash Flow: Operating cash flow of core business is
calculated based on net cash from operating activities of the Group excluding
tax refund in relation to disposal of the partial interest in an associate and
government grants.

Adjusted (Costs)/Incomes Related to Corporate & Others: Mainly represent
the fair value change on investment properties, equity-settled share-based
payments expense, government grants, tax adjustments from the gain on
disposal of the partial interest in an associate, finance costs and income and tax
adjustments from the remeasurement of employee benefit obligation.

System Integration & Other Businesses: Being the business of information
technology in supplying of information technology and associated products
carried out by the Group, and Professional Service carried out by subsidiaries,
other than Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited.

Unified Technology Service: Being the business of information technology
in providing systems integration, software and consulting services, engineering
support for products and solutions and managed services carried out by a
subsidiary, Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited.

*: The information is not a measure required by or presented in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"). The use of this non-HKFRS measure has limitations
as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation from, or as a substitute for
analysis of, our results or operations or financial condition as reported under HKFRS.

I" : 0
{ZAEEEBITDA © KHAERER  ITEREHEFFE
78 (T BEEEBITDAL) TH E R FE P s A H0 B FI B W
ARKBS s RIE S ITEREE BREYXEZZ ARE
BEs) - BRABRENURNDAERI AR - B
e s [EEBE A B XS s HEMES A ATHTY
W@ s RIEHEBMES AN Rz FR G RES
BN EEENETE o

BAREEN . CARGMNZEBHERCHE
EBITDAMNEIRE K #iH ~ FTSMER « BEEGHNE
AEMAEZRNBABRRHERESQNFABORRZ
RFSHE o

REKERERE  ROEF ZKERSRET
BERAERKEEFRE RS WA FRNRED
EBERRNOREAEM IR RR O RBFHEE

BRBREEREMBEBARMEE) WA TES
ERREMEZ ARBELED - BRENLURNDA
BERF - BUTME) - REBRE AR Mo TR
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STRZMBHEE o
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AR EARESEVBREER(SBYHREER)
MERSHERMIFREESBUBREEL 2T - CAZFE
BUBRSENFBEADMIAFERRIE M BT
FERAR st BRABINRMRES BMBREEFMER
REERTHR R IR ERET AR DT ARMERSK B
MOERTIA -



Quality Policy of ASL
SEIES RS

Customer Service Excellence with Sustainability

WNOAFEERE  WEREBETFPRS
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Note: This annual report was prepared in both Chinese and English
versions. Where there is discrepancy between the Chinese and

English versions, the English version shall prevail.
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Quality Policy of ASL
HERHKBETKE

As a professional and trustworthy unified technology services partner, we
strive to bring success across multiple sectors worldwide. With unified teamwork,
technology and resources, we endeavor to accelerate digital transformation by
applying DevSecOps model and remain steadfast to our core value “TRUST", so as
to deliver ongoing digital value and achieve unified goals.

“T" - Transform

Transform in view of new ways of working. New capabilities and advanced
technologies are the way forward in the dynamic business environment. We
believe technologies and agile working methods create opportunities and enable
us to tackle challenges and change.

“R" - Respect

Respect is at the heart of our interactions. We recognize and value differences
among individuals, their roles, and responsibilities. We promote cooperation,
understanding the impact of our actions on others, and building strong and
successful relationships in the workplace.

“U” - Unity

Collaboration and teamwork are essential for us. We foster a culture that values
trust, respect, and collaboration. We appreciate diverse viewpoints, share
experiences, and contribute knowledge, acknowledging that the collective effort of
our talented team leads to greater achievements.

“S" - Sustainability

Embracing accountability and conducting business responsibly are our guiding
principles. We endeavor to provide advanced technology services to drive
long-term success, foster career growth, and build a comprehensive partner
ecosystem, all while creating a sustainable future for businesses, society, and the
environment.

“T" = Top-notch

Excellence is our standard. We are driven by a commitment to deliver high-quality
work. Our focus is on doing things right the first time, striving for excellence in
every endeavor. With a continuous improvement mindset, we constantly seek to
refine our processes and elevate our performance.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited and Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited
BHRAEEARARREMNAEXFEERRARAR

& cMMIDEV /5"

Capability Maturity Model Integration for Development (CMMI)
Version 2.0 without SAM -Maturity Level 5 -DEV
Software Development and Support Service Organization
R RRRE A

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
HENRH(EFE)ERAS

R

EAZETENRERERBZA > HOATER
BEKER  BEZETETIRESEHESE - &’
EEBEBRE  BRENENERES > RMHER
DevSecOps 2! » BITiZ/ 0ME[E — M54 > BUm
REUEL > FEATRHREIGCEE > WEIR
HEBEE -

REMIERAUBREE - THEBEN
EHIRED > RABBEERRAENTEN
MR EE R o HMIMEE > KRS EE
WIFRATRIERS » ERMENEESR
TRk HEEE -

SERBERPNROESR - WIVRBPLE
MABAZENER - FENABBMEE -
HMEBERSE S RETRHEMANE
& AR ERKREILF BRI AR

BENERSFRERESZ - RMNELE—E
BEREE  SENHBAIENE o HFIE
METTERE > DERR > FEED > BER
MEBEFEGUR BN IR U REE

FEEEINEEESERMEEEENS
#t o RABMIIRMBSLHIRE - BRE
ERRENEBRINRESERE  BU2E
REEBHLERE > HEE  HENIREA
BB R FHEERRIRK o
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BRIUBHMAVEREEL - RPEREH
BIIFRIR o TEIF—REIN > F—REL
BATRBRSH o BEFREIUERIEM
BPIFEEERIZ » f'FRER o

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
R ERRERAT

IS0 9001 : 2015

Certificate No.: CC 1505
Service Delivery
BR# AT

Annual Report 2023 £k

1SO 9001 : 2015
Certificate No.: CC 5337
Sales Operation Division

SHEEEIEED

ISO/IEC 20000-1:2018
Certificate No.: CC5406
IT Service Center
Security Operation Center
HRBRARE L
HERZ2EEDL

»_SGS

ISO/IEC 27001:2013
Certificate No.: HK12/00068
Security Operation Center

ERZ2EEPL

1SO 9001 : 2015

Certificate No.: CC 3268
Service Delivery
BRES3AT



Customer Service Excellence with Sustainability

ROAFBERE > WEEBEERRE

The Group aims to create long-term value for shareholders, customers,
employees, and the wider community. In 2023, our unwavering commitment
to sustainability paves the way for the customer service excellence. Back by the
tremendous trust from our stakeholders, we look forward to guiding our business
through the next fifty years and beyond.

AEBHRHARE -FEF - BEINHSRIERAE
B E_B=F > BMBELE » KEJHESR
B AsdlnNERRBITT 7ER - BEREFN
EMREGEE > MBI ERER ERERAE+F
ThEF BN SHIRIE o

To commemorate ASL's 50th anniversary, employees from ASL's Hong Kong

headquarters and overseas offices (Photo left) joined forces to create a painting that
embodies the Group’s new core value = TRUST. This artwork was exhibited at the ASL

Solutions Day 2023 (Photo right)

AEVEIRARLE AT > BHRRDBRHNEIMIZENETEFEET 18
(@A) BRAEESMWNZOEE - TRUST > ZIBERASLERASEH2023 BT (E
a)

The senior management of the Group
raised a toast with our employees during
the ASL 50th Anniversary Grand Dinner

FEESREBAETBEHRFATEF
BRERES THEENTE

Canngcompany
T

Team Heads participated in the “Leading
Change with Confidence” training and to honour our Graduate Trainees
actively engaged in the discussion sessions

throughout the trainee program

Organized a Graduation Ceremony

and acknowledged their performance

For the 13th consecutive years, ASL has
been awarded the “Caring Company”

in recognition of our commitment in
corporate social responsibility

BEEEE BEBRE ELEF 1 ST -BEEAR LEBRMANEEX BPRREET=ZFREBFARMEIR
Al > WAEHR %Eﬂ%ﬁ% REN BEE > UBEMMAEEEAEITHNRE 1B 2RMABRTERCESERNEE

Sponsored the “CoolThink@JC
Competition” for the fourth consecutive
year to promote information technology in
the education sector

EEFNFER 28N\ 2LEHEBEL
B MEsHEARKRHE

Hosted an outdoor kick-off activity

participate in team building games

which employees gathered together to

ST —IBRINENES > EETIER
—E > XE2EBENERERER

The Offshore Delivery Excellence Center in
Cheungsha, Mainland China, organized a
highly productive team-building meeting

U FRE ARV EINE I 04E
BT —HIBENNNEREREE
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WANG Weihang (Chairman)
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ZHANG Bingxia

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
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PAN Xinrong
DENG Jianxin
OR Siu Ching Rerina

AUDIT COMMITTEE

DENG Jianxin (Chairman)
PAN Xinrong
OR Siu Ching Rerina

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

PAN Xinrong (Chairman)
DENG Jianxin
OR Siu Ching Rerina
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PAN Xinrong
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Financial Calendar
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RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

¥£§/'\ﬂ:

08/2023 03/2024

INTERIM ANNUAL

(for the six months ended 30th June 2023) (for the year ended 31st December 2023)
23rd August 2023 27th March 2024

FREA FE
EBEZZEZ=FA=1+HLXEAR) (BE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HILEE)
—E=%)\B=+=H —E-mE=A=++tH
DIVIDEND

R

06/2024

Proposed final dividend
(3.0 HK cents per share)
26th June 2024

BEREARS
(43,0 L)
—E-mEAA=+AE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
HiEmE{iBs BT

05/2024 06/2024

24th May 2024 to 29th May 2024 6th June 2024 to 12th June 2024
TERTNFRRAAHHWNHECZ_MERAT+NHA CECNERAAREHEZZ_MFARA+H

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
RRBFARE

0572024

29th May 2024
“EERA-+AH
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Financial Summary

M54 2

RESULTS
FAR
For the year ended 31st December
BE+—_A=+—HLLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—$C-= T THE IZT-H  ZITHE I
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET TR FHBx FET
From continuing and REFERE
discontinued operations RiRIH SRR
Revenue LON 2,360,425 2,215,486 2,049,620 2,155,459 2,828,773
Profit before income tax PSR AT A 148,914 119,386 29,909 1,143,206 139,381
Income tax expense PSRRI (17,595) (17,801) (25,777) (287,064) (39,073)
Profit for the year FEREF 131,319 101,585 4,132 856,142 100,308
(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable  JEHERR I FE(S
to non-controlling interests FR(E18),wF - - - (156) 7,032
Profit for the year attributable to ENGT) 2 SSTEPN
equity holders of the Company FEMLF Py T 131,319 101,585 4132 856,298 93,276

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BERAR

At 31st December

®W+=ZB=+—H

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—E== T FE R CTITHE ThF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi#x FET FHET FET FHET

Total assets HBE 3,110,894 3,032,283 2,886,677 3,247,997 2,798,592

Total liabilities FEA=Ei 933,578 972,464 896,352 1,054,204 1,345,810
Equity attributable to equity RABIRAEFEA

holders of the Company e 2 2,177,316 2,059,819 1,990,325 2,193,793 1,405,272

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BEIRATEBBRAT



Chairman’s Statement

EE®RS

2023 is a remarkable year as the Group celebrated
its 50th anniversary milestone. The Group opened
our headquarters in the Greater Bay Area, expanded
our talent pool and enhanced offshore delivery

capabilities.

Additionally, the Group unveiled new

brand image and strategies.

—_ECCEAXEBERLE+AFEZERR
o BAANAE  RABEFRMEES > L

/%E

T 4EE

ALfS A

é#ﬁnuﬂﬂﬁ%ﬂ]%ﬂﬁ ©

Mr. WANG Weihang
Chairman
FlMmckE
FFE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present to the
shareholders the annual report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “ASL" or the “Group”).

In 2023, Hong Kong were confronted with the challenges such as market
contraction, economic downturn pressures and talent exodus. Despite this,
the Group capitalized on the business opportunities brought about by the
post-pandemic recovery, with the business recording a stable performance.
The Group's total revenue in 2023 increased by 6.5% to HK$2,360.4 million.
The Group recorded a profit for the year attributable to the Company's equity
holders of HK$131.3 million, representing an increase of 29.3% over last year's
HK$101.6 million. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase in gains
from interest in an associate for non-recurring items as compared to last year.
The Group's financial position remained healthy, with cash and time deposits of
approximately HK$539.6 million in total. The Board has resolved to recommend
the payment of a final dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share.

Annual Report 2023 £k
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The orders newly secured by the Group in Hong Kong and other Asia Pacific
regions showed moderate growth over last year. In the era of cloud computing,
the Group's three core businesses-Innovative Solutions (Application Development,
Dev), Intelligent Cybersecurity Services (Cybersecurity, Sec) and Integrated
Managed Services (Omni-channel Managed Services, Ops) ~ all achieved growth in
its service revenue when compared with last year, demonstrating the effectiveness
of the Group's efforts to increase the service proportion. In 2023, the Group
adhered to the industry-oriented approach, which resulted in a number of
successful orders, including large-scale projects, in various focused industries,
underscoring the Group's ability to deliver DevSecOps services throughout the IT
lifecycle of its customers.

2023 is a remarkable year as the Group celebrates its 50th anniversary
milestone. To commemorate the Company's 50th anniversary, we organized a
series of internal and external anniversary celebrations. These events provided
an opportunity for us to share the joyous occasion with our employees and
customers. Alongside the celebrations, we also made significant progress in
various business areas. In particular, the Group accelerated regional footprint
in alignment with national policies and closely followed the pace of our
customers' development in the Greater Bay Area. In August 2023, we opened
our headquarters in the Greater Bay Area, expanded our talent pool and
enhanced offshore delivery capabilities. Meanwhile, we opened a third Security
Operation Center (SOC) at our Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area
headquarters. In terms of DevSecOps core business projects, we continued to
secure the projects of assisting the Hong Kong SAR government in developing the
"Digital Bay Area”, and is glad to record the consulting and professional services of
the Group's Security Operation Center (SOC?) in Macau gaining popularity among
customers. Furthermore, we successfully provided managed services for our
clients’ service centers in the Greater Bay Area.

Regarding our positioning as a unified technology services partner, we remain
committed to innovation and change, and further strengthened our platform-
driven services. In particular, we achieved breakthroughs with the Unified
Operation Center (UOCQ), a hybrid cloud platform, penetrating into the government
sector. In addition, the "ASL Marketplace”, a platform that showcases our cloud-
native and one-stop DevSecOps capabilities, launched a new “as-a-Service”
product to meet the digital transformation needs of our customers.

Chairman'’s Statement

ERES

AERNEBRAEMTS A 2 HBTEREER
BMEE AEFERA > AEEBNZ=ZEBERZLE
¥ - BIETTERR S R (EREFREApplication
Development > Dev) ~ BaMEBRL 2R (HBiEZ2
Cybersecurity » Sec) MIE MR K EMEIERRH (2R
EEEIRFEOmNIi-channel Managed Services » Ops)
ZIRBWAILEEFRGIZE  BERERBBREA
RIFEEBINAI c ZEZ=6F > AEBUTERZE
#Em > AT LEEMERITERINERT L]
B, HRGEAYNER  REEEBRFETER T
A EAFTSE AIDevSecOpsARFSAES] ©

T EARERRLATEE RIZR AE
MARBRIETBE  BAERHT —RIEAK
WINNBFEFELZE  HETINER—RNZES
RUER > BMTELEXEBEIINEREEN
BE Bt REBMNEEHLHE > BIRES
BEXREEK BHEEENAERERNT K - BT
TZ_=FN\A EfEXE nnEQI?%‘E.‘IK BARAA
B RABEEZMESN - AR REFREEET
HRE=EEALE2EEFD (Security Operation
Center » SOQ) ° fEDevSecOpstz O EFBER AT °
TMEREZERHTESRBNER #FE&EIMW
HE » AERELZLBAORPINAKENZZREF
D (SOC?) BEREXERBEZTERMNEL © Lo » K
FITRRIhAREAREURAE@IRB R OREE
BRFS °

HHEAERBSNMERRRBBEHENENM >
PRFEAIFKRE > BENABRTFAEHRE > B
RREEFEGEEESRD (Unified Operation
Center - UOC) B85 > M TBUN™IH > M
BRTEREFM—uEI DevSecOps SESRITASL
Marketplace] Bin4R &4 L F &R T 2MBED
REER > MERFEBEENEE o
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Chairman'’s Statement

EFRERS

During the year, the Group consolidated its industry-focus development, adjusted
its business model to strengthen the ability to achieve breakthroughs in the
market, and integrated resources and technologies, aiming to better serve clients
in related industries. Furthermore, in 2023, we strengthened our collaboration
with a leading global financial technology provider, Finastra, and secured orders.

The Group continued to optimize our partner ecosystem by actively introducing
Chinese brands from Mainland China, and achieved the dual-line development
with our suppliers from Mainland China and the rest of the world. In the past year,
we received the “Service Partner of the Year Award 2023" granted by Huawei and
numerous other awards from our business partners, demonstrating our ability
to provide diversified services and industry-oriented and high-value DevSecOps
professional IT services.

According to Form 10-K for the year ended 31st December 2023 of Grid Dynamics
Holdings, Inc. ("GDH", NASDAQ ticker symbol: GDYN), an associate with business in
Europe and the U.S,, published on the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
website, GDH's annual total revenue in 2023 increased from US$310.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,425.4 million) in 2022 to US$312.9 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,444.4 million), up by 0.8%. Non-GAAP EBITDA
in 2023 was US$44.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$345.6 million),
compared to US$58.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$454.7 million) in
2022.

i-Sprint Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively “i-Sprint”), one of the
major associates in Asia Pacific, recorded a stable business performance during
the year, with its revenue and EBITDA reaching approximately HK$128.5 million
and approximately HK$29.5 million respectively. i-Sprint experienced significant
growth in new customers and successfully renewed contracts with multiple
existing clients.

At the end of 2023, we held our flagship event = “ASL Solution Day 2023", at
which we unveiled new brand image and strategies, reaffirming our commitment
to becoming our customers’ unified technology services partner. Since its
launch, we have received positive feedbacks from our employees, customers
and partners. Moving forward, by upholding the concept of unified technology,
unified resources, unified teamwork and unified goals, we will work hand in hand
with various stakeholders to build a brighter future. Together, we are Unified for
Success!
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Chairman'’s Statement

ERES

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our appreciation to our valued HTABRREZTRSRAZENEL « EFEBH
customers, business partners, and shareholders for their support to the Group ~ERERERHEREBNTE - BB KAZEBR
during the year. Finally, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all the ~ EEREHIBHRFHFERZIFRURLHE ©
directors for their dedicated service and support.

Wang Weihang E34
Chairman EHEM
Hong Kong, 27th March 2024 B/E > _E_ME=F_"+tH
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

THESSBRS

The Group will focus on promoting sector-focused and
high-value professional IT services. As we embark on
the trajectory of the next fifty years, the Group seeks
to become a leading Unified Technology Services (UTS)
Partner in the region.

FEEREMEHUITEATRANSEEZIEEANKR
BoABAT_BERE+EZR > EEERIBRAEREL
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Mr. WANG Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

BEXE
Tj—ﬁ/'lu\j&'

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Results

For the year ended 31st December 2023, total revenue of the Group was
HK$2,360.4 million, representing a 6.5% increase from the last year, in which
product sales was increased by 8.2% to HK$1,179.7 million and service revenue
was increased by 5.0% to HK$1,180.7 million. In addition, product sales and
service revenue contributed 50.0% and 50.0% to total revenue respectively,
compared to 49.2% and 50.8% respectively of last year.

For the year ended 31st December 2023, commercial and public sector sales
contributed 42.4% and 57.6% to total revenue respectively, compared to 37.8%
and 62.2% respectively of last year.

Gross profit for the year ended 31st December 2023 was HK$246.0 million, a
decrease of HK$11.6 million or 4.5% compared to last year, factoring out the
government grants for wage subsidies, the decreases were mainly attributable to
the increased staff costs in project delivery.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a profit for the year attributable
to the Company's equity holders of HK$131.3 million, an increase of 29.3%
compared to last year of HK$101.6 million. The increase was primarily attributable
to the increase in gains from interest in an associate for non-recurring items as
compared to last year.

For the year ended 31st December 2023, orders newly secured by the Group’s
amounted to approximately HK$2,496.4 million. As at 31st December 2023, the
Group's order book balance was approximately HK$1,508.6 million. The Group's
bank balances and cash and time deposits in total stood at approximately
HK$539.6 million with a working capital ratio of 1.92:1. The Group maintained a
healthy financial position. As at 31st December 2023, the outstanding borrowings
amounted to HK$11.3 million.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

Adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, and Amortisation
("Adjusted EBITDA") for the year ended 31st December 2023 was HK$111.9
million, a decrease of 12.6% compared to last year. The “Adjusted EBITDA"
excludes certain items that are non- cash or non-recurring in nature. It is a non-
HKFRS financial measures used by the Company's management to evaluate the
operating performance and trends of the Group's core business, to make strategic
decisions regarding the allocation of capital and investments. “Adjusted EBITDA" is
not a measure required by or presented in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The use of it has limitations as an analytical tool,
and should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for analysis of,
our results or operations or financial condition as reported under HKFRS.

The reconciliations from “Profit for the year” to “Adjusted EBITDA" the year ended
31st December 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

THARERS

AEBBEE_TE_ZF+A=+—HIEFEZ
RRBEREMR TERBHAA BSE (KA
EBITDAN A111.0B & BT » BREFRI12.6% o T
FHEEBITDAIANBIEETIHRENIFERMEZIE
B TAAARESEBERMTEAERZLERE
BRERSE  WEEREANERRESHBMSE
REZIFEBUBRELERE o EKFEEBITDA)
WIEARIBEES B EREER ((SEMHREER)
BHENER ML FRIESEHMBEREENZY - £
AL EFEEEMBREENFA AP IAEE
BIRY > BRASTEFERGAB LN AEERES
BYBREEAMEFHEB R BRI ER
ERI AR DA REERM BN RHNER -

BEE_=HRE-__H#+"B=+—HIF
EZTERER ) BIMESAREEBITDA I HERINT ¢

Year ended 31st December

#E+"_A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—$-= TEICHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHET
Profit for the year - HKFRS measure FRiaEf - EBMBRELENHE 131,319 101,585
Interest expenses FMELZH 2,563 3,545
Interest income FEWA (10,736) (398)
Income tax expenses FriSMB 17,595 17,801
Profit before interest and tax bR SRR AIFIE 140,741 122,533
Adjustments for non-cash items: JEREAE 2R
Depreciation and amortisation Hree s 25,521 24,672
Equity-settled share-based payments expense UM ARRS ML 1 53
Share of results of associates = YNCIE S 1,685 62,196
Fair value loss on investment properties KREMEZ ANEBESE 1,200 2,300
Adjustments for non-recurring items: JEERIEEZRE
Gain on disposal of interest in an associate HEBE AR R 2 W (668) =
Net gain on deemed disposal of partial interest in RIEREBESRAB O 2 F W
an associate (60,394) (64,063)
Remeasurement of employee benefit obligations BENst2EEREMNER 3,839 =
Government grants BT #EED = (19,607)
Adjusted EBITDA - Non-HKFRS measure #Z:REEEBITDA -
FERMBREEANHE 111,935 128,084
Core Business Review FEEFERE

During the year, our performance remained steady. The Group recorded orders
newly secured and revenue of HK$2,496.4 million and HK$2,360.4 million,
representing an increase of 3.0% and 6.5% respectively. Adjusted EBITDA and
adjusted net profit reached HK$111.9 million, and HK$79.9 million respectively.
The Group's three businesses, namely DevSecOps, showed stable growth in
service revenue compared to last year.

FR o AFERRFRE - ZEEMRTE - AD
R$2182,496 AE B BITTR 236048 BB » BEF
DA R3.0%56.5% © EFBEEBITDARAEH R T
PRSI IBBETRTIOEB AT - EE =
EDevSecOps¥HB 2 RBUA R EFALL - 2151
BE e
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

THARERS

Innovative Solutions Business

(Application Development - Enhance customer experience with innovative
applications; Dev)

Innovative Solutions Business saw an increase in service orders newly secured
as compared to last year. The increase was mainly attributable to higher orders
amount for application development and the provision of IT outsourcing services.
During the year, its service revenue recorded HK$497.0 million.

For sector performance, the Group delivered outstanding results particularly in the
government and healthcare sectors. Benefiting from the government's continuous
investment in information technology, even in the post-pandemic era, the Group
captured growth in the government sector. During the year, the Group actively
supported the government's initiative in implementing digital transformation and
contributed to the Smart City development. For example, the Group participated
in the implementation of the “IAM Smart (%8 /5 18)". Furthermore, orders for
application maintenance hit a record high, whilst cloud service and maintenance
renewal business showed steady growth. The Group’s continuous penetration in
specific organizations have yielded excellent results during the year.

Intelligent Cybersecurity Services Business

(Cybersecurity — Protect your assets with intelligent security technology; Sec)

In regard of the Intelligent Cybersecurity Services business, the service orders
newly secured recorded a double-digit growth as compared to last year.
During the year, service revenue amounted to HK$196.5 million. The main
business growth was due to the ongoing demand from cybersecurity, banking
and education customers for security operation center. The consulting and
professional services of the Group's Security Operation Center (SOC?) in Macau
gained popularity among customers, further expanding our cybersecurity
business in the Greater Bay Area. Furthermore, the Group received orders for
DevSec and loT security solutions from large enterprises.

For sector performance, the Group showed remarkable performance in the
government sector and finance industry. Furthermore, during the year, the Group
not only strengthened collaborations with Chinese brands, but also opened a third
Security Operation Center (SOC) at its Greater Bay Area headquarters. Continuous
investment of resources was made to enhance information and cybersecurity
protection capabilities in order to support the Group's unigue unified technology
services.

Integrated Managed Services Business

(Omni-channel Managed Services — Simplify your IT operations to increase
efficiency; Ops)

During the year, service orders newly secured in the Integrated Managed Services
Business presented growth compared to last year. Despite a decrease in orders
related to the pandemic, the service revenue recorded HK$437.2 million, fueled
by market demand for ITSM projects, DevSecOps and managed services.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

For sector performance, the Group utilized its unique DevSecOps managed
services maturity model and through automation technology and process
management, successfully renewed its managed service contracts with multiple
banks and other industries clients. We also expanded our reach to clientele in the
education sector. In particular, we effectively met the demand of an institution
from the banking, finance, securities and insurance industries for managed service
at its service center located in the Greater Bay Area. Furthermore, we successfully
secured a DevSecOps managed service order from a financial institution for
providing comprehensive service desk support and application managed services.
During the year, the Group continued to strengthen teamwork capabilities.

Enhancement of Platform-Driven DevSecOps Services and
the Provision of Cloud-native “as-a-Service”

For new businesses, the Group actively develops hybrid cloud services and
continuously improves the capabilities of its service platform. As a result of
such efforts, our platform-driven services have gained wider recognition from
its customers, especially with a significant increase in orders for the Unified
Operation Center (UOC), a hybrid cloud platform. We have successfully penetrated
into the government sector and secured our first UOC order. In addition, the
"ASL Marketplace”, a cloud-native platform launched a new as-a-Service product,
showcasing cloud- native and one-stop DevSecOps capabilities.

Implementing Sector-Focus Strategies and Actively
Expanding Footprint in the Greater Bay Area

The Group is actively fostering its presence in the Greater Bay Area through
enhancing its technology services and conducting customer demand analysis. In
2023, the Group collaborated with a leading global financial technology provider,
Finastra to enhance training for tech talent and marketing promotion in the
finance industry, securing multiple orders. During the year, the Group expanded
our talent pool and accelerated regional footprint. In August 2023, we opened
our headquarters in the Greater Bay Area, expanded our technical team, and
enhanced offshore delivery capabilities.

Furthermore, the Group has also undertaken adjustments to its business
operation model, aiming to strengthen its ability to make strategic breakthrough
in key sectors. We also integrated delivery resources and technical capabilities
based on the characteristics of information technology development in different
sectors, aiming to better serve clients in these sectors.

“ASL Solution Day”

In 2023, the Group celebrated its 50th anniversary and hosted a series of activities
to honoring the past and forging a bright future. At the flagship event - “ASL
Solution Day 2023", we not only introduced new Cl system and business strategies
but also showcased our integrated solutions by focusing on our integrated service
capability, rather than simply promoting individual products. This event symbolizes
the Group's transformation from providing integrated hardware, software and
technical services towards becoming a comprehensive service integration supplier
driven by sector demands.
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Business of Associates

Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (“GDH", NASDAQ ticker symbol: GDYN), an associate
with business in Europe and the U.S,, is adept in navigating uncertainties. In
2023, GDH added 33 enterprise customers, scaled its delivery locations across
Poland, India, and Mexico, enhanced its sales and research and development
organizations with greater industry expertise, especially in supply-chain,
manufacturing, financial services, and pharmaceutical. GDH were recognized by
hyperscalers such as Google, Amazon, and Microsoft for its artificial intelligence
("Al") capabilities and other technical skills. Besides, Al is now infused across all of
its industry practices, with many new customers embracing Al in their solutions.

According to Form 10-K for the year ended 31st December 2023 of GDH
published on the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission website, GDH's
annual total revenue in 2023 increased from US$310.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,425.4 million) in 2022 to US$312.9 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,444.4 million), up by 0.8%. Non-GAAP EBITDA was US$44.2
million (equivalent to approximately HK$345.6 million), compared to US$58.2
million (equivalent to approximately HK$454.7 million) in 2022. GDH continues to
diversify its industry structure.

i-Sprint Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively “i-Sprint”), one of the
major associates in Asia Pacific, recorded a stable business performance during
the year, with its revenue and EBITDA reaching approximately HK$128.5 million
and approximately HK$29.5 million respectively. i-Sprint experienced significant
growth in new customers and successfully renewed contracts with multiple
existing clients. i-Sprint's products has been recognized for industry excellence
continuously and received numerous awards.

Outlook and Prospects

In 2023, Hong Kong faced market contraction and economic downturn,
particularly in the commercial market. The government also reduced spending
in public healthcare to a certain extent, which created dual pressures for us.
Additionally, the talent shortage in Hong Kong presents a challenge to our human
resources management. Nevertheless, the Group has expanded its talent pool in
the Greater Bay Area, actively draw talent in suitable locations as well as explored
business opportunities in the Asia Pacific region.

The Group will focus on the following four areas in the future development, aiming
to promote sector-focused and high-value professional IT services: (1) application
and integration of innovative technologies; (2) capitalising on our strengths in
customer application through our deep understanding of customers' business
environments in specific sectors, with a special focus on developing sectors
where we have an advantage, including the government and banking sectors;
(3) strengthening the capability to integrate and implement technology based
on application scenarios, so as to further enhance the value of IT professional
services; and (4) regional expansion and coverage ability, extending our business
operations beyond Hong Kong.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

In terms of partnership, we will continue to optimize our partner ecosystem,
pursue the dual-line development with of our suppliers from Mainland China and
the rest of the world, particularly accelerating the establishment of a Chinese
brand ecosystem to meet market demands. In addition, the Group will closely
monitor the opportunities presented by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region for the “Hong Kong Innovation and Technology
Development Blueprint” and other measures aimed at driving the development
of digital economy and transforming Hong Kong into a smart city. We will also
continue to align with the government's initiatives to ensure that citizens can
enjoy the convenience brought about by technological advancement, while also
contributing new momentum to the economic development, and facilitate Hong
Kong to more effectively align with the overall national development.

2023 is a remarkable year as the Group celebrates its 50th anniversary milestone.
Inheritance of the Spirit, A Legacy of Perseverance. As we embark on the trajectory
of the next fifty years, the Group seeks to become a leading Unified Technology
Services (UTS) Partner in the region. We will work hand in hand with various
stakeholders, including customers, partners, employees and investors to build a
brighter future. Together, we are Unified for Success!

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st December 2023, the Group's total assets of HK$3,110.9 million were
financed by current liabilities of HK$757.4 million, non-current liabilities of
HK$176.2 million and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$2,177.3 million. The Group had a working capital ratio of approximately 1.92:1.

As at 31st December 2023, the Group had an aggregate composite banking
facility from banks of approximately HK$226.6 million (2022: HK$301.5 million).
The Group had pledged land and buildings in an aggregate amount of HK$156.0
million (2022: HK$159.6 million) and investment properties with a carrying amount
of HK$50.8 million (2022: HK$52.0 million) to secure the Group's bank borrowings.
The performance bonds issued by the Group to customers as security of
contracts were approximately HK$126.8 million (2022: HK$112.2 million) as at
31st December 2023. The Group's gearing ratio (bank borrowings over equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company) was 0.5% as at 31st December
2023 (2022: 2.7%).

Material Acquisition and Disposal

During the year ended 31st December 2023, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had other material acquisition or disposal.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated resources
and credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available for the Group
include trust receipt loans, clean import loans, overdrafts and term loans. The
interest rates of most of them are fixed by reference to the respective countries'
Interbank Offer Rate. The bank deposits are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars ("HKD") and United States dollars (“USD"). The bank borrowings are
denominated in HKD.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and USD. Foreign
exchange exposure to USD of the Group will continue to be minimal as long as
the policy of The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to
link HKD to USD remains in effect. There was no material exposure to fluctuations
in exchange rates and therefore no related hedging financial instrument was
applied during the year ended 31st December 2023 (2022: same).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2023, performance bonds of approximately HK$126.8
million (2022: HK$112.2 million) had been issued by the bank on behalf of the
Group to customers as security of contracts.

Capital Commitments

As at 31st December 2023, the Group had contracted capital commitment in
respect of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$0.4 million (2022:
HK$1.4 million).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2023, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 31.0% and 12.5%,
respectively, of the Group's total revenue. The five largest suppliers and single
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 40.6% and 16.1%,
respectively, of the Group's purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2023 did a Director, their close
associate or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of the Company's issued shares) has
an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December 2023, the Group, excluding its associates, employed 1,495
permanent and contract staff (2022: 1,474) in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan,
Macau and Thailand. The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, working experience and the prevailing market conditions. Bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include mandatory
provident fund, insurance, medical coverage and share option scheme.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
2024 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on
Wednesday, 29th May 2024. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Friday, 24th May 2024 to Wednesday, 29th May 2024, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 23rd May 2024.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The record date for entitlement to
the proposed final dividend is Wednesday, 12th June 2024. For determining the
entitlement of the final dividend, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Thursday, 6th June 2024 to Wednesday, 12th June 2024, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company's branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 5th June 2024. The final
dividend warrants are expected to be despatched to the qualifying shareholders
of the Company on Wednesday, 26th June 2024.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2023, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

As at the date of this annual report, the Directors are not aware of any significant
events related to the business or financial performance of the Group after
reporting period.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, risk management
and internal control systems and financial reporting matters including the review
of the audited annual results.

By Order of the Board

Wang Yueou
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27th March 2024
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Activity Highlights
mHIER

2023 was a remarkable year as the Group celebrated its 50th anniversary
milestone. Inheritance of the Spirit, A Legacy of Perseverance. Looking back, ASL
has transformed from a small-scale systems integrator to becoming a leading IT
professional services integrator in Hong Kong, driven by a continuous pursuit of
innovative technologies, ultimately expanding its business horizons to various
areas. To commemorate the company’'s 50th anniversary, we organized a
series of anniversary celebrations, and unveiling a brand-new corporate image
and strategy. As we embark on the next fifty years, our group is committed to
becoming a leading Unified Technology Services (UTS) Partner within the region,
allowing us to walk hand in hand with stakeholders such as our customers,
business partners, employees, investors to build a brighter future. Together, we
are Unified for Success!
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ASL 50th Anniversary Grand Dinner
HBRAREHEFREERE

ASL commemorated its 50th Anniversary with a grand dinner, attended by over 1,000 colleagues from offices around the region.
Leon Wang, Executive Director and CEO of ASL, highlighted the company’s accomplishments, honored long-service employees, and
introduced the new core values = TRUST. The event also featured the premiere of the 50th anniversary video, titled “Inheritance of the
Spirit, A Legacy of Perseverance”, featuring congratulatory words from our Group Chairman, Wang Weihang.
EHRASEN T L TASRERE  REBIB1, 0002 KRB NEMERNFEHRE - ASSLATESFETERA T EBERNB T RAFH
Bsh 0 RET REBRBNEL > UNBTHNZOEBE—EF ZEDHEBETER HAEE > BEATE WA TEFLSIRE
Hp g5 7T AEBTFEEEMAINE ©

ASL Solution Day 2023
ASLiZR7TEE 2023

Flagship event of ASL's 50th anniversary celebration - “ASL Solution Day 2023" concluded successfully on 17 Nov 2023. Themed with
“Unified for Success, 50 Years and Beyond”, it attracted over 600 IT professionals and senior executives from Greater Bay Area and
received enthusiastic response. During the event, Leon Wang, Executive Director and CEO of ASL, delivered an opening speech,
unveiling the Group's new branding strategy and future business directions.

EHAGETBFEERNEREE — TASLBASER2023)R_2_=F+—B+tHERER - KITEBU ERNEE « HAIEK
R~ BEATFRBIERR #EE > R TRERNBEHOOZHITEEALRSHREEASSE » RENZ - FHHE > BBRSR
HTESBTHBHTEBRRRET » NEEAEREHmEBEARREST TR -

Annual Report 2023 £k



Activity Highlights
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Opening of the Greater Bay Area Headquarters

KEERIFHAR
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ASL GREATER BAY AREA ML, 3“-.:9, e —
AND VIP LUNGHEON '

In September 2023, ASL celebrated the grand opening of its Bay Area Headquarters in Guangzhou in success. The opening ceremony
provided a platform for customers, partners, and staff to learn about ASL's commitment to serving customers in the Greater Bay Area
and its strength in China's IT brand ecosystem.
TET=FNAR > BEBRFRMERMNER T KNEEELHEEH - HEHREETP AR AELTREDRARTANEETR
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Sector Promotion

TERR

In the second half of 2023, ASL become the sole authorized service provider for Finastra’s Kondor solution in Hong Kong and Macau
and promoted ASL's DevSecOps service capability and professional knowledge in the banking industry.

RITZZ=FT¥F > BBRAGERAEBRME Finastra Kondor BRAFENBERIERREUER  EESHRAAERTEN

DevSecOpsARFSAE /1 R SR ZE R, ©

Launched of Managed Services
Portal and New Product in Ops as a
Service
WHERRBEHEROpsEIRIEZ2H
Efm

To enhance customer experience, ASL
launched the managed services portal,
and a new product under Ops as a
Service has been added to the ASL
Marketplace.

AHILRERRER > BRRRELEER
BHEuE > WA OpsENARFEAY 2 E SN
AASL Marketplace °

Participated HPE Discover More
2023 Hong Kong

281 HPE Discover More 2023 Hong
Kong

2023 Hong Kong" to promote our highly
acclaimed managed services.
BE# &R A2 THPE Discover More 2023
Hong Kongl » #EERME=EEZNER
AR o

ASL joined the "HPE Discover More

Recognized by Red Hat as “Hong
Kong Partner of the Year”

BAET AT EREE SR

ASL received the “Hong Kong Partner
of the Year” award from Red Hat,
showcasing our expertise in leveraging
open-source technology.
HHRGEAEBREEBEESFH
IR > BRI AR EE
FH; o
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RERNFREZEEZESH

CUSTOMER
'R

SCOPE OF WORK
BHEE

A renowned university
—EBRE

Provision of loT Security services

RHEYBEZ 2R

A government department
— BT ERPY

Participation in the implementation of the “iIAM Smart”
ZHETESEITENER

A government department

—BURFEBFY

Provision of a system to manage patient’s information
RHTEEEBEEENRR

A government department
— BT ERPY

Provision of multiple cloud platform’s Unified Operation Center Services
REFAENEFEGESEERLRY

A government-owned bank in Thailand
—REREHERT

Provision of Storage Area Network data migration
REFREERIEEE

A joint venture for building fiber optic networks in
Taiwan
—REBRENERPEREERD

Provision of new storage and 7x24 managed service including data
migration

RUEMMBEFEUR7IEER » BEPEFEERER

A large entertainment company
—RERGE

Provision of the large-scale data migration service
RERBYBBBRE

A public research university in Macau
—PRFIAILIAFEL RS

Provision of NVIDIA DGX H800 GPU Servers with 3-year on-site support
services

2t NVIDIA DGX H800 GPU fRIfR 288 R 3F IR G IR ARTS

A renowned bank
—ERIRIT

Provision of Security Operation Center services
REMtZ2EERLRY

A renowned bank
—ZEZIRT

Provision of a Finastra Kondor treasury solution
$21#t Finastra Kondor BAERR 5 2

A renowned bank
—ERIRTT

Provision of managed services by using IT Service Management process
REFTSITRBEIERE 2 SRR

A renowned international airline
—EBNEEMZE AT

Provision of renewal maintenance service
IRHES M ERRTS

An institution from the banking, finance, securities and
insurance industries

—ZRBIRIT © TR BEMERRENRE

Provision of managed service at its service center located in the Greater Bay
Area
AEARKEBENRB O HEERT

Google, Apple and Macy's
B BERMIEHEE

Provision of digital transformation services
RS HERE

Various government departments

Z{EBTERFT

Actively supported the government's initiative in implementing digital
transformation and contributed to the Smart City development

TR BN A BSOS A > WEE DM m R

Various renowned banks
LEEZRIT

Provision for AccessMatrix software maintenance, implementation and
deployment services

Rt AccessMatrixEr {4 € ~ BHEFIPEIRTS
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

O —

1TES

Mr. WANG Weihang
FHEMAE

Chairman

ZE

Mr. Wang, aged 57, has been the Chairman of the Board of the
Company since May 2019 and a Director of the Company since
September 2009. He has been a director of Grid Dynamics
Holdings, Inc., an associate of the Company which listed on
Nasdagq (ticker symbol: GDYN), since March 2020. Mr. Wang is
currently the chairman of Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Teamsun”), the Company's ultimate holding company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600410.SH) and the
sole director of Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited (“Hong Kong
Teamsun”), the Company's immediate holding company. He is
currently a director of certain subsidiaries of Teamsun. Mr. Wang
was the vice chairman and general manager of the first board
of directors of Teamsun, the vice chairman and president of the
second to fourth board of directors of Teamsun, the chairman
and president of the fifth board of directors of Teamsun, and the
chairman of the sixth board of directors of Teamsun. Mr. Wang
was also the president of the seventh council of Beijing Software
Industry Association. Mr. Wang holds an Executive Master's Degree
in Business Administration from Tsinghua University in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") and a Master's Degree in Semi-Conductor
Materials and Microelectronic Technology from the Information
and Electronic Engineering Department of Zhejiang University
in the PRC. Mr. Wang was awarded as MEEHEEHHTER
(China Software Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur Laureate*) and
FREIERFEZEINE A (China Software Industry Prestige Award
Laureate®) by China Software Industry Association in 2009. He was
also awarded the “Innovation Outstanding Personality of Chinese
Brand Award” in 2011.

FhRE RBERE+TLH BEZE-NWFRAREERRATESEEE
EREZEZNFNAREERRTES - RE-Z_TF=AL
BERAB R METER L (REASEATGDYN)) 2 & AT Grid
Dynamics Holdings, Inc.ZE % o ZRAERARRFN LBHEHFT
5P £ (R R 1 600410.5H) Z RARER AT ILRZER K AR
BROERATI(EBRMNZEER » TARATZERZERA
BEBRURE (FB)BRAB(EBEB RN ZMH—ESF K
RAEBRARETHBARIZES - TAEEREBRAE—EE

SRESRRECE - E_ZENEESGRESRRET - F
HEEREEERFEBUREEERTEESFR - TERETBE
ERRETEREECEEFEER - TAEFAREARKENE
(MPE) BEARBEEZSREEABTASEBR T 20 APEMN
IARPEEREFIRERAME I MEFRELTRMU - THRENRE
BAFEPERETERSEEPRRAEZ L EERRPER
BEEDBAY - BTN 22— FRBETRERIERIFEE A
WEE ] o

*  For identification purpose only

" EHRSF

EFEhEREBAEB{N

Mr. WANG Yueou
TBEB%E

Chief Executive Officer
TGRS

Mr. Wang, aged 49, has been the Chief Executive Officer and an
Executive Director of the Company since September 2016 and
September 2015 respectively. He joined the Group in 2011 and
was the Financial Controller, the Chief Financial Officer and the
Joint Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Wang has been
a director of Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc., an associate of the
Company which listed on Nasdagq (ticker symbol: GDYN), since
March 2020. He is currently a director of certain subsidiaries and
associates (i.e. i-Sprint Holdings Limited and i-Sprint Innovations
Pte Ltd) of the Company. Mr. Wang was a director of Teamsun, the
chief financial officer and a director of Carnation Software Ltd., a
subsidiary of Teamsun, a supervisor of Victorysoft Technology Ltd,
the joint venture company of the Company in the PRC, the chief
financial officer and a board secretary of Guangzhou Headway
Technology Co., Ltd. and the regional finance manager (China) of
Wistron Information Technology & Services Corporation. Mr. Wang
holds a Bachelor's Degree in International Accounting from Jinan
University in the PRC, a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from University of Wales in the United Kingdom and an Executive
Master's Degree in Business Administration from Research Institute
of Tsinghua University in the PRC.

FhE BEN+TARK DB SE—RENLBR_E—AFNIA
HREERATZITBESEPTES - #FR_Z——FNHEAEE

BARNE ZHHBECHE  UBEERBREASWE - ThEE
TR CEE= AREAA AR METER EH (R ZEASEATGDYND)
2 B /A B Grid Dynamics Holdings, INnC. ZEZE o HIFREARA
BETWE A S KREE /AT (BMi-Sprint Holdings Limited&i-Sprint
Innovations Pte Ltd) 2 E%E - FAEBEEB AR ES « EBX
Rz MBATEMNG st EMRHEBRAT 2 MR RES &
AERFEZ EBEATEREBRRERATZES  BINEGER
RERABIZVBEBENESTENE » URBRIRGRHBIRAE
ZHEEHHLIE - TAEFATEEEASEEZERGHE2LT
By BEHBEHASZEE THSEET20 ) UEFEBEEKR
BIREE SREEAETHSIEE T2 -
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBAEEN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
LS

O —

TEE

Ms. ZHANG Bingxia
RRELT

Ms. Zhang, aged 48, has been a Non-executive Director and a
member of the Management Committee of the company since May
2023. She joined Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”),
the Company's ultimate holding company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600410.SH) in December 2016 and
is currently the chief financial officer and senior vice-president of
Teamsun. She served as the chief financial officer of The Purse
Gold (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd.*, (a subsidiary of Guangdong
Homa Group Co., Ltd. listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 002668.57)) (32 BERACR) TR FERAF), the chief financial
officer and the vice president of ShengDaWuXian Group* (B A%
#REE) (Currently known as Huayou Digital Media Technology Co.,
Ltd. ") CER S EERIRERAR), a senior financial manager of
Prosten Technology Holdings Limited (Currently known as China
Brilliant Global Limited, a company listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8026)), a senior
financial supervisor in Sohu.com Limited* (It IEIMEBABAT)
and a principle staff member of Tax Administration Department in
Shanxi Provincial Taiyuan Municipal Bureau of State Taxation of the
People’s Republic of China® (FEILLFEE KETHERRER).

Ms. Zhang has over 20 years of experience in financial
management in internet companies and is familiar with the
financial management of companies listed in the U.S., Hong Kong
and Mainland China. Ms. Zhang has extensive experience in
finance, taxation, investment and capital operating. She obtained
a Dual Bachelor's Degree in Economic (major in accounting and
taxation) at Shanxi College of Finance and Economics (Currently
known as Shanxi University of Finance and Economics), and a
Master's Degree in Economics at Central University of Finance and
Economics.

Rt WEN+N\K > BT =FAARBEEAQBIFNITE
EREEZSEHE - REZE—AF+_AMBRRTN LEE
HRZ 5 £ (BRADSE © 600410.5H) 2 RALER ASIERER K
BB M ARAT (TEBRR) > RBEBRAZERMHER
EAREIEY - WBEHEEROER) BRARAR RIFRIIFESFZ
St AR ERAEBHERNARAT (RS | 002668) 2F
NE) 2 BFEVHE BARGERRBERIBEERRARA
B) 2 BEEREEE  EBMAXSMARATGEM LHAF
RERXZERARAS (RBIAERKRERBIRAR > BRAHMIE
8026) EEBRYHEIE - WRMEMBE R 2SRV BIER
FRELAERRTERNEHZIEEREERS -

RUTNEMMAARER R _ +EMHEEER  ABNERE B
BBEREHZABMBER > W% B REKEXEFS
EECREE o RIFAPE LT QB (RIELFES KAL) HEE
2B ERMBREFRQEIB T B KPP RYEKEEE
ZROBEBPE LRI o

#  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BIFNITES

Mr. PAN Xinrong
BMREREE

Mr. Pan, aged 70, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since September 2015. He is currently
an independent director of Shanghai Bokesoft Information Co.,
Ltd (/BRI EFRPBERAQE). He was an executive director
and the deputy chairman of Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (Stock Code: 934) from 2004 to 2007 and was the
chief executive officer of Petro-Cyberworks Information Technology
Co., Ltd. from 2006 to 2014. Mr. Pan also held financial positions
in various companies, including China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation (“SINOPEC"), China Petrochemical Corporation, China
Eastern United Petrochemical (Group) Company Limited and
SINOPEC Anging Company (formerly known as China Petrochemical
Anging Petrochemical Plate). Mr. Pan graduated from China
Huazhong University of Science and Technology with a profession
in Quantitative Economics. He was awarded the "Outstanding
Management Award” by China Petroleum and Chemical Industries
Integration of Informatization and Industrialization in 2011 and the
First Prize of SINOPEC Technology Advancement in 2014.

BwEE S REL TR B2 —AFNAEZERAERBEIIFN
TEE - HEALEBEHEARNDBRATDBIUES - REN_-F
ENEE"TTLFEEEBMERSAARARERLBTRATFA
EEBERBRAT RMHAIE 3N BERTEERI TFE RN
TEEIREECE-NFERACERMNMEERMARSEREAREEE
FBHITERA - BERETENFBEAREIRGARAR (HFEA
£) ~ FEIARETEBMARAR ~ PERMACEREREER
BIRFBEACZEN AR FEACZEA IR $%
BRI EMHRA c BREEENPRAEFRRIABHELEE
¥ o RN - T——FEPEAAMNETTEMCRSBREMFERE
BE R T -NEEREE PR AR B RATE S 5



INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BIFNITES

Mr. DENG Jianxin
HEMAE

Mr. Deng, aged 59, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since September 2015. He is currently
an executive director of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan Capital Investment
Management Co., Ltd.* (RIITT =T ERKREERFRAH), an
executive director of Shenzhen Zhuoyuan Enterprise Consultants
Co., Ltd* (FRYIT R EEMBARAE) and an independent
director of Eternal Asia Supply Chain Management Ltd., a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002183.52).
Mr. Deng was a supervisor of Shanghai Dobe Cultural & Creative
Industry Development (Group) Co., Ltd., a partner of Beijing JD
Capital Co., Ltd., a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
("Deloitte”), a full-time member of the 7th and 8th Stock Offering
Approval Committee of China Securities Regulatory Commission,
a director of Shandong Bori Bioenergy Co., Ltd., a company listed
on the New Third Board (Stock Code: 871585.0C), the chairman of
Shanghai 4Smart Technology Co., Ltd.* (L/SHEEZEREERA
7)), the chairman of Hangzhou Zhuoyuan Ledao Holding Co., Ltd.*
(N ST 4B PR A IR/AE]), an executive director of Shenzhen
Zhuoyi Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* (RYIH £ lz E1EE
#HBPRAE]) and the chairman of Shanghai Debimai Enterprise
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.” (E8@MNIRTESIELAE R
‘AB)). Mr. Deng was mainly responsible for managing and auditing
the listing of companies as well as the merger and acquisition
services in Deloitte. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting
from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in the PRC and an
Executive Master's Degree in Business Administration from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in the PRC.

BHEL  REATNRK > BZE—HAFNAESEALRTBIUIF
WTES - REARYTETENREEEBRABDNTESE R
NHETEXBERRARNRTEERAREBFIZ LHRER
e B HEERMNBRAR GEHME | 002183) 2 BIUEE -
WREDELBELOXCATEXERER) RNDARLE (FH :
EEBUXEREEXER (ERARARES  IREENR
CEEBERADEBA  BEIFHAEHAEENEBA -~ F
EREsEEEEZE eSS tEAE\EREZETEREZEEEH
Z8 =R ETRBURENENEERRBERLE (RMHA
58 1 871585.00E % « LiBFEBAENKARATDESRE » MINE
THREZERARAFNESRE  RIT R EELABRATHNITE
Eh EBEOREXEELHARADESR - BAENTHEE
BEGEFTNEERERZ  TEEHBRBZES - BREATEH
PREMEEZERSEHRBLRURTERIBSRBE . SHE
BABTHEEBRIRM -

*  For identification purpose only
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFAEREEAEHN

Ms. OR Siu Ching Rerina
HhEL L

Ms. Or, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since April 2017. She is currently a non-executive
director of Analogue Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 1977) since April 2023. Ms. Or was a senior vice-president of
Schneider Electric SE (collectively with its subsidiaries, “Schneider
Electric”), a company listed on the Euronext Paris Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: SU), from 2019 to 2021. She joined Schneider Electric
in 1994 and retired after 27 years of services. She held various
senior management positions with Schneider Electric, including
director and the president of Schneider Electric (Hong Kong)
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric between
2015 and January 2019, a vice president of global purchasing
of Schneider Electric between 2012 and 2014, the president of
Schneider Electric Taiwan Co., Ltd. between 2008 and 2011 and
director of certain subsidiaries of Schneider Electric. Ms. Or was
a member of Energy Advisory Committee of The Government of
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region from 2016 to 2022. She
has over 20 years’ management experience in energy management
and automation industry. Ms. Or holds an Executive Master's
Degree in Business Administrative from the Kellogg School of
Management at Northwestern University in the United States of
America and the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology,
and a Master's degree of Science in Management from ESSEC
Graduate School of Management in France.

%t BER+TMOR > B2t FOAEZERELREBILF
HITES - RE - Z_=—FNAEEEIEBHMSRZFMARAREE
RETABZHETREBBRAB BRMHASE 1 1977) ZIFRITE
o MZITR B NEE_E_—FEFERIBESIZM
EhrEEMEERRMAERAR KRMMRE  SU) (EREKEBA
8 AIBIEMEER)) ZSREBH - BRI —ANAEFENATEE
BR > URRF -+ TtERRNK - REEHRMEERZESHREE
B 8ER 2 -AFE "2 NFREAHNEER2ENE
AEMEEREBBRADEEKEH N2 —FE"F
—NEREAENEEREKRERRAE - R ZETN\FETE
— FHEA A ERMEERABRADBENEEHMEERET
MBABRZES -MREIN T REE_T__FREEEBEH
THERREHNEZEGNE - RNEREERBHLITEER R
“HHEEERLR - M tRHAEEAIARYIRIRERSRKES
MERASITHAR IR EERT B iEESFEEHEEEMNE
Br(ESSEC)EIRE T L2211 ©
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREBAEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EHREEAS

e 4 Mr. NGAN Wai Hing
EEfRESLE

Chief Financial Officer and

Joint Company Secretary
MEBERBEAGNE

Mr. Ngan, aged 52, has been the Financial Controller and the
Company Secretary of the Company since September 2016 and
was re-designated as Chief Financial Officer and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company in January 2022. Mr. Ngan joined the
Company in 2009 and was a financial controller of a subsidiary
of the Company. He was also the Joint Company Secretary of the
Company from September 2014 to August 2016. Mr. Ngan holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Financial Administration (major in accounting)
from University of New England in Australia and is a certified public
accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a certified practicing accountant of CPA Australia.

L BEL T BT R"ENARBRBERRRMFHRE
BRABNE  WRZE - "F-AREARAR 2 BB K
FERBIME  REER_TENEMBAAT KRB HERAT—MH
ME A2 MFSMREIE - R B - E—NFNAEZZT—RF/N\A
RERBZMERBIME  BREERFA RN BB AR M HE
BE4SM(FEEHE) > ROTEADEIARGEME TR
MEEFEN R G HEESTAD
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Ms. LAU Nga Ting
MLt

Joint Company Secretary
BEARNE

Ms. Lau, aged 37, joined the Company in 2019 and has been the
Joint Company Secretary of the Company since January 2022. Ms.
Lau is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional
and an associate member of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute
in the United Kingdom. She holds a Bachelor's Degree of Arts in
Business Administration from the Birmingham City University and
a Master's Degree in Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

But > BE=+Ltw > BEZZ—NEMBEELRT > TE-F "
F-PREHERAABRZBMEATDWE - XL RRFNE - BT E
BEEABUREBARGEAEGREBFFARAEATES -
REAHESRTARRE THEEXRE L84 > URHAEE
BT ARBRE AT ERBRLEW -



Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate governance to the
Company's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to identifying
and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the needs of its
business.

The Company's corporate governance practices are made pursuant to the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out
in Appendix C1 (formerly Appendix 14) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). During the year ended 31st December 2023, the Company
has complied with all the code provisions, save and except for code provision
C.1.6, details of which are explained below. The Company regularly monitors and
reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure these continue to meet the
increasing stringent regulatory requirements and to improve its practices.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its board of directors
(the "Board") in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and
transparency and accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarized as follows:

THE BOARD

Corporate Culture

The Board leads to establish, promote and continually reinforce the desired
corporate culture of the Group which is underpinned by our corporate values
of committing highest standard of business ethics and integrity. Our sound
corporate culture reaches all levels of the Group, and aligns with the strategic and
core values of the Group. For detailed information about the strategic and core
values of the Group, please refer to the section headed “Quality Policy of ASL" on
page 2 of this annual report.

Responsibilities

The Company has formalized and adopted the written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a
view to enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the
Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves its decisions for all major matters of the Company, including
the approval of long-term objectives and strategies, changes to capital and
overall corporate structure, risk management and internal control systems,
material transactions (in particular those which may involve conflicts of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services from the Joint Company Secretaries, with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

EEELSRS
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERKRS

TH E BOARD (Continued)

Responsibilities (Continued)

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company's expense, upon making request to
the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company are
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals have to be obtained
from the Board prior to entering into any significant transactions by the above-
mentioned officers.

The Board has the full support from the Chief Executive Officer and senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of two Executive Directors,
one Non-Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
number of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents more than one-third
of the Board as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Weihang (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cui Yong (resigned on 24th May 2023)
Ms. Zhang Bingxia (appointed on 24th May 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Pan Xinrong

Mr. Deng Jianxin

Ms. Or Siu Ching Rerina

None of the members of the Board has any financial, business, family or other
material relationships with each other.

During the year ended 31st December 2023, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Profile
of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 23 to 26 of this annual report.
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TH E BOARD (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

Ms. Zhang Bingxia, who was appointed to the Board in May 2023, had obtained
legal advice from an external law firm as required under Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules on 23 May 2023. She has confirmed her understanding of the obligations as
a Director of the Company.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules and is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure that independent views are
available to the Board. The Nomination Committee also reviewed and considered
that the following mechanisms are effective in ensuring that independent views
are provided to the Board.

(@) The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive Directors with
at least one of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

(b) The Nomination Committee reviews annually each Director’'s time
commitment to the Company. Directors’ attendance records in 2023 are
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual
report.

(©) The Independent Non-Executive Directors receive fixed fee(s) for their role
as members of the Board and Board Committee(s) as appropriate. The
Company will not grant any equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options
or grants) with performance-related elements to the Independent Non-
Executive Directors to ensure their decision-making and compromise their
objectivity and independence.

(d) All Directors are entitled to seek advice from the Group’s Joint Company
Secretaries or the in-house legal department as well as from independent
professional advisers at the Company’s expense.

(e) A Director (including Independent Non-Executive Director) who has a
material interest in a contract, transaction or arrangement shall not vote or
be counted in the quorum on any Board resolution approving the same.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-Executive Directors
are independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors bring a
wide range of business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board meetings and
affairs of the Company, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflicts of interests and serving in Board committees, all Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Directors make various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company.
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TH E BOARD (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures for
the appointment of Directors.

The Company has adopted the procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director of the Company. These procedures are available and
accessible on the Company’'s website at www.asl.com.hk.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are as set out in the Bye-laws of the Company. The Board established
a Nomination Committee to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board at least annually, identify suitable candidates for the Board, and to
make recommendations on any matters in relation to the appointment and re-
appointment of members of the Board. Appointment of new Directors is reserved
for the Board's approval.

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Board comprises members with a
diverse range of skills and experience with the appropriate knowledge necessary
to oversee the business development, strategies, operations, challenges and
opportunities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Nomination
Committee takes that person'’s skills, qualifications and expected contributions to
the Company into account before making any recommendations to the Board in
relation to the appointment or re-appointment of members of the Board.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process,
with the advice provided by the Nomination Committee, by making reference to
the proposed candidates’ skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal
integrity and time commitments as well as the needs of the Company and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general meeting
of the Company ("“AGM") one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as additional Director
shall be subject to re- election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors is appointed under a specific term and they
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM in accordance with
the Bye- laws of the Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have historically and consistently
demonstrated strong commitment, and the ability to devote sufficient time to
discharge their responsibilities at the Board. Their commitment is also subject to
self-confirmation each year.
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TH E BOARD (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The Company has formal service agreements or letters of appointment for all
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors) which setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment and the terms of references have set out the work scope of the
Board committees and delegation were made by the Board in respect of the
responsibilities of the Non- Executive Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors) in such Board Committees.

In accordance with the Bye-law 99 of the Company, Mr. Wang Weihang and Mr.
Deng Jianxin will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these Directors standing for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company's circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming AGM contains
detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Ms. Zhang Bingxia, being a Director appointed by the Board during the year,
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting pursuant to the
Company's Bye-law 102(B). Ms. Zhang, being eligible, will offer herself for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting held on 29th May 2024.

Training for Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company. Each newly-
appointed Director receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training for its
Directors. All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors are
continually updated on developments in the statutory and regulatory regime
and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Continuing briefing and professional development for Directors are arranged
where necessary.
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EXELARS

TH E BOARD (Continued)

Training for Directors (Continued)

EFET e
ERZIEN @

During the year ended 31st December 2023, the Company organized a online #HZE_Z_=ZF+_B=+—HLEE » KATR
training in March 2023 titled “Anti-corruption” and a online training in November —ZHE_=F= ARMFEATREEREIN4R LI
2023 titled “Share Scheme”, and provided the Directors with relevant training KR _-_ZE-_=F£+—BRWHETEATRD NG
materials. All Directors have provided the Company with records of the trainings  _E1Z3ll » A ZEHRHABRMBIME c FREEEY
during the year. According to the training records maintained by the Company, AZAATRMETRERNEINIEHE o RIBAQ TR
the types of trainings received by each of the Directors during the year are  ZHIZHIE82 » SEBNERMESIEIIZER4E

summarized as follows:

AT

Types of Training
1EENEER
Attending
seminar(s)/
Receiving updates conference and/or
and briefings forums conducted
from the Company/ by the Company or

self-study external parties
HERF AT
WER R AT 41 BB EE (i SR 3hR Y
RSERER g g5
Name of Director ERUE R /B8 ) Y- % b
Executive Directors BiTES
Wang Weihang FAEM v
Wang Yueou FEES v/
Non-executive Directors EMITES
Cui Yong (resigned on 24th May 2023) BB (W ZE=FAHHF+IIHFHT) v
Zhang Bingxia SRERE
(appointed on 24th May 2023) (R _E_=ZFZH_+IOEHEZF) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Pan Xinrong EIRER v
Deng Jianxin BREEHT v/
Or Siu Ching Rerina & v
Insurance Cover for Directors EENFREREE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action A ABEMEEZESETEENERTHZET S
against its Directors to comply with the requirement of the CG Code. BEHRE > URHEEEERTRIZRE -
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TH E BOARD (Continued)

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee members
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board has at least four regular meetings a year and holds additional meetings
on other occasions as needed.

During the year ended 31st December 2023, the Board held four Board meetings.
The individual attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings,

meetings of Board committees and/or the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31st December 2023 are set out below:
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EEgw
BEERZEZE TR EHERCR

EHETBREFLEALY

EFEENEEEHETR

ERMEMETRITEIIIEE ©

DOREE LKA R

BETE__F+_A=+—HLEFE EFFH

BITOREH -

EEERHES=F+"A=1t—HILFES
TNEARBESEREETRZREENETEZL IR
BAEZER HELREHTINT

Attendance/Number of Meetings held during the tenure of directorship

RESEBALRE BRAEERY

Remuneration Audit ~ Nomination ~ Management Investment
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee 2023 AGM
- s
Name of Directors £4:2] Ez¢ WMzRe BHERE REZRE EBZRE REZRE REEEAE
Executive Directors #irES
Wang Weinang T4m 5/5 N/A N/A 22 414 414 1/1
TBA TBA
Wang Yueou IBE 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 414 414 1/1
i i i
Non-Executive Directors aiTER
Cui Yong (resjgned on 24th May 2023) BB (R -E 012 N/A N/A N/A 012 N/A 0/1
EAZTIAR) TEH TBA TEA Nl
Zhang Bingyia ) 33 NJA NJA NJA 0 N/A N/A
(appointed on 24th May 2023) BAZHIAEZE) il il TER Sl Sil
Independent Non-Executive BiUFaES
Directors
Pan Xinrong B 55 0 44 0 N/A 44 "
i
Deng Jianxin Gl 5/5 22 414 22 N/A 414 1/1
TEA
Or Siu Ching Rerina & 5/5 22 414 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Nl TEA Nl
None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate Director. Tt EESREREIEEESLEE o
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting MBEFEEREHI H§@E_TZ_=ZF+_F=+
with the Independent Non-Executive Directors without the presence of other —HIFEE > B FEQEBUIENTEEEH

Directors during the year ended 31st December 2023.

thEFBFERER TRTT —REE -
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TH E BOARD (Continued)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance of the Directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all
Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board meetings and
Board committees meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days before (or other period as
agreed) each Board meeting or Board committees meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also
have separate and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

The management has provided all members of the Board with monthly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties.

The Joint Company Secretaries are responsible to take and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and Board committees meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a
conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered
by the Board and dealt with by a physical board meeting rather than a written
resolution. The Company's Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors
to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman
of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance of power and
authority.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Wang
Weihang and Mr. Wang Yueou respectively. Their respective responsibilities are
clearly defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the
support of the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and
strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s
day-to- day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also
responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating the organizational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes for the Board's
approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy effective since 30th August 2013.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. All board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered based on objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

According to the board diversity policy, selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
independence and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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EXERRS

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six Directors. Two of
them are female. Three of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The Board is
also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender,
professional background and skills. The Company considers that there is gender
diversity on the current Board and in considering director candidates in the future,
it will continue to identify and select female individuals with a diverse range of
skills, experience and knowledge in the field of the Group’s business from time to
time, for promoting gender diversity of the Board. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing the diversity of the Board. Furthermore, the Nomination
Committee will monitor and evaluate the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy annually to ensure its continued effectiveness. The workforce of the Group
(including its senior management) comprised approximately 75% male employees
and 25% female employees as at 31st December 2023. Due to the nature of
work in information technology industry, the Group mainly considers factors such
as the candidates’ ability and experience, rather than their gender, in recruiting
employees.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy effective since 31st December 2018. This
policy aims to set out guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are
to be declared and paid, and the level of dividend to be paid to the shareholders
of the Company. The Board endeavours to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board should also take into account, inter
alia, the following factors:~

(@) the actual and expected financial results of the Group;

(b) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of the Group;

(c) the Group's business strategies, including future cash commitments and
investment needs to sustain the long-term growth aspect of the business;

(d) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders;

(e) the current and future operations, liquidity position and capital requirements
of the Group; and

(f) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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DlVl DEN D POL'CY(Cont‘\nued)

Subject to the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any applicable
laws, rules and regulations, dividends may be paid in cash or be satisfied wholly
or partly in the form of allotment of shares of the Company. The Board may also
consider the issuance of bonus shares on a basis permitted by the applicable laws
and regulations. The dividend shall include scrip dividends, distributions in specie
or in kind, capital distributions and capitalization issues.

The Board may from time to time determine and pay to the Company’s
shareholders interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the
position of the Company. The Board may recommend the payment of final
dividends which are required to be approved by shareholders of the Company in
general meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five committees, namely Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Management Committee and
Investment Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee are posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange and/or are available to shareholders upon
request.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expense.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from time to
time to facilitate the Company's operations.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Pan Xinrong, Mr. Deng Jianxin and Ms. Or Siu
Ching Rerina. Mr. Pan Xinrong is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior management and share
options matters. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice
and conditions.
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BOARD COM M |TTE ES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual remuneration
packages of all Directors and the senior management and other related matters.
The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman of the Board and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2023. At the meeting, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed
the Directors’ remuneration packages (including their service agreements) and
bonuses payable and determined, with delegated responsibility, the change and
remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management. Remuneration
Committee has reviewed the share option schemes of the Company and relating
matters. There was no grant of any share option and no material matter relating
to share option schemes of the Company during the year.

To recognize and support the Group's strategic directions and align the interests
of the Directors and shareholders, the remuneration policy for directors setting
the procedure for fixing remuneration package for Directors, including Executive
Directors and all the Non-executive Directors, chairmanship fee of the Board and
Audit Committee and so forth. The remuneration policy for directors states that
the Company seeks to offer competitive and fair market remuneration to attract,
retain and motivate the directors while avoiding paying more than is necessary for
this purpose. Remuneration of each director is determined based on individual
duties and responsibilities, experience and prevailing market condition, with
reference to remuneration offered to comparable position in the market and
advice of independent professional consultants where appropriate. No Director
shall be involved in deciding his own remuneration. The Company also recognizes
the importance of a formal and transparent remuneration policy covering its
Board.
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BOARD COM M |TTE ES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the CG Code provision E.1.5, the
annual emoluments of the members of senior management (except Directors) by
band for the year ended 31st December 2023 are set out below:
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Emoluments bands: Number of individuals =4k - BAE
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 2 5,500,001 775 ZE6,000,00078 7T 2
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 1 6,000,001 775 % 6,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 - 6,500,001 7752 7,000,000 7T -
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 - 7,000,001 775 E 7,500,000 70 -
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000 - 7,500,001 775 28,000,000 7T -
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 1 8,000,001 7752 8,500,000/ 7T 1

Further details of the top five highest paid individuals are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Pan Xinrong, Mr. Deng Jianxin and Ms. Or Siu Ching Rerina,
among them one Independent Non-Executive Director possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Mr. Deng Jianxin is the chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company's existing
external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the management, internal auditor or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the relationship with the external auditor with reference to
the work performed by the auditor, its independence, fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor;

(c) toreview the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems and associated
procedures; and

(d) to report the findings and make recommendations to the Board for
improvements or implementations in relation to the above matters.
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BOARD COM M |TTE ES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31st December
2023. At these meetings, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the following:

(@) the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures;

(b) the reports from the external auditor, management letters and management
response;

(c) the corporate governance matters;

(d) the matters in relation to the risk management and internal control systems
as well as internal audit function; and

(e) the re-appointment of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor three times via video
conference during the year ended 31st December 2023.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Company's annual results for the year ended 31st December 2023 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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BOARD COM M |TTE ES (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises the chairman of the Board
and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr.
Pan Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;

(c) to access the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors; and

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2023. At the meeting, the Committee reviewed and/or discussed the
following:

(@) the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;
(b) the independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors;

() to make recommendation to the Board about the proposed re-election of
Directors who were due to retire at the AGM; and

(d) the time spent by Non-Executive Directors to fulfill their duties.

A set of nomination procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of
the Company has been adopted by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the Company's needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations.
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BOARD COM M |TTE ES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

A nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”) has been adopted
by the Board on 31st December 2018 and will be reviewed by the Board annually.
The key nomination criteria and principles of the Company for the nomination of
Directors constitute the Nomination Policy as set out below:

(a)

to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge, independence and length of service) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular
the chairman of the Board and the chief executive;

before recommending an appointment, to evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity on the Board, and, in the light of this
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for a
particular appointment. In identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall:

(i) use such method or methods to facilitate the search as it may deem
appropriate;

(i) consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds; and
(i) consider candidates on merit and against objective criteria and with

due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board, taking care that
candidates have enough time available to devote to the position; and

to ensure that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive
a formal letter of appointment setting out clearly what is expected of them
in terms of time commitment, committee service and involvement outside
Board meetings, where appropriate.
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BOARD COM M |TTE ES (Continued)

Management Committee

The Management Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and
one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Wang Yueou and Ms.
Zhang Bingxia. Mr. Wang Yueou is the chairman of the Management Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and reviewing
the Company's day-to-day operations and financial reporting, and making
recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies of the Group. The
Management Committee meets as appropriate and when required to discuss the
related issues.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Wang
Yueou, Mr. Pan Xinrong and Mr. Deng Jianxin. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman
of the Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee is primarily responsible for identifying and evaluating
existing and potential investment opportunities for the Company, and making
recommendations to the Board. The Investment Committee meets as and when
required to discuss the related issues.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 (formerly
Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31st December 2023.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has delegated the duties and responsibilities in performing its
corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is
responsible for corporate governance functions with the following duties:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to Directors and employees; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2023.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting standards are
complied with.

The Board has received from the management explanation and relevant
information which enable the Board to make an informed assessment for
approving the financial statements.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The statement of external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 97 to 102 of this annual report.

The remuneration paid and payable to Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
and Grant Thornton network firm, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 371st December 2023 amounted to HK$1,970,000
and HK$1,082,000 respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of review of
interim financial information and other reporting services.

Other audit firms provide local audit services at a fee of HK$197,000.

Annual Report 2023 £k

D < at

X ERmEE
EEECRRERZESRTEFENEXELRR
FERBSABE BREZEEEELFEERRAE
BT

() FIERENARBNEEEARERER > I
MEFERHES

() B REREEREHREEASNEINIRFE
HEUR

(R) BN RERARBDEET EZREAREERESE
R4

(T) HE - B RERERANEEFREENIRTE
ARERFMENEA) ; &

() WA ARARETFEEEBTINERRIE(RE
EVRERE) NAVIRER o

BRMBHRRZEFHE

EERUNBZRSAERREARTIHEST "=
FHA=T—HLEFEZHBRE -

EEREEEBEARAMBRROGEN » UHEFRZS
MHRREBMATHRRAEBRZ EHARR > I
REHERREEREREREZER -

EECRECEERHENBRAEMER > Bk
EREUHEMBRRFLEAETME

2 EREMEN &=

ERBZIIEBZBEMEE2RYBREZEFEZ
BRENAFREITEE102E 2 MBI ZEENIRE
m o

BECE_-—F+_A=+—HLEFE > #EZR
BRIFEZRBEOEE (EE) EMEBRARAR
K2R S P E S B (T Z B8 2 5% 1,970,000
A7 1,082,000 7T © JFBRFRBIEIFEERT
VB ER R EMRERE

HMEANEHIREREZEMBARBZERR
197,000 7t °



RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The main features of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
are to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as
reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks across business
operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which consists of the
Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the senior management. The Board
has evaluated and determined the nature and extent of risks (including, among
others, material risks relating to Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG"))
that shall be taken in achieving the Group's strategic objectives, and has overseen
the senior management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems (including, among others, material risks
relating to ESG).

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy in providing
direction in identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an
annual basis, the senior management identifies risks that would adversely affect
the achievement of the Group's objectives, and assesses and prioritises the
identified risks according to a set of standardised criteria. Risk mitigation plans
and risk owners are then established for those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent professional advisor to assist
the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of internal control
systems of the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal
controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for improvement.
Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and
the Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.

Risk management report and internal control report which covered financial,
operational and compliance control for the year ended 371st December 2023,
has submitted for the Audit Committee’s and the Board's reviews. The Group has
an internal audit function in place to provide an independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems in accordance with the CG Code. The Board had performed an annual
review on the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems during the year, including but not limited to the change, since the last
annual review, in nature and extent of significant risk, and the Group's ability to
respond to changes in its business and external environment; the scope and
quality of management's ongoing monitoring of risk management and internal
control systems; the extent and frequency of communication with the Board in
relation to monitoring result of risk and internal control review; significant failures
or weaknesses identified and their related implications; and the effectiveness of
the Company's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
The Board considers the Group's risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate. The Board in particular considers the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

The risk management and internal control systems above are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public
as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to
the public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained
or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would immediately
disclose the information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements are not false or misleading as to a
material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in
view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires equal
disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through AGMs
and other general meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Director, Independent Non-Executive Directors, and the Chairmen
of all Board committees or their delegate(s) will make themselves available at each
AGM to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The 2023 AGM was held on 24th May 2023 (the “2023 AGM"). CG Code provision
C.1.6 stipulates that the Independent Non-Executive Directors and other Non-
Executive Directors, as equal board members, should give the board and
any committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and
varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and active
participation. Generally they should also attend general meetings to gain and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. A Non-Executive
Director was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 24th May 2023 due to other commitments. However, the chairmen
of the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Management Committee and Investment Committee or their delegate, and the
Company's external auditor have attended the 2023 AGM to answer questions.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS (Continued)

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy in 2014 (the
“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) setting out the Company's procedures
in providing the shareholders with clear communication and easy access to
information about the Company. The Board will review the Shareholders’
Communication Policy annually to reflect current regulatory, community, investor
requirements. Below is a summary of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information, circulars,
announcements, notice of general meetings, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted. Such information will also be released to
the website of the Stock Exchange in accordance with continuous disclosure
obligations.

During the year, the Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholder Communication Policy. The Company's website was updated on a
regular basis to maintain an effective ongoing communication with shareholders
and shareholders could access the latest information of the Company through
the same. Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange was also
posted on the Company's website as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter.
Shareholders were provided with the opportunities to communicate with the
Directors and senior management directly at general meetings. Enquiries from
investors are dealt with in an informative and timely manner. Based on the
above, the Board was of the view that the Shareholder Communication Policy was
effective.

Constitutional Documents

The latest version of the Company's Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the
year ended 31st December 2023, there was no change in the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is proposed
for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors. Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions put to
vote at the general meetings of the Company (other than procedural matters) are
taken by poll and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange after the general meetings.

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition by
Shareholders

Under Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act"), shareholders
holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company may convene a special general meeting (“SGM") by written requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned, must state
the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses incurred
in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under Section 74 of
the Companies Act once a valid requisition is received.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner,

as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the
Directors.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RlG HTS (Continued)

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

The Companies Act allows certain shareholders to make requisition to the
Company to give notice to the shareholders in respect of any resolution which is
intended to be moved at AGM of the Company or circulate a statement in respect
of any proposed resolution or business to be considered at a general meeting of
the Company.

The number of shareholders necessary to put forward such proposal for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company shall be:

(@) either any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the meeting; or

(b) not less than 100 shareholders.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned and together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal, must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements, and unless the Company otherwise resolves,
the shareholders concerned would be responsible for the expenses incurred in
giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and
80 of the Companies Act once valid documents are received.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Joint Company Secretaries who will direct the
enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact details of the Joint Company
Secretaries are as follows:

Contact Details

Joint Company Secretaries

Automated Systems Holdings Limited

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2601 6998

Fax: +852 2608 6585

Email: ir@asl.com.hk

For avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification
in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders' information may be disclosed as
required by law.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The Joint Company Secretaries, Mr. Ngan Wai Hing (“Mr. Ngan”) and Ms. Lau Nga
Ting (“Ms. Lau”), both are full time employees of the Company, who are responsible
for advising the Board through the Chairman of the Board on governance matters
and facilitates induction and professional development of the Directors. The Joint
Company Secretaries report to the Chairman of the Board. All Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Joint Company Secretaries to ensure that
Board procedures, all applicable law, rules and regulations are followed.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules since Mr. Ngan and
Ms. Lau have undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training

during the year ended 31st December 2023.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27th March 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Group is dedicated to creating long-term, sustainable value for our
stakeholders and strive to integrate this objective into our practices and
governance to promote social and environmental sustainability.

For any organization committed to being responsible and sustainable,
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") reporting is important because it
allows organization to demonstrate, with facts, what it have achieved and how it
plans to meet the challenges ahead. Not only that, but through the ESG Report
we also want to share our vision with all our stakeholders, providing them with
a better understanding of the Group's progress and direction on sustainable
development, and gaining their commitment and support. As without them, it will
be difficult for us to achieve sustained growth.

Reporting Scope

Unless otherwise stated, the scope of this ESG Report include environmental and
social issues relating to the Group's core business operations at the Hong Kong
headquarters for the year ended 371st December 2023 (the “Reporting Year”).
Such scope has included all operations and businesses under the Group’s direct
management and control that have a significant financial and operational impact.

Going forward, the Group will continue to determine the scope of reporting
in accordance with the “materiality” principle and improve our internal data
collection systems to provide stakeholders with more comprehensive and
accurate information.

For details of the Group's other aspects including corporate governance and
director’s information, please refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” and “Directors’ Report” on pages 27 to 50 and 83 to 96 of this annual
report respectively.

Reporting Standards

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” ("ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix
C2 (formerly Appendix 27) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Recognizing
the importance of being accountable to our stakeholders for the information
disclosed, we adhere to the following reporting principles.

Materiality: The Group continually communicates with stakeholders to
understand and identify the ESG areas that are most important to them.

Quantitative: Where feasible, information is presented in a quantitative
manner and accompanied by narrative, interpretation and comparative
analysis.

Balance: The ESG Report is prepared in an unbiased manner, with clear
explanations of positive and negative impacts, enabling stakeholders to make
a reasonable assessment of the Group's overall performance.
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Consistency: The ESG Report presents information on a consistent basis,
enabling stakeholders to analyze and assess changes in performance over
time.

Confirmation and Approval

A system of internal oversight, review and risk management has been put in
place by the Group to ensure that all information presented in the ESG Report is
accurate and reliable.

The ESG Report was confirmed and approved by the Board on 27th March 2024.

Feedback

If you have any questions about the content of the Report, please feel free to
contact the Group.

Address: 15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Email: ir@asl.com.hk
Tel: +852 2601 6998

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance. The
Company's Board is responsible for decision-making, strategy and risk
management, and oversees our ESG matters. Our Joint Company Secretaries are
the coordinators of specific ESG issues, helping the Board develop strategic ESG
programmes, assess and manage ESG risks, as well as set targets and review
progress, while communicating ESG management plans to other departments.

As an integral part of corporate governance, the Group believes that risk
management and internal control systems have a key role and importance
in achieving business objectives. Our identifying significant risks related to
ESG matters relies on evaluation of management of the Company. During the
Reporting Year, the Group has identified the following major ESG risks and
ensured that the corresponding measures are adequate and effective.
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Major ESG risk
FEIRE « HEREBAR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Impact
=42

s

RIE-HERERKS

Control measures

EEHEETE

Shortage of IT talents in
Hong Kong
EBENRH AT 2

Hong Kong has made great strides in driving the
development of the IT industry over the years.
Owing to the rapid development of Fintech, big
data analytics, artificial intelligence and cyber
security in the industry, the related demand for
manpower with comprehensive knowledge and
experience has increased. While competition
for recruiting IT talents has intensified due to
the huge demand in the market, the political
unrest and Pandemic over the past few years has
undoubtedly caused an outflow of local talent
and limited inflow of talent to Hong Kong. Since
the customers’ demands are growing, the talent
shortage poses a challenge to meet the rapidly
growing manpower.
EBLEREEDEANRTEERTE—ER
BREMNEY - ERTRABE ~ KBB4 A
TEERMBZEFENARER  SUILHAAR
IR MBI A NIRRT RAFIE - £
AT SREABRYEBEEAR AT B3I
RN R BEBFNBUE R E KRB IBTE
R EMAMAT RERAT RATBNBERR
FUMRF) - ANFRBRFEIER - FIEAA GG
HimE REIE RN AN EEMRPEE

To manage such risk, the Group has actively
explored ways to close the skills gap, expand
talent pool and embrace new work models by:
AEEARAR  AEERGBEBUTIASH
FEMRRIAE R ~ WBAAT BERERN LIFR
N

= Talent training

AT 5

—- Expansion of service centers (i.e. opened our
headquarters in the Greater Bay Area)

BERRBPOENAERRIIAEER)

- Expansion of technical team in the Greater
Bay Area
RKERFEARALE

= Introduction of automation to improve service
quality
SIABBELUREIRBER
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There are also ESG-related policies in place across the Group covering areas
such as employment and labour practices, business integrity, environment and
community. These policies help us to optimise our internal management system
and ensure the protection of our stakeholders. For example, a series of well-
established employment policies safeguard the rights of employees, regular
training programme to employees for providing high-quality products and services
to customers to maintain sustainable business growth, and the compliance with
applicable laws and regulations to maintain healthy business development and
strengthen confidence of shareholders and investors in the Group.

The department heads are responsible for overseeing the implementation of
the ESG-related policies, ensuring ongoing communication with employees and
reviewing the policies on a regular basis. All employees and relevant stakeholders
should be informed of any changes to the policies.

With enhanced sustainability governance in the Group, we intend to continue to
assess our ESG performance and global trends from time to time and plan to set
ESG targets in the near future.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values the participation of stakeholders' and strongly believes that
building a relationship of trust not only enables stakeholders to understand the
Group's work and performance in promoting sustainable development, but also
enables the Group to understand stakeholders’ opinions and needs so as to
examine potential risks and opportunities. We regularly engage key stakeholders
in daily operations through meetings, events, and other communications and
feedback channels. The key stakeholder groups and methods of communication
are illustrated in the table below:

Stakeholders

FnE HERFOENBEATR
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2 EMEBREERAREAKS - AEABBEE
EBREMBEARERE  EACEIERFNES
HABZE - TBFMNEERBELA N TRE
B

Methods of communication with stakeholders

Shareholders and Investors
REREEEE meetings
BRBFAGREREFIAE

Notices, circulars and announcements
BE - BREASE

Regular corporate publications (including

financial reports)
EHRETIY(EIEMFHIRES)
Corporate website

AEIFEDA

Customers
®E

Satisfaction survey

Customer service hotline and email
B PR HAR K T AE

Customer direct communication
WMEFERER
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Annual General Meeting and special general

Press release

it

Social media

AR

Enquiries or feedback to the Board via the
Group's Joint Company Secretaries
BBAERCHEARNENEEGEHAN
&

Exhibitions and conferences
RERGH

Meetings

a3
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Stakeholders Methods of communication with stakeholders
& ApENEEst
Employees + Regular meetings + Training sessions and orientation
’& RS Bl & R
Annual performance appraisal + Employee activities
FERREZ EEEE
Internal memos + Emails and intranet
RERE S BB Ef K A
Suppliers + Tendering + On-site assessment
HrEm AR EIET G
+ Business meetings +Vendor evaluation exercise
EREa=E HEERETE
Community + Charitable activities and donations + Community volunteering events
& BEEHRIBE HEEIES
+ Corporate website
NG s
Social media
HATIERE
Government and + Statutory filings and notification +  Conferences and workshops
supervisory institutions A TS R IB A FERMASE
BAT AR B A + Regulatory or voluntary disclosures + Taxreturn
SENEMEKE ]iR
Note: BEE <

1. Stakeholders refer to groups and individuals who have a major impact on, or are 1. FPEEHAEFEFEEEATE  ITEBTE
impacted by, the Group’s business. HIBERE R BN ©

To the Group, material issues are those that would affect the decisions, actions HAEEMS » EABEERHAERZ E£HRF
and performance of our business and stakeholders. In preparing the ESG Report, & BIRR « THRKRBERF EZHNME - HRIR
we designed a survey to assist the Board in reviewing ESG issues against the ESG 1 « H @ AEAREE > HARFHAETURHES
Reporting Guide and industry trends, and identifying material issues based on  BRIEEIE - B REABRSIESI RITEBRES
their importance to stakeholders and the Group. Below are six material issues IR - H S REAME » TIRBEESRFNERE

identified by the Board: EECEEMHNEALEE UTHESEHIN
FNEEARE !
Anti-corruption + Product Responsibility + Cyber Security
k&5 EmaE EEEaEs
Customer Satisfaction +  Innovation +  Training and Development
ERWEE BUFT BilkER

The Group believes that stakeholders’ views can provide management with a  AEEEE @ FHEZERENSEEEL@E 7 B0
comprehensive understanding of sustainability risks and develop improvement {542 B EL » WIRILHIST NS HHE o BERAK »
measures accordingly. Going forward, We will continue to strengthen our B #EMNREEFNEZTEH » UKIIERES
interaction with stakeholders and expand more channels, such as conducting R > IHBLFHNEETHEED > UIEN TR
questionnaires among more stakeholders to increase opportunities to understand ~ $F P& Z B S -

their expectations.
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COMPLIANCE AND INTEGRITY

The Group recognises that breaches of laws and regulations will have a significant
impact on our business operations, performance, financial position and
reputation. Our business is governed by various laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the following which have a significant impact on the Group: the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the Employment Ordinance, the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance, the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance, the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, and the Competition Ordinance. Measures are
implemented to keep abreast of the latest regulatory developments to ensure
compliance.

Meanwhile, all operations are run with a high degree of ethics, transparency,
responsibility and integrity. To meet the fair and ethical requirements, the Group
has established a Code of Conduct (including the anti-corruption system and
anti-bribery system), Competition Compliance Policy, Whistle-Blower Policy and
Gift and Donation Policy to ensure that our operations are free from all forms
of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering and anti-competitive
practices and that employees are aware of and comply with these requirements
and do not engage in any improper activities.

Management Approach Description
Bl it

BRELE

FEERR > EREFRERROREFERZ EXHE
BB UBRIRBEELESEATE - AEH
ZEBRRBEFRERBOEE > SEEBRRIUT
HEEBERAEATENEZRERRMN  (BAER
(FLRB) R B1) ~ CREFAD ~ (REMEMRG) ~ (B
EZ 2 RBEEO) ~ (B LEFERRRGID) K (G 3 1%
Bl o REBREUETEUKRE T REMNEEZEREU
HERER -

IE5h > FRAEEFIIUSKFHFEEERE  BAE
BEERHAEEE - amERATREXERER &
SEERETAT(EFEERESHERRERE
FIE) ~ BmFFOERBR ~ BREERURERN
BERE > UERFAEEZEETETATANE
75 BRER ~ BhR - HGF N B ARRBEFITA 0 W
REETHARETHAZK  BEYEREETTE
JEE e

Code of Conduct -

177557 involved in our operations.

It is based on the Group's values and aims to promote honest behaviour by all those

HUAREEZEERAER  EEREMAESHEAEREEZ ALHNHETS o
- Employees must not solicit or accept an advantage as a reward or inducement for
doing any act or showing favour to any person or corporate without the permission of

the Group.

RERE@MAUE > EETSHEARNHRE N D FRRMRFF > HEMALIOEE

ERERTTS > SEERE -

- It encourages employees to actively report any malpractice and misconduct that may
be detrimental to the interests of the Group to the Senior Legal Manager and/or Head

of Human Resources.

HRBREABMEFEER/UANERETETH LREARSERSAERN T2 A

FIRRANETR -

- All potential corruption cases reported will be recorded and assessed. Upon receipt
of the report, the Senior Legal Manager and/or Head of Human Resources should
promptly initiate an investigation of the case, identify the issues, facts and any

remedial actions.

PR LRV EZEIIFRE TR TE - BREBRER/AANERIERERRE B
KERFAEZRREE - DERME - SEMETAEREER -

= All investigation will be reported and informed to Chief Executive Officer and/or the
Chairman of Audit Committee. An investigation report will be issued and recorded.
FRrERERRELRNTEBME R/ NEZEZET IR - KUERATREWLEREE

Competition Compliance Policy -
BB RG S RBUER

It has been adopted by the Group's subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong.
REEFERSBEENNEB QBB RMBREER

- lIts aimis to prohibit any conduct that prevents, restricts or distorts competition.
HEFEZILEMEE -« IREIZHRMHFRE 2174 -
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Management Approach Description
EE5H it

RIE-HERERKS

Whistle-Blower Policy -
SRR

%o

It encourages employees to actively report any malpractice and misconduct that may
be detrimental to the interests of the Group to the Senior Legal Manager.

HEBEEMSMEHEEIE LREMAIERS

AEBFNEZ N ETARAIET

= Anyone can report in real name or anonymously. The whistleblower's identity will be
kept completely confidential, and his or her legitimate interests will be protected.

FAALIIAIBERELRER - BRAZENRTE2FRE > BES

TR R ARAE

= All cases reported will be recorded and assessed. Upon receipt of the report, the
Senior Legal Manager should promptly initiate an investigation of the case.

FTE L RIERITE W E KT - SREHEERERRE > BARFERERSA

Eo

A briefing session on the above policies will be organized for employees upon
their commencement of employment. These policies are also available on our
intranet for easy access by employees. Any employee who is in doubt about the
legality of any business activity can seek advice from the Senior Legal Manager. In
addition, during the Reporting Year, an anti-corruption online training and relevant
training materials provided to our Directors to further enhance their relevant
awareness.

As part of our commitment to ethical business practices, we have taken several
steps to strengthen our anti-corruption framework and foster a transparent and
accountable organizational culture.

During the Reporting Year, we organized two anti-corruption seminars in
collaboration with the Hong Kong Independent Commission Against Corruption
("ICAC"). The first seminar was exclusively conducted for senior management, while
the second seminar was extended to all managerial grade staffs. These seminars
provided a platform for our employees to engage with ICAC officers, gaining
valuable insights into the latest developments, best practices, and emerging
challenges in the field of anti-corruption.

In conjunction with the seminars, we engaged ICAC officers to review our existing
anti-corruption system. Their expertise and guidance allowed us to enhance
our policy framework, ensuring alignment with the latest industry standards and
regulatory requirements.

Additionally, we actively remind our staffs during such festive periods to remain
vigilant and adhere to our policies to mitigate any potential risks associated with
gifts or donations by re-sharing our comprehensive Code of Conduct, Whistle-
Blower Policy, and Gift and Donation Policy with all our staff members. We
considered that these documents serve as essential tools to guide our employees
on expected behaviours, reporting mechanisms, and the responsible acceptance
of gifts or donations during festive occasions.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with
laws and regulations. There were also no legal cases of corrupt practices against
the Group and our employees.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERELBRS

CONTRIBUTION TO SUSTAINABILITY

The Group desires to unite all our staff members in working towards a common
goal ~ to participate in building the community in which we conduct operations
and protecting the natural environment from which we obtain resources,
while always meeting the expectations of our stakeholders and bringing them
mutual benefits. To this end, we seek to create value for each of the five capitals
important to our business:

Produced Capital
EXEF

Social Capital

HEEx

Human Capital

ABEX

While the financial capital is already reflected in the Group's financial statements,
we highlight our performance in the other four capital areas in this ESG Report.

Produced Capital

The Group’s mission as a service provider is to create value for our customers by
providing them with quality and value-added services and solutions. Our produced
capital lies in the creation and management of knowledge and technology in
the field of information technology. In the ongoing digitalisation process, we are
committed to continuous innovation to better assist our clients in their digital
transformation.

Quality Assurance

The Group places great importance on ensuring the quality and reliability of our
services. Through regular quality reviews and internal audits by the Quality Office,
we take initiative to identify potential areas for continual improvement on our
services provided to customers in the context of quality management standards.
For any risks that may affect the quality of our services, the Quality Office
proposes risk mitigation plans and monitors the effectiveness of the corrective
measures taken.

Over recent years, our main subsidiaries, Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited

("ASLHK") and ELM Computer Technologies Limited (“ELM"), have been recognised
for the following quality achievements.
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Major Subsidiaries Quality Achievement Type of Service Provision Awarding Bodies
FEMBAE mE R RIEARF LR L2
ASLHK ISO 9001:2015 Quality Enterprise Information Technology Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Services
ERCEEIE ISO 9001:2015 rREEMAR ERMERER
mEEERER
ISO/IEC 20000-1:2018 Service Desk Operation, Hosting Services, Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
IT Service Infrastructure Hardware & Software
Management System Maintenance Services
ISO/IEC 20000-1:2018 IRB A X%, FEIRBM ERMERER
EERMRFEERR ERERTERYBE (AR (18
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Information Security Monitoring Service  SGS Hong Kong Limited

Information Security
Management System

ISO/IEC 27001:2013 EHZ 2 EERY BRBRABAERRAR
BMZ2EERR

Capability Maturity Model Software Development and CMMI® Institute
Integration® (CMMI-DEV) Support Service Organization
Version 2.0,
Maturity Level 5

Capability Maturity Model A R 2 IR AR TS AE AR CMMI®HR 35 Ff

Integration® (CMMI-DEV)
2.0hR & H 4RETAR

ELM ISO 9001:2015 Quality [T System Integration, Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Management System Software Development, Installation
and Maintenance Support Services
TR BB A ISO 9001:2015 B ARES « |IFEE ERMERER
mEEERER 2B R hfE s ST R AR TS

Owing to the nature of information security involved in IT services, the associated &R EARIRFE S REN LMY » BREARR
risk assessment and management are of paramount importance. The Group has ~HEHMEREEEZEMERE - 2EERHERERE A
developed and implemented an IT Security Policy which requires relevant staffto R Z2HX » EXEHEETETERERZ 2
comply with regulations in relation to physical security, access control security, ~FEEZEHIZ 2 « HEL 2 RELBENLZ 2R
data security and network and communication security, to protect the customers'  LURERFL B o BRRLZE2ER (WRBHRFKR
information. To address security incidents, such as network or system software %) » AEBERMN—EHHABAEREZTLBR
failures, the Group has adopted a set of reporting and handling procedures, which  /NARE iRV ER K R IRFZFE ©

are implemented by relevant personnel and a Customer Care Unit.

Intellectual Property FHER

The Group is committed to protecting intellectual property of the Group and our ~ AEBR NN REREE RESIEB LN HERE
partners from infringement and to complying with non-disclosure agreement 2RI > WEF A FIRBERZ ST AIGIE o HW
and licensing system. Employees are reminded that the Group has exclusive AEBZITATAFH FEBRECERAEER
ownership of the intellectual property and that all material produced or edited HEA#Y EHEBRESE  BREN TIEBRR2
by them in the course of their work is the property of the Group, as set out in the — FIFFRE SR IRMFIE MR B AREE E -
Group's Code of Conduct.
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Innovation

The Group has strived to drive developments for its DevSecOps, integrated IT
services, by integrating our unique advantages - application development (Dev),
cybersecurity (Sec) and omni-channel management services (Ops) into “Unified
Technology Services”, to meet market needs.

Following the successful introduction of DevSecOps into the enterprise customer
scenario, the Group made substantial breakthroughs. The managed security
services have been upgraded to the next level, from the previous delivery in
Hong Kong, extending to the Asia Pacific region and even as far as European and
American cities. Among them, the delivery advantages comprise of integrating
the Group's two major managed services platforms, Security Operation Center
Plus (SOC+) and Unified Operation Center (UOC), as the central automated
management.

"ASL Marketplace”, our self-branded cloud-based comprehensive online platform,
leveraging its own unified technology services, the Group launched the platform to
the market in an as-a-Service business model. The orders newly secured bundle
covers DevSecOps, so as to satisfy customers' digital transformation needs in
efficiency and automation under the new normal, thus bringing new experience to
customers.

Moreover, the Group has successfully introduced new technologies, which drawn
market attention, such as the Internet of Things and automation to improve
service quality.

Supply Chain

A good supply chain management enables the Group to provide high quality
products and services to our customers. Under the Vendor Management Policy,
the Group has established a vendor selection mechanism to assess, including
but not limited to, the background and specialty of the vendor and years of
experience, recommendation from the customer or head office, assessment by a
recognised authority to a National or International Standard e.g. ISO 9001, product
certifications obtained and information on potential business engagement. The
policy also includes other controls over vendors, including monitoring, suspension
and blacklisting where necessary. The certification of our vendors in various
management systems demonstrates our commitment to high standards in the
vendor selection.

We recognize that our supply chain can have significant environmental and
social impacts, and we are committed to identifying and addressing these
risks. To identify environmental and social risks along our supply chain, we
have implemented a range of practices, including conducting risk assessments,
engaging with suppliers to understand their sustainability practices and monitoring
supplier performance. We are committed to continuous improvement in our
supply chain management practices and will continue to work with our suppliers
and other stakeholders to promote sustainability and social responsibility along
our supply chain. By doing so, we aim to minimize our environmental and social
impacts, improve our reputation, and contribute to the transition to a more
sustainable and equitable global economy.
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Number of vendors with certifications i

RIE-HERERKS

SREAHEERE

ISO 9001 - Quality management systems

ISO 9001 - MEEBERMA 26
ISO 27001 - BNLZ 2 BE A 24

ISO 27001 - Information security management systems

ISO 20000-1:2018 - IT service management systems ISO 20000-1:2018 - B FLRE SRR 2
ISO 45001:2018 - Occupational health and safety management systems — 1SO 45001:2018 - (B FEAZ2EERMHK 2
ISO 14001:2015 - Environmental management systems ISO 14001:2015 - IRIRBIE R4 1

In our supply chain management, the Group closely monitors risks that may
involve cost control and procurement schedules, and takes appropriate
countermeasures. For example, in China and U.S. trade war and Ukraine crisis,
we provide customer best alternative brands to choose in order to meet their
business opportunities and challenges. At the same time, we have maintained
contact with vendors to obtain the latest information and work together to resolve
difficulties. We implemented paperless Customer Service Report in service team
so as to reduce the environmental impact of our daily operations and offer a wide
range of green solutions.

Additionally, given the increasing global focus on sustainable development, the
Group recognises the importance of managing environmental and social risks in
our supply chain. We have incorporated ESG factors, such as the implementation
of ESG policy and ISO 14001 management system, into our annual top 15 product
vendors evaluation to promote better ESG performance and raise the awareness
of ESG commitment in our supply chain. Going forward, the Group will continue to
monitor our supply chain against environmental and social standards and expand
the scope of our ESG evaluation in due course.

Supply chain constraints are starting to improve by the fourth quarter of 2022
and relieve material shortage slightly. We keep sourcing alternative brands with
similar capability and quality in the market. It gives us opportunities to bring other
alternatives for our customers. Vendors also help recommend new models after
redesigning their products to solve current backlog. Accurate sales forecast and
lead time can make the project on time to decrease unforeseen factors. We are
happy to be informed that our top 15 product vendors are committed to high
standards of ESG performance after includes in vendor evaluation exercise. It
brings our awareness of ESG to our procurement team as well and understand
direction of our Company for this action. Our customers and partners rated ASL
as their most trusted technology partner as over 3,000 customers ranging in
various sizes across all key vertical industries and extensive partnerships with a
wide variety of global vendors of hardware and software.

Social Capital

Against the background of global interconnectedness and integration brought
about by the information age, the Group recognises that any individual or group
in the world, no matter how large or small, has an impact on others. It is only
through solidarity and greater understanding that solutions to the multiple
problems facing society can be found. Therefore, building trust and fostering long-
term relationships are essential for sustainable development.
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Customer Engagement

The Group understands the importance of listening to our customers, and their
opinions can help us to continuously improve our services. We have launched a
policy with a set of procedures to handle customers’ feedbacks or complaints in a
professional manner.

Customers can file complaints in writing or verbally. Upon receipt of a complaint
or feedback, the acknowledgement of complaint case shall be given on receipt
of the complaint by a member of the Customer Care Unit and subsequently our
Customer Care Unit must arrange for it to be dealt with by a dedicated person
and give the customer a response in due course. If necessary, it will also escalate
the feedback or complaint to the appropriate level of management. During the
Reporting Year, there were 8 substantiated complaints received relating to the
provision and use of products and services.

Customer surveys in forms of paper or electronics are available for customers to
express opinions on regular basis. The Group treasures every survey and open to
listen customers' voices. With data collection by relevant parties, the measurement
result of customer satisfaction will be reported to senior management.

Privacy Protection

The Group places importance on customer privacy and all data must be collected,
held, used and processed in a lawful and discreet manner. In accordance with
the IT Security Policy, our employees are required to observe and comply with
the non- disclosure agreement entered into with the Group and the agreements
entered into from time to time between the Group and our customers.

Besides, the Group may collect personal information of different parties through
the enquiry box on the Company's website, and information of candidates or
employees through recruitment or employment. The Privacy Policy Statement and
related Personal Information Collection Statement are set out and uploaded to
the Company's website so that interested parties are notified in a timely manner
before providing their personal information.

Community Investment

The Group takes its commitment to social responsibility and is concerned
with helping the disadvantaged in the communities in which it operates. Our
core subsidiary, ASLHK, has been awarded the Caring Company Award by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service since 2010. During the Reporting Year, the
Company has donated and sponsored to Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare
Council Limited.

For more activities, please refer to “Customer Service Excellence with
Sustainability” on page 3 of the annual report.
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Human Capital

A skilled and stable workforce is the engine of value creation for our stakeholders.
The Group therefore makes significant efforts to attract and retain talent, including
investment in capacity building, fair remuneration and management, and a safe
and healthy working environment. Deeply acknowledging the growing concern
on labour standards and rights, the Group endeavours to promote its new core
values “TRUST" to enhance the corporate culture so as to operate a harmonious
and diversity workplace.

For detailed information about the strategic and core values of the Group, please
refer to the section headed “Quality Policy of ASL" on page 2 of this annual report.

Development and Training

The Group believes that the development of a corporate is inseparable from the
continuous development of its employees. With this in mind, the Group offers
regular training, development programmes and training sponsorship to our

RIE-HERERKS
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Types of Training
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Description
it

Orientation training
eI

Internal on-the-job training

P ERAEREH |

External training
ShEp Il

Orientation is provided to new employees covering the corporate culture, corporate
systems and policies to give them a basic understanding of the different positions.
AMABEERMRECEXE - BERERBERNDHIEN > USHEHREBUESE
KTHE o

Regular training programmes are designed for our employees to support current and
future business development needs.

EREAE D A EEER 2 EERS » UFHERRARARNEHEREFR

To raise the professionalism of IT staff, the Group promotes an e-learning platform where
they can learn hard and soft skills, and are required to take tests related to the learning
content. For the development of non-IT staff, we encourage department heads to maintain
close communication with them to assess their training needs in order to better assist
their professional development and competence.
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Additionally, workshops are offered to management and supervisory staff with the aim of
enhancing their management skills and career development.

SN RERTAEEEREEASRMHASNE > SERSHEERIGAEEERE -

The Group encourages employees to participate in training provided by external
organizations based on their needs. Sponsorship is available to employees who meet
certain conditions set by the Group.
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Staff training for the entire Group amounted to 4,221 hours during the
Reporting Year. Going forward, the Group will establish a more systematic
training management system, further standardise staff training programmes and
formulate relevant management policies.
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Employment System

As of 31st December 2023, the Group had 1,227 employees in the reporting
scope. The following table sets out the number of our employees by employment
category.

1ERHIE

BHE_Z_=F+_A=+—0 > xEBENRSH
BERHEAF12275EE - TREIIAERRESLER
BIDZEEHME -

Number of employees

Employment category EE R EE#AR
Senior Manager AR IE 3
Middle Manager FREARIE 9
Manager FESE 227
Supervisor FE 99
IT professional BRI EEAL 792
Others HAth 97
Total 4zt 1,227

The Group believes that we maintain good working relationships with our
employees and we have not experienced any major labour disputes or difficulties
in recruiting staff. This is thanks to the Group's employment system which
respects and safeguards the labour rights of our employees.

We have internal policies such as a series of Employment Policies that strives to
improve the employment relationship and promotion mechanism, and protect
the rights and interests of our employees. The Group’s employment-related
management practices are detailed below.

Employment-related management practices

BEFIERM EIRER
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Recruitment

1BE

Remuneration
e

Promotion

Bt
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All acts of recruitment are subject to employment-related legislation. Contracts are signed to protect
the rights of both the employers and employees.
FTEREBITANRBHEEREMNNR - ZITEWHARERIREES S 2R -

Different remuneration policies formulated and reviewed by the Human Resources (“HR") Department
are adopted for different categories of employees. In general, employees' salaries include a percentage
of performance incentives, the amount of which will be adjusted based on the Group's performance
and the results of the employees’ appraisals.

AR EERBTRAFHFMEEE - MEBERAANBRIANE RS ERSR - —&iMs @ B8
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The Group follows the principles of consistency, objectivity, fairness and impartiality to conduct regular
performance appraisals for employees as a reference for their promotion. Employees will be promoted
based on merit, with due consideration given to their ability, past performance and potential to take
on new job roles. Department Manager shall submit detailed justifications to support the employee'’s
promotion. Promotion Panel is required for positions at Team Head and above levels.
REBBE-HFH  ATERRENRY > ERHEBETRESZ  (FASANZ2E - EERIE
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Termination of employment
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Working hours and rest period
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Other benefits and welfare
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Equal opportunity, diversity and
anti- discrimination
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Child labour and forced labour
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Communication
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Generally, either the Company or employees should terminate the employment by giving the other
party a notice period according to the agreement set out in the employment contract and completing
the handover procedures by the last working day.

—RME > ARESNEEFRREBERECHNMBZHE  BBOTHR—AENH  TNER—EIFE
AISERL A48 » DUR IR IRRATR ©

The Group is committed to managing employees’ working hours, rest periods and leave in accordance
with our contracts and internal policies.
REBHRNRRBESORANIERERES Z TIERM ~ RERRERERE o

Employees are entitled to paid time off such as annual leave, bereavement leave, marriage leave,
examination leave, jury service leave, maternity and paternity leave. Completion of the leave approval
process is necessary for the approval and payment of paid leave to employees.

EBEZESH KR > NFR - ®R - BR - 5K BEEER  ERAEBER - THAKABRERIEFS
HERENETHIINRZ D EZR o

The statutory benefits for employees, including the Mandatory Provident Fund, are paid in accordance
with local policy requirements and the Group's relevant systems. We also offer job- related allowances,
insurance schemes and share option scheme as company benefits.
BEZRERN(BERFEATER) D RBERMBERRERAER ZBRGIESZ N - AEERTEMHET
TEAERAZ #RE ~ (REERT B RReB IR REST BIME B AR EH -

The Group recognises individual differences as a driver for sustainable development and emphasises
equal opportunities in recruitment or promotion, without discrimination against individuals on the
basis of age, gender, race, family status, sexual orientation, disability, nationality or region.
FEBRRERERAUFELRZEIAR > TRARBEAEARETERS > TRFHE
B~ R~ KERT A TR Bl St E AL AR o

The Group prohibits child labour and forced labour. During the recruitment process, each candidate’s
personal details are confirmed.
AEERILETRBEFH o RERBET » SBEREABRZEABERIIERS

All employees who are required to work overtime or on holiday must be approved in advance by their
supervisors and compensated accordingly.
FIEREZBER LERKNENES » K AFRESTIENE » WESHERE -

There is an open dialogue maintained between the Group and our employees to promote
transparent two-way communication. If there are any comments or suggestions on management and
administration, employees can provide feedback to their supervisors or relevant departments.
FEFRES BRI ARER > WEESHNERER - MESHEERTHAEETAERIES
Pl ESAERAAPI R EE o

In future, the Group will improve its employment-related policies, including more — HAkR#&K » ZEER NS HEFERABER » BT HH
specific guidelines on equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination, to & ~ Zpib AR IEIE S mIENFEE5| » UEIFH#
better maintain a diverse and equal working environment. HRF—EZT L BEFEMNITIEIRIE ©
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Health and Safety

Work related injuries and occupational health issues are not significant risk factors
due to the nature of our business. Nevertheless, the Group places importance on
providing a safe, healthy and high-quality workplace and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

With the view to ensuring the safety of our employees, the Group has defined the
safety responsibilities of the Administration Department to identify dangerous
risks and factors in the workplace and to take effective preventive and control
measures, including occasional monitoring and review of safety and security
management and regular inspections of the entire office to ensure that furniture,
fixtures and equipment are well maintained and replaced when necessary to
avoid unnecessary physical injury. In addition, first aid kits are available at an
easily-accessible location on every floor of the entire office.

On top of this, the Group wants to evolve from the traditional focus on the
physical safety risks towards a concept of a healthy and pleasant working
environment in our occupational health and safety programme. We prohibit
smoking throughout the office, including enclosed offices, meeting rooms and
other open areas, while maintaining proper lighting and ventilation to safeguard
the health of our employees. In addition, we promote health awareness and
habits among our employees through internal training and newsletters. The
Group has also organised events to improve work-life balance and strengthen
employee relations.

Natural Capital

The community has called on business to engage in the implementation and
achievement of the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs),
specifically Goal 13: Climate Change, to promote greater global ambition in
mitigation and adaptation actions. In the face of Hong Kong's 2050 carbon
neutrality target, the Group is also stepping up efforts to address the challenge
of climate change, using resources responsibly and wisely, and managing our
impacts vigilantly, in the hope to run our business sustainably.

Management of Emissions and Use of Resources

The Group is committed to complying with all applicable laws and regulations,
such as the Waste Disposal Ordinance, the Air Pollution Control Ordinance
and the Water Pollution Control Ordinance, and to going beyond minimum
requirements to manage and reduce environmental impacts of our day-to-day
operations, fostering an environmental responsible operating culture at each of
our sites. To this end, we have established specific management guidelines and
measures based on our Environmental Policy.
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Emissions of Greenhouse Gases and Air Pollutants

During the Reporting Year, we generate greenhouse gas emissions mainly from
purchased electricity and fuel consumed by company vehicles. Below are the
assess the Group's greenhouse gas emissions, including carbon dioxide, methane
and nitrous oxide:

RIE-HERERKS

=R R E RS RYIBE

RESFER > 2EEZREREHREZRINE
BB NIRRT EEHFEME o TS ERERN
HEREHNEEE AN RlirKkaltng) !

Emissions
(Tonnes of CO?
Equivalent)

R EME_R{tRER)

Scope

&=

Scope 1 Direct Emission #HE1BEHIN
Scope 2 Indirect Emission 1 [E 2 BN

BERBETIRE
BERBHIRZE
(B—2CIREE EB)

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity
(tonnes of CO? equivalent/employee)

4.78
1,133.52
1,138.30

1.7512

Since vehicle use also generates air pollutants, the Group has also quantified the
relevant emissions to monitor our impact on the environment.

HREWERTEELEZRSRY  AEETEE
CAERISE B U R IR A MR & -

Type Emissions (Kilograms)
= B E(AF)
Nitrogen Oxides a8ty 0.88
Sulphur Oxides ety 0.03
Respiratory Suspended Particles IR R LT 0.07

In line with our goal to minimize greenhouse gas and air emissions, the Group
has further adopted video conferencing system to replace its previous physical
meetings. In addition, half of the company vehicles are electric. These measures
have further reduced our emissions.

REGRMBAVEERERERFNZER > &
HE—FRBREGERR > URABENERES
oo ItIh » ARB—FHEFWABIE o LFHEHE
E—PROAERZHFNE -
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Waste

For the disposal of hazardous waste generated in Hong Kong, the Company has
registered as a Chemical Waste Producer under the Waste Disposal (Chemical
Waste) (General) Regulation and sends the waste to specialists for recycling.
In addition, under the principle of waste reduction at source, the Group has
promoted various waste management measures and ensures that relevant
employees are aware of the disposal requirements for hazardous and non-
hazardous waste. During the Reporting Year, we have taken the following
measures to minimise the waste generated from office operations.

nou

Applied the “3R" principle of “reduce”, “reuse” and “recycle” to manage wastes;

Encourage paper conservation by printing on both sides of office papers and
reusing one-side printed papers;

Applied the use of electronic document for document issuance and
notification to promote a paperless office environment;

Redeployed usable and suitable office furniture within the Group to reduce
the amount of material going to landfill;

Sent used batteries to specialists for recycling; and

Reused or recycled computer parts through the selection of a team of
engineers, and sent parts and materials that the Group cannot reuse to
specialist for further recycling.

The Group analyses the use of resources and the generation of waste on a
regular annual basis. During the Reporting Year, the Group's office operations
generated 4.671 tonnes of hazardous waste, consisting mainly of used batteries
and fluorescent light bulbs, which were collected and disposed of by qualified
contractors. As for non- hazardous waste, it mainly consisted of paper and used
computer parts, with a total weight of 4.72 tonnes, lower than in the previous
year.
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Energy and Water

A range of internal control policies and procedures have been adopted to improve
the efficiency of our resource consumption, including energy. For example, we
promote green office practices such as using high-performance and high-quality
all-in-one “multifunction printers” that combine the functions of printer, scanner
and copier in one device to minimise the power consumption of a large number
of devices; using new digital automatic water dispenser to reduce the demand on
bottle water and the use of plastic bottles; and using energy-efficient lights in all
office areas. Environmental Policy is available on the Company’s intranet which is
accessible to all employees.

During the Reporting Year, total electricity consumption of our offices in Hong
Kong was approximately 2,806 MWh. Compared to last year, total energy
consumption increased due to increase in manpower and electrical appliances. In
terms of water consumption, the Hong Kong office operations consumed a total
of approximately 414 m? of water, which represents a 95% increase compared to
2022.

Moving forward, we will further strengthen education on resource conservation
and emissions reduction and will continue to monitor resource consumption
and make improvements to the policy, such as conserving water management,
based on the principle of “materiality”. At the same time, we will use the data
from the Reporting Year as a basis for setting improvement measures and energy
conservation and emission reduction targets.

Management of Environmental and Climate Risks

The Earth's climate is changing and has impacts on several aspects of our
stakeholders, company operations and communities. Average temperatures rise,
climate science finds that acute hazards such as heat waves and floods grow
in frequency and severity and chronic hazards, such as drought and rising sea
levels, intensify. To address the climate change, we identified that environmental
conservation is the most important part to our society. An Environmental Policy
(including climate change elements) has been established and the Group is
committed to take all possible actions to reduce the impact, such as conserving
resources, reducing carbon footprint, minimising waste. To capitalize on these
possibilities and monitor the dangers, the Group has been closely analyzing the
impacts of climate change. The Environment Policy will be reviewed once annually
so that the Group may assess any updated environmental risk of our business
and, where necessary, take preventive measures to mitigate them and ensure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

RIE-HERERKS

RETR B2 #E7K

FEECRA-RIABEFNBRREFLIRAE
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WMABEE > NERASEEREENSEZS—TZINEY
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RIRFREMAELEERIRER - RIFEERENE
NEINEHE > PR REESE -
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#2,806 K FLEs o BEATEFARLL > AEIRUHFERRER AL
ERRESRIENMARTEI - #KEHE > FEM
NEEEHFEKGAT4ITT R BB T FIEN
95% °

=2 AEBERE—D MR E RO KRS
ZHE > WREEREBETE2ME MR EZEERH
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REHEEN > M2 TE LAFEEXEN
EIE - BT EREREZE > RADARIBFRER
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RIE-HERERKS

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

Environmental

Key environmental performance indicators

RAEIRIR AREIR

Unit
B

REHE

R

2023
—=2_=

2022
—=2_-

Nitrogen oxides kg 0.88 0.81
afty N
Sulphur oxides kg 0.03 0.01
et N
Respiratory suspended particles kg 0.07 0.06
M ORFeF HLF N

Scope 1 Direct emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 4.78 1.60
EBE BRI MR EEHRES
Scope 2 Energy indirect emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 1,133.52 985.30
HBE 28RN MR SERER
Total GHG emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 1,138.30 986.90
BEREEHINE ME—SEERER
GHG intensity (by area) tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/sgm 0.1423 0.1234
BEREEE(ZEIE) ME_EEIRER,THK
GHG intensity (by employee) tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/ 1.7512 1.5183
RERBREGRRES) employee

Mm_AtEE [’

Total hazardous waste tonnes 4.61 1.47
BEERYEE nig

Hazardous waste intensity (by area) tonnes/sgm 0.00058 0.00018
BEEEYZEER) Mg, 75K

Hazardous waste intensity (by employee) tonnes/employee 0.00709 0.00226
BEBEEYZEESR) L ]
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Key environmental performance indicators

RREIRI R RUEIR

Unit
B

2023
—2_=

2022
kS

Total non-hazardous waste tonnes 4.72 56.72
BERERYES iR

Non-hazardous waste intensity (by area) tonnes/sgm 0.00059 0.00709
BERERYZERBEE) WE, 75K

Non-hazardous waste intensity (by employee)| tonnes/employee 0.00726 0.08726
BERERYEERES) nE RS

Petrol MWh 17 6
b KRB

Electricity MWh 2,806 2,441
=5 JEEBF

Total energy consumption MWh 2,823 2,447
AERHAEMRE IEELBF

Energy intensity (by area) MWh/sgm 0.3530 0.3060
FERHERE(RER) JEEE, K

Energy intensity (by employee) MWh/employee 4.3435 3.7649
SERHERE(RES) KEE BE

Total water consumption m? 414 212
HEFEKE K
Water intensity (by area) m3/sgm 0.0518 0.0265
FERBE(RER) LK TFHK
Water intensity (by employee) m?3/employee 0.6369 0.3262
FEXBEZES) UBEKRE

Notes: Mf5E

2. Emission factor is referenced to the Stock Exchange “How to prepare an ESG Report = 2. HEEFSEBZFMAINAEEFRE M REARS

Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs". - MR RIRRARA NS RERIES]
3. Scope 1 includes emissions from the consumption of fossil fuels by vehicles; Scope 2 3.  EENSIEEHFHNELCAMREEENTIKE ; BE2E

EMAEHEEEENELNENE - A TF2E
B2 PRI AIEBIRIE B REARS - MR 1R
BRRENIERERISS I R PE R = AIRRER
|E -

includes emissions from the consumption of purchased electricity in offices. Emission
factor is referenced to the Stock Exchange “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” and CLP 2023 Sustainability Report.
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Social

Key social performance indicators

R+t FAREEIT

Male 920
By gender S5
Eicgil Female 307
pogi
Below 35 528
35U
By age group 35-45 337
RERAER) 35 BEAS 5
Above 45 362
45 sl E
Full-time 1,192
By employment type e
BEEEE Part-time 35
Eidig
Total 1,227
“ast

Male 54
By gender S
el Female 12
g3
Below 35 36
35 BT
By age group 35-45 16
BEEAER 35pR E455%
Above 45 14
45 A
Full-time 60
By employment type E3L
REEEE Part-time 6
FM
Total 66
“ast
Notes: st

4. Allemployees were in Hong Kong.

5. All other workers, i.e. secondment staff, worked in Hong Kong.
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Key social performance indicators
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RIE-HERERKS

Male 27%
By gender S
ikl Female 32%
fegis
Below 35 40%
35U
By age group 35-45 31%
LEE AR 355 £455%
Above 45 18%
45 A £
Total 31%
“ast

Work-related injuries (employees) 3
THEZEES)
Lost days due to work-related injuries (employees) 119
AT EEZEEE)BRIEEH
Male 73%
By gender B
gkl Female 27%
pogi
Senior Manager 0%
EARASIR
Middle Manager 10%
AL
Manager 25%
By employee category A
#REE4ER Supervisor 22%
FE
IT professional 42%
HRRREEAL
Others 1%
HAth
Total 39%
485t
Note: BEE

6.  There were no work-related fatalities in the past three years (including the Reporting 6.

Year).

RBE=FEFEREFE)N  WEE T FREERN
FETEZE -
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Key social performance indicators

PR EIRRUEIR

By region
e

Male 3.59
By gender S
Eicgail Female 3.02
pogi
Senior Manager 0.00
= ARAEIE
Middle Manager 21.00
thigAgIE
Manager 4.65
By employee category R
ZEE1E5! Supervisor 14.62
TE
IT professional 1.88
BRRREEAL
Others 0.42
E Al
Total 3.44
“ast

Australia

BN

7

Belgium
EEFI B

Canada
mEX

Mainland China
FRET P il

Denmark
EES

Germany
T8

Hong Kong
HE

India

HE

Ireland
gl

Macau
P

Philippines
JEEE
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R FAERUEIR
Total suppliers

R4
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RIE-HERERKS

By region
Eicule

Romania

BEEER

Singapore

N

Taiwan

]
a0/

Thailand
B35

United Kingdom
ESE

u.s.
=

21

Finland

g e

o>

Cambodia

RIEFE

Malaysia
FS2RPEER

Netherlands
I

Russia

AR

By type
Eie it

Service

A&7

458

Hardware
e

219

Total
“aEt

677
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING
GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

Aspects

Em

A1 Emissions

ATHERRD

Description
it

Bt FR(IRIR - B R ERES
R NI b ]

General Disclosure

—ARHEEE

Information on:

BRERARERBEIHN « mKRIMHNEES BER

BEBEYNELSH

(@) the policies; and
B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
BTFHETABEAXENHAZEZERRAINE

66-67

A1

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

R R SR R AR B o

67,70

Al1.2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions and intensity.
BEEEE)RERBZEE)EEREBIRNERTE -

67,70

Al13

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

FRELREREMRERTE -

68, 70

Al.4

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
PRELEZRERVRERTE -

69, 71

A15

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

HPPRET S BIBENE B IR e A E 2 B R B R PR EX Ry &
BR o

67-68

A1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HREEBEESRBEEEYNA L > RIERFTETILAVA
B2 B iR ERI B B ARFT RIS BR o

67-68
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Aspects Description Remark
=[] it fEst
A2 Use of Resources
A2ERER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including 69
—AR energy, water and other raw materials.
BMERBREIEER ~ KREAMMFEMEIEE o
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in 69, 71
total and intensity.
LB DNERER,SREEEREEERTE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 69, 71
BIEKEBREE °
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and 66-69
steps taken to achieve them.
HPLPRET S B SRR AR M o B AR Fe A1 B B R B ARFTIR
925 8% o
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing There were no
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) issues in sourcing
set and steps taken to achieve them. water fit for purpose.
SR EE A KR ER] BRI - MURFRETIZBY A K EEUBRAACRAE
Wk B AR Fe S EE B A B B ARPT SRERAY D 88 o A RE ©
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and The use of
per unit produced. packaging materials
K mPTAEEMENEE RS EESBIEE - is irrelevant to the
Group's operating
businesses.
BEM IR
fERREAERER
EEEGER -
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
AIRFREXAE R
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on 66
— AR R the environment and natural resources.
EETABIRIE R RARERENEARTZ EIEER -
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on 66-69

the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

I EREHHIRIERRAERNEALERBRNE
BERZENITE o
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Aspects Description Remark

L it i

A4 Climate Change

AARIREME

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant 69
—ARREE climate-related issues which have impacted, and those

which may impact, the issuer.
HAREHERRIEEHETAELEREBNERRE
BRI ERYECR o

A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues 69
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BRI EEHETAELERENEARBEERSE
B REHTE -

B1 Employment

B1{E{#
General Disclosure Information on: 56-57, 63-66
—ARIEE BRAFHMN SRR ~ B RS ~ TERE -~ BRI 7%
HE ~ Ll - RIERUKREMGBREF :
(@) the policies; and
BH; &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
BYHETAREARENEMEREAROINE
H o
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group 64,72

and geographical region.

2R ~ ERIER « FiRER RtE DR EERH
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 73
geographical region.

LR~ FEARRI R E R DBV E SRR LR -

78 Annual Report 2023 £k



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERKRS

Aspects Description Remark
=[] it s
B2 Health and Safety
B2fg A EE
General Disclosure Information on: 56, 66
—AR BRREZETFRERREREHCHELEBEN :
(@) the policies; and
B &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
BFHETAREARENEREZERROINSE
B o
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred There were no
in each of the past three years including the reporting work-related
year. fatalities in the
BE=ZF(BREERFE)SFRITHRNIAGURILE - past three years
(including the
Reporting Year).
RBE=F
(BERSEE)RN
G # R TERR R
ERIBISETEZ ©
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 73
ATHBEETIERE -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 66
adopted, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
FHVLPRERARN BB 25 (R BR B 2 2 4570 » LU ABRABNIT fe B
BFE
B3 Development and Training
B3% B R iE:
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills 63
—AR IR R for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
BRRAHEERTT LIFR SRR M R SEBIEUR © H#it
HIIEE o
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 73
employee category.
BRI R EEEMNBHNZINRBEB DL
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 74
gender and employee category.
BURKREEHEMNE D > BEEETMTINNFIIE
B o
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Aspects Description Remark
L it i
B4 Labour Standards
B4% T8
General Disclosure Information on: 56-57, 65
—AR AR L E TR %55 TR :
(@) the policies; and
B &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
BFHETAREARENEREZERROINSE
Bl o
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment 65
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
et g T R S 18 B BV FE 1 LABE S B T Re 5 lIE5 T o
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices The Group did not
when discovered. encounter such
Rt S IRER B R RDHIRE RIS PR EREBV 2 BY - practices during the
Reporting Year.
FEENREFERN
WK IR LRI
B5 Supply Chain Management
B5{FESEE IR
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of 60-61
—Ae I the supply chain.
BB HEENIRIE RS BREBEE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 74-75
e d O HEEEE o
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 61
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
HA BRI RHEERNES > mERTERIEGAMHE
BHE > URBBRITRERGE -
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 60-61
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
AR HEESERANRIERT T RRNIE
Bl > DURABRE T R BEZRT5 0% ©
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 61

environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

R EREHERRRESBRAERKRBHIED -
DB ABRAAIT R BRZE 5% ©
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Aspects

Em

B6 Product Responsibility

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE-HERERKRS

Description
it

Remark

f&sk

B6EMEE
General Disclosure Information on: 56-59, 62
—ARIEEE BREMEHERNRBNERAZE - BS ~ REKL
IREE UM ERN
(@) the policies; and
B &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
BFHETAREARENEREZERROINSE
B o
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to The issue is
recalls for safety and health reasons. irrelevant to the
EEHBEXE RGP AL 2 E R RMmER A Group's operating
Bt businesses.
bR RE S A= E R
EEERER -
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints 62
received and how they are dealt with.
BERAN B R RFF RV R BB LU EE 5 7% ©
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and 59
protecting intellectual property rights.
it B R R IE A B A RABYIE D) o
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall The Group was not
procedures. involved in any
ML E ST IR & ERBIBIZRE © recall procedures.
REE W ED K
] E fa[l WHE T °
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 59, 62

policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.
U B E B RHRIE RAAREER » WU ERAHIT R EEE
J378 ©
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RIE-HERELBRS

Aspects Description Remark
RE it i
B7 Anti-corruption
B7IR&ES
General Disclosure Information on: 56-57
—ARHEEE BRI LEERRE ~ Bh3R ~ BREFROSAREEN ¢
(@) the policies; and
B &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BFHETAREARENEREZERROINSE
Bl o
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 57
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RERMARNBETARHESRE T ERENE SR
ZBHE ReafrahiE R o
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 57
procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
R B I R B RAZ T - LURABRIIT R B E2 75 0% o
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to 57

directors and staff.
MiEEERETRENRESE

B8 Community Investment

B8t ERHE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the 53,62
—HR R needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BREMMHE2ERT REBEMTHEREMNBREER
EEFEERMENEAIEES o
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 62
S EEEE o
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 62
EEFHEMBBER ©
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services. The principal activities of its major subsidiaries and
associates are set out in Notes 46 and 22, respectively, to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2023 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 103 and 104 of this annual report respectively.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) recommended the payment of a final
dividend of 3.0 HK cents per share held by the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members on Wednesday, 12th June 2024
for the year ended 31st December 2023 (2022: 3.0 HK cents per share).

2024 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting on
Wednesday, 29th May 2024. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Friday, 24th May 2024 to Wednesday, 29th May 2024, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the branch share registrar
and transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre,16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 23rd May 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business during the year, a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2023 and an indication of
likely future development in the Group's business as required under Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Chief Executive Officer's
Statement” on pages 8 to 11 and 12 to 19 of this annual report respectively. For
the financial key performance indicators for an understanding of the development,
performance or position of the Group's business, it can also be found under the
same sections and the “Financial Summary” on page 7 of this annual report.
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EFEHRS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In addition, discussion on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with the Group's key stakeholders as well as compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group are set
out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 51 to 82.

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the year, there was no
materials breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group.

To achieve the Company's vision of becoming the most competitive entity in
Asia information technology (“IT") sector, strengthening business practices in
environmental protection and corporate social responsibilities are always an
integral part of the Group's corporate business strategy.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year ended
31st December 2023 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity on pages 107 to 108 of this annual report.

As at 31st December 2023, the Group's special reserve and retained earnings
totalled approximately HK$1,416,934,000 (2022: HK$1,310,147,000).

The Company's reserves are available for distribution to the shareholders as at
31st December 2023 included special reserve and retained earnings totaling
approximately HK$104,924,000 (2022: HK$99,099,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 371st December 2023, addition to (also included the
amount of reassessment of lease term and lease modification, if applicable)
property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately HK$18,846,000 (2022:
HK$59,460,000).

Details of these and other movements during the year ended 31st December

2023 in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of the Group's purchases and sales attributable to major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

During the year ended 31st December 2023, the five largest customers and single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 31.0% and 12.5%
of the Group's revenue from continuing operations respectively. The five largest
suppliers and single largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately
40.6% and 16.1% of the Group's purchases from continuing operations
respectively.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2023 did a Director, an associate
of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of the Company’s issued shares) had
an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share movements during the year ended 31st December 2023 in
share capital of the Company are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Executive Directors
Wang Weihang
Wang Yueou

Non-Executive Directors
Cui Yong (resigned on 24th May 2023)
Zhang Bingxia (appointed on 24th May 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pan Xinrong

Deng Jianxin

Or Siu Ching Rerina

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company, Mr. Wang Weihang and Mr.
Deng Jianxin will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Ms. Zhang Bingxia, being a Director appointed by the Board during the year,
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting pursuant to the
Company's Bye-law 102(B). Ms. Zhang, being eligible, offer herself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting held on 29th May 2024.
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EFEHRS

DIRECTO RS (Continued)

As at the date of this report, each of the Directors has entered into a service
contract or a letter of appointment with the Company. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent. Please also
see page 41 of the “Corporate Governance Report” for the assessment by the
Nomination Committee in this regard.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS' INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of
Directors of the Company are set out below:

Details of changes

1. Shanghai Debimai Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd.# (/&84

IRib = EIBEHAERAE) and Shenzhen Zhuoyi Management Consulting
Co., Ltd” (R Rlz EIRFEH AR AF) of which Mr. Deng Jianxin serves as
chairman and executive director were deregistered in April and December
2023 respectively.

#  For identification purpose only

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected and Related Party
Transactions” below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company or his/her
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year ended 31st December 2023 or at any time during the year.
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EFETHRS

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING EENHRREFZES

BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31st December
2023, the following Directors were considered to have interests in the businesses
which competed or be likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, particulars of which are set out below:

RIFEEHRAESNOFRE > RBEZZT =5+
“R=+—HLEFEAR  UTESHIA/EEIMH
EREREERXBERRF A EREEBESH
B2 FH R o HEFBEIINT

Name of Director

EEpE

Name of the entities which were
considered to compete or likely
to compete with the businesses
of the Group

B A BT EEERBME
AREERERPEZBRRE

Description of businesses of the
entities which were considered to
compete or likely to compete with
the businesses of the Group
WA R EEERBM A
BRRPEZBRZ EHHL

Nature of Director’s
interest in the entities

EEnaSERz RS

Wang Weihang

M

Wang Yueou

TEB

Cui Yong (resigned on

24th May 2023)

EEW-E_=F
EAZA+ AT

Zhang Bingxia (appointed
on 24th May 2023)

RRE(F_E_=F
LA+ RAEZEE)

Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd.

("“Teamsun”)

IREBRERKROERAT
(TEEBRAL)

Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited
(“Hong Kong Teamsun”)

EBRARR(FE) BRAT
(FEBEB XM

Certain subsidiaries of Teamsun

EBRBZETHEAR

Teamsun

EBRM

Teamsun

EBRM

Teamsun

EBRM

IT product service, application software
development, value-added distribution and
system integration

BRI ERRT « BRREXHRMARE
BENFERARES

Window company of Teamsun in Hong Kong
and mainly provides administrative support
to the clients of Teamsun in the PRC and
Hong Kong

EBFANEEBREAE > TERAEBRMZ
ERRPEREBRETESE

IT related
HERAERR R

IT product service, application software
development, value-added distribution and
system integration

B E R ~ BRAREHRGRE
RENBERERES

IT product service, application software
development, value-added distribution and
system integration

B E R « BRAEIHRGRE
REDNBERERES

IT product service, application software
development, value-added distribution and
system integration

B E R « BRAEHRGRE
REDNBERERES

Chairman, director and
substantial shareholder

BEER EERIERRE

Sole director

M—E%
Director
%

Director

5%

General manager of
key client accounts
business (division 1)

RE P EH—BHRKE
Chief Financial Officer and
Senior Vice-President

ERMBERSMEEH

Pan Xinrong Shanghai Boke Information Software engineering automation research Independent Director
Technology Co., LTD management and new generation of IT service
BN LEBREARNARAT EERMEIREEHCMERN—NEERMRYE BiIEE

HREFEBINERARNZEFTERULEEM
BENEFE > AEEBIUN ERATZERL
NFEBTAFRRETR

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid
companies, and as none of the above Directors controls the Board, the Group is
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
businesses of the aforesaid companies.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31st December 2023, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which the Directors and chief executives of the
Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be

EFRREITHASZRGRK
1ERARR (R Z

RIZZ=ZF+"B=+—H > EFKFRTAES
ﬁEZAEE"$’AT&HEH$E EE(EERBHF K
1B (EREBIES71%) (BHERIMEHR)E
X\/.%‘B)Zﬁxfn BRIRMN RERETES (R)ERE
BHERAIERGIEXVEIE 78D EVAN G AR B K
B PT 2 EE BOK A (BERIRE SRR ERE 2 %
FHRXEFRARBERSTHRABRRRNEFRH
BzREEXR) ; W(Q)EREESRAERME
I2MEAABATHF B MATCH 2 e m g
2 RAERB(EFETAERTETESSH

FE‘E?H‘J» (TERAEESF R ARG A A B R M2 2 1

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange (“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ FxXBE(EERESTHASZKM KBRS
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as follows: 21&5 DRI S
(a) Shares (8) Refp
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total  shareholding
E £ fB AL Rk REE Efth g RESEN
Teamsun, the ultimate holding company of Wang Weihang 43,717,039 - - - 43,717,039 3.99%
the Company Té4M
EBRN 0 ARFZREERAT
Teamsun Zhang Bingxia 250,000 - - - 250,000 0.02%
Grid Dynamics Holdings, Inc. (‘GDH") Wang Weihang 30,954 - - - 30954 0.04%
T
Wang Yueou 30954 - - - 30954 0.04%
TE&
(b) Underlying shares (Z) +ERFARR1R
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total  shareholding
G gz fBARE K L5+ Efth g RESSENM
The Company Wang Yueou 4,620,000% - - - 4,620,000 0.55%
FAF) TER
GDH Wang Yueou 42397 - - - 42397 0.06%
TEE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1. Common stock of GDH granted under the restricted stock units of GDH.

2. Share options to acquire ordinary shares of the Company under a share option scheme 2. RIZ—t&HE=A+=HFRMZ BREEETDH
adopted on 13th March 2017, further details of which are set out in section headed

“Share Schemes" below.

3. Stock options to subscribe for shares of common stock of GDH under the equity 3. 1REGDHR - _ZE= ANA4EMZ RERE 3

incentive plan of GDH effective on 4th March 2020.

4. Mr. Cui Yong resigned as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from 24th 4. BBERENR_ZT_ =R _+NEARTIAATZIE
May 2023 and the outstanding share options which he was entitled to exercise shall
automatically lapse according to the 2017 Share Option Scheme. Further details of Mr.
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ESRERITHRASZRAK

AR IR 2 @
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1. RIBGOHEZRFIRM EMSBZ T2 GOHEERS

e

TRIDSTBI—&N ©

SREEGDHE BRI HIFB AR

Cui's share option are set out in the section headed “2017 Share Option Scheme” below. HBEHN T ZE—FERE R o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2023, none of the Directors and the  BR EXFRitEN » RZZ-_=F+-_HA=+—H >
chief executives of the Company had any Directors' and Chief Executives’ Interests i EEFERAATDRSTHAEEETNESEAER

in Shares and Underlying Shares.

SITBABZRMRABRERMN Z -
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SHARE SCHEMES

A.

2017 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2017 Share Option
Scheme”) on 13th March 2017. The 2017 Share Option Scheme will expire on
12th March 2027. A summary of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is as follows:

The purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Company and/or the subsidiaries to subscribe for
ordinary shares of par value HK$0.10 each of the Company. The eligible
participants include any employee, executive or officer of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries (including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors of each of the abovementioned companies).

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
as at 13th March 2017, the date of approval of the adoption of the 2017
Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2017 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The total
number of shares of the Company available for issue under the 2017 Share
Option Scheme is 52,618,335, representing 10% and 6.31% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
adoption of the 2017 Share Option Scheme and as at the date of this annual
report, respectively. As at the date of this report, the number of issued
shares of the Company was 833,696,492. The number of options available for
grant under the 2017 Share Option Scheme as at 1st January 2023 and 31st
December 2023 is 17,543,435, representing 2.1% of total number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this report.

As at 31st December, 2023, the remaining life of the 2017 Share Option
Scheme was 3 years and 2 months.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each eligible participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue and the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to a substantial shareholder
of the Company or an Independent Non-Executive Director, or any of their
respective associates (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 0.1% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue and with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million.
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SHARE SCHEMES (Continued)
A. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The Board may at its absolute
discretion impose any minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which must be
achieved by the eligible participant before the option can be exercised. The
period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the
Directors at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and shall be at least the
higher of:

(@) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets on the date an offer is made;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date an offer is made; and

() the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Details of the 2017 Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 38(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Report

EFETHRS

iR stEl

A.

“T—tEHEREHE @

E%ﬂtﬂﬁﬁﬁy%%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ HERRE St —+ARR

» BMEEREHEBAR N 1IBITEANE -
é%AT%ﬁEm BHEINR R IER FITRATS
ER2REAREBREZEOREHRE,
HERED TITEAGERSHERER A
ARTER - AITEBREZHARBHERF
ER2RNBETE  EEERE-FZREN
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The following table discloses movements in the Company's share options KRB ZB— T FRERESTEIE T 2 ERER
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme during the year: fﬁfgﬁng{@jm}? :
Number of share options
BREYE
Vesting Period At st Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled At 31st
Date of and Exercise January during during during during December
grant Period Exercise 2023 the year the year the year the year 2023
Participants b BES Pricc RZEZZ REE REE REE REE RIBZ=
2% kRS RiTfEm ik —-BA-H ARt RfTiE AFS mi# +-B=+-B
HK$
AT
Directors
Es
Wang Yueou 3132017 (Note 1) 0970 4,620,000 - - - - 4,620,000
TEB (k1)
CuiYong 3132017 (Note 1) 0970 1320,000? - - (1,320,000) - -
£5 (FzE1)
Other Employees ~ 31.3.2017 (Note 1) 0970 10,330,925 - - (118,800) - 10,212,125
Hftfeg (FizEn)
2842017 (Note 1) 0.909 7,260,000 - - - - 7,260,000
(Mi5ET)
13.12.2017 (Note 1) 0867 503400 - - - - 503,400
GED!
Total 24034325 - - (1,438,800) - 22,595,525
ot
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SHARE SCHEMES (continued) R EtEl @

A. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) A. ZE—tFRREHI @
Notes: BT -

On 31st March 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of
19,140,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.28. The share
options are divided into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the
share options and is associated with performance targets within a specific financial
period, the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
31st March 2017.

On 28th April 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of
6,500,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.20. The share
options are divided into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the
share options and is associated with performance targets within a specific financial
period, the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
28th April 2017.

On 13th December 2017, the Company granted share options to certain eligible
participants under the 2017 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for a total of
1,388,000 shares of the Company at the exercise price of HK$1.04. The share
options are divided into four tranches, each of which consists of one fourth of the
share options and is associated with performance targets within a specific financial
period, the details of which are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
13th December 2017.

The vesting period and exercise period of each tranche of the share options
granted on 31st March 2017, 28th April 2017 and 13th December 2017,
respectively, are as follows:

N TE—EtF=ZA=+—0 > xRFARE_ZT—
TEBRESINETAERSAERHER
7 > URBREE 19,140,000 A A B RRA » 1716
BR1.2887T - RUZBRES(FOH > SHE
EOo—ERERBEEMBHRBNZ KRR
RER > FERERAATDERA T —tEF=
A=+—HZRER -

RIZ2—tHEMBZ+N\B » ARARE_ZZ—
TFEEREFENETEERSREREER
> LISRHE & $£6,500,00008 & A B IR1D » 1T1EE
12087 - BMEZ BERESETM - SHtEE
Ma—2 BRERAFEMHBIHERZ RRERZ
R HBEENRAARBRHEAZES—tENA
ZHNHZAER

RIB—tHF+ZA+=8 > x2FRE-FT—
TEBRESINETAERSEERHER
# > LIS G 11,388,000/ A A BRI » 1T6EE
#1.04870 - BHZ BRED(FOHL - SHtEE
ma—zEREREBEMHZRENZRFEER
AR FERENRARBBBA T —LHF+Z
A+=A22ER-

DRR_B—tE=R=+—H  ZF—tFEN
BT+ N\BERZEB—tHF+-A+=HRHZE
R BB RITEIAMT ¢

Percentage of options
of each tranche shall
be exercisable

Date of grant Tranches Vesting Period Exercise Periods FithEGRE
EHAHN R 5B 1T{EHA AIFTEZBSLE
31.3.2017 First tranche 31.3.2017 to & 1.4.2019 31.3.2017 to & 30.3.2027 50%
it 1.4.2018 to = 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2019 to & 30.3.2027 25%

Second tranche 28.3.2018 to =E 1.4.2020 28.3.2018 to & 30.3.2027 50%

ETHE 1.4.2019 to & 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2020 to & 30.3.2027 25%

Third tranche 20.3.2019to = 1.4.2021 20.3.2019 to %F 30.3.2027 50%

E=Ht 1.4.2020 to & 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2021 to & 30.3.2027 25%

Fourth tranche 25.3.2020to & 1.4.2022 25.3.2020 to & 30.3.2027 50%

E2lukiss 1.4.2021 to & 30.3.2027 25%

1.4.2022 to & 30.3.2027 25%
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SHARE SCH EM ES (Continued)

A. 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

1. (Continued)

Date of grant Tranches
bbb RN

Vesting Period
SEE

iR stEl
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MiEE (%)

1. @@

Exercise Periods
1T1ERA

Percentage of options
of each tranche shall
be exercisable
ZHERERRIE
AIFTEZESL

28.4.2017 First tranche

Bt

Second tranche
FH

Third tranche
E=H

Fourth tranche
YUk

13.12.2017 First tranche

it

Second tranche
FTHt

Third tranche
B

Fourth tranche

1.6.2018 to & 1.6.2020

1.6.2019 to & 1.6.2021

1.6.2020 to & 1.6.2022

1.6.2021 to & 1.6.2023

1.4.2019 to & 1.4.2021

1.4.2020 to & 1.4.2022

1.4.2021 to & 1.4.2023

1.4.2022 to & 1.4.2024

1.6.2018 to & 27.4.2027
1.6.2019 to = 27.4.2027
1.6.2020 to % 27.4.2027

1.6.2019 to & 27.4.2027
1.6.2020 to ZE 27.4.2027
1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027

1.6.2020 to % 27.4.2027
1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027
1.6.2022 to & 27.4.2027

1.6.2021 to & 27.4.2027
1.6.2022 to & 27.4.2027
1.6.2023 to & 27.4.2027

1.4.2019 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2020 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027

1.4.2020 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027

1.4.2021 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2023 to & 12.12.2027

1.4.2022 to & 12.12.2027
142023 to & 12.12.2027
1.4.2024 to &£ 12.12.2027

50%
25%
25%

50%
25%
25%

50%
25%
25%

50%
25%
25%

50%
25%
25%

50%
25%
25%

50%
25%
25%

50%
25%
25%

The share options shall lapse automatically and not be exercisable (to the extent
not already exercised) after three months from the date of resignation (i.e. 24th
May 2023) of Mr. Cui Yong as a Non-Executive Director of the Company according

The closing prices of the shares of the Company immediately before 31st March
2017, 28th April 2017 and 13th December 2017 on which the share options
were granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme were HK$1.25, HK$1.08 and

There was no share option exercised during the year ended 31st December 2023,
the weighted average closing price of the share of the Company immediately

St

2.

to the 2017 Share Option Scheme.
3.

HK$0.90 per share of the Company, respectively.
4.

before the dates on which the share options were exercised was not applicable.
5.

Given that no share option was granted during the year, the number of shares that
may be issued in respect of options granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme
during the year divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue is nil.

2.

RIE-ZT—tEBERIED > ZBRESEES
FERERRABFATEERH AR =
=ZFHER—+TWH)EF=ZERREBHRUKRT
BT (L RITEE BR) ©

REE_Z—+tHF=B=+—H  _Z—tFN0
B+ N \BRZIZE—tE+ZB+=ZHIRECZ
Tt FERESEELBRER 0 XABKRGS
I ED B AR 2587 ~ 1.0887t%0.90%
o

HE_S_=—#£+_B=+—RAILEEIBAE
FERRIEIETTE > AATRBTERRIER AR
PRI E R EA o

ENFANRERHBRE > BRE_T—CFER
RS ENERRE Z BRIETTRTHROHE
FRUBEITRMINEFIEHAE -
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives'
Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Schemes” above, at no
time during the year ended 31st December 2023 was the Company, or any
of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or their connected entities to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 371st December 2023, none of the related party
transactions entered into by the Group set out in the section headed “Related
Party Transactions” in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements constitutes
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which is required to
be disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2023, so far as the Directors and chief executives of the
Company are aware, the following persons (other than the interests of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange:

ESFBE RO NEEE ZEF

I EXTERZREBITHABR ZRMN RABRIRKRG 28
IR RIDETBIFTIREE SN - AR ~ HEMER
ANE - FEMBABRINBARNBE_ZE_=F
TZA=T—HLEFEREARBEMEFHERNR
o REEFENEAMEERERELAATNE
AIEMEANBEREZ R S EREMER

FIERFEALRS

BE_E_ =G+ _A=+—HLFEHREANLE
B HREAMEEASREAN LR S — RN REE R
BALRZEMNARE EHRRFLUIRERNEER
DAFBEERZM - EFER > FABEBREL
TRAFE4AZT B TIRERTE ©

FERR

RIBZ=F+"HA=+—H >  EERFAT®
STBAERM > FTIAL(EERARTESTH
ABRIN KA RE Z RRIDNABRR D T EAREE
F ARG RBIBXVERE 230 ERRVE AR A A F)
KENREREF KGRI FE3B6HERRATETHF
B M BERE > REMEERT K
B 32P

(a) Shares (a) Rein
Number of
ordinary Percentage
shares of the of issued
Company held share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity Nature HEZEAR LERTREZ
BRRBE 515 HE TERZROHB BSLE
Hong Kong Teamsun Beneficial owner Long Position 564,110,657 67.66%
BBEBRN ZmA 5=
Teamsun Interest of controlled corporation Long Position 564,110,657" 67.66%
EBRAM ERAB D 5=
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Note:

1. Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Teamsun and
was therefore deemed to be interested in the 564,110,657 shares of the Company in
which Hong Kong Teamsun was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2023, no other person (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) had any interest or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2023, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the
Company, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro- rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
set out in Appendix C1 (formerly Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31st December 2023, except as noted below:

With respect to the CG Code provision C.1.6, a Non-Executive Director was unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24th May 2023 due
to other commitments.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix C3 (formerly
Appendix 10) to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiry of all
Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code during the year
ended 37st December 2023, and they all confirmed that they have fully complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on the information publicly available
to the Company and to the best of Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

As permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director and other officers
shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company from and against all losses
and liabilities incurred or sustain by him/her as a Director, to the extent permitted
by Bermuda law. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force during the
year and as of the date of this annual report.

The Company has also arranged directors’ and officers' liability insurance during
the year, which provides appropriate coverage for legal action against its Directors
and officers.

As permitted by the articles of association of the subsidiaries of the Company in
Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director or a former director of the Hong
Kong Subsidiaries may be indemnified out of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries’ assets
against any liability incurred by the director to a person other than the Hong Kong
Subsidiaries or an associated company of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries, to the
extent permitted by law. Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force
at the time of approval of this annual report.

DONATION

During the year ended 31st December 2023, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to HK$11,000 (2022: HK$5,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee met four times during the year ended 31st December
2023. During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group including the review
of the annual results and interim results, and discussed various auditing, financial
reporting and risk management and internal control system matters.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2023
have been audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (“Grant Thornton”),
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be tabled
in the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Grant Thornton as the
independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Yueou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27th March 2024
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Independent auditor’s report

~Q* Grant Thornton
- HE

To the members of Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BBRAEBEFIRAR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated Systems
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 103 to 221, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st December 2023, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st December 2023, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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B\ BT R S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
FREZER

PR TSI

RRBEZEEERERMOEEXE > BAE AR
MR EeHBERERNEZRATENEIE - ZEE1B
REBRMBZERGOMBERRAEARMNER
FRETRIEN > BRMIAEHZEETHIRHEEN
2R

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

BAINERMAEEMREZSEER

Revenue recognition

I AERR

Refer to notes 3(p), 4(b)(ii) and 7 to the consolidated financial
statements

BB ET S FEERAMN () ~ 4b)i)K7

For the year ended 31st December 2023, revenue was
approximately HK$2,360,425,000.
BEZZ_=F+"B=+—HILFE > KA#2,360,425000
BT e

Revenue included revenue from contracts with customisation
or integration work of HK$295,306,000, which recognised
using the cost-to-cost method to estimate progress towards
completion, which is calculated as a ratio of “total cost incurred”
to “total estimated costs for each contract”. Based on the stage
of completion, the Group recognises revenue as a percentage
of the total contract amount at the end of reporting period.

WA B 2R B TE fll st S A TERY & A9 #9295,306,0008 7T
ZEWAEDERANAERAA S ENEE » TREERED
GRZMBR A BB A RAE - SEEUTEME
ERER > RMREHRKAME DN SAEZERREIA -

Revenue recognition is identified as a key audit matter because
of the significance of the amount of revenue to the consolidated
financial statements.

HARRA ARG SMBRENEEN - WA DR SRR
BIZEE -
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Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition included:

RPIHWAFEDNEZIZFEIE

understanding the revenue and business process of the
Group and the internal controls on revenue cycle and testing,
on a sample basis, the effectiveness of key controls;

B SEENWABREREERIZEURBABRN AT
il > DU TS TUR SRR IR A L

assessing the appropriateness of the Group's revenue
recognition accounting policy in line with HKFRSs;

M EEENRAEIGHBREONaEBMBREE
a5

performing analytical review on revenue and gross profit
margin to identify significant or unusual fluctuation on
revenue;

HRAM BN ETOMMEEZ > LEBIIRARNERHERE R
@J )

testing, on a sampling basis, the existence of revenue
transactions recorded during the year by comparing
the details of the underlying documentation, including
the underlying sales invoices, contracts and relevant
documentation evidencing the delivery and acceptance of the
goods or services;

DA VAR FE N ENRARZ ZNEEN > BB LR
XA4BIMRER > BIEHEEE - SRUUKEREY SRR A
R AVERI T

selecting samples of revenue transactions recorded close
to before and after the year end and comparing the details,
including the date of the underlying sales invoices, contracts
and relevant documentation evidencing the date of delivery
and acceptance of the goods or services to assess whether
the related revenue has been recognised in the appropriate
accounting period in accordance with the Group'’s revenue
recognition accounting policies;
TH&”%ELEHE%G?&%%&E’JH&)\Q%$3§$ » IBIBLEBR AR B9

Ben > BEHEER - SRMNBREMIRBNMEZ B
E’J*EEQY{’-‘# DEHEERABA ZERE SEENBARDS
SR EEN S SHHAIBARESD ;



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter
REEZER

Revenue recognition

HZ A HERR

Refer to notes 3(p), 4(b)(ii) and 7 to the consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

HB BRSPS IRERMIEE3 () ~ Ab)i)E 7 (4)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information

Independent auditor’s report

B\ HET RS

FREZSFEH e

How the Key Audit Matter was addressed in our audit

BRINERMAEERREESER

testing, on a sampling basis, the accuracy of the revenue
recognised using cost-to-cost method by comparing the
estimated cost and the actual cost incurred, such as material
costs and labour costs etc. with the supporting documents;
and

DUt 7s VR SR B A B B A A (S 5 ST RUE R FEST I A B9 ZE
T > BB ST A AN B B R B MR (A KB A ~ AT
B SE) EEBES (A ETTEEE 5

identifying any significant adjustments to revenue during the
reporting period and after the reporting period, understanding
the reasons for such adjustments and comparing the details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying documents.
Hl R E AR S IRRHRANTAERRE - BERAEN
JR BRI SRR A AR R S AR RABY B BE S AHIEFTEEER -

Hithg#

EFEHHEMEMNEE - HWENESE SRFC
T_-EFRAAENMERR T BEGREME

comprises all the information in the 2023 annual report of the Company, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

HRRREFIBIZIENIR S o

RUHEREHHFRENERLTHEEMER -
7RI ERLE M E R R ABIZEER o

MEFHESMBRENEZMNS > RANSEE
FREEMER > EtMmEEEMENETRIREHE
BEARMETEZBEPEENEMNEFETERT
5 WUAFFEERERBRLL -

HERMERENTH I EREL ZERmBAHEM
ERFEERERERL > WAERELARESE -
R EERNEERTRS
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Independent auditor’s report

B\ BT R S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the
Group’'s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Independent auditor’s report
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Independent auditor’s report

B\ BT R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

27th March 2024

Lau Kwong Kei
Practising Certificate No.: P07578
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

AMEEmR

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—g—= = S -
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ET TEx
Revenue WA 7 2,360,425 2,215,486
Cost of goods sold HEM A (1,034,782) (945,735)
Cost of services rendered AR Z A (1,079,686) (996,459)
Other income HhisA 8 15,736 4,427
Other gain, net B3 9 59,713 61,467
Fair value loss on investment properties KEYEZ ARBERE 20 (1,200) (2,300)
Selling expenses HEER (101,218) (90,188)
Administrative expenses 1T EA (66,075) (61,729)
Finance income FAFEURA 10 249 158
Finance costs BTN 11 (2,563) (3,545)
Share of results of associates FEL I A B A 22 (1,685) (62,196)
Profit before income tax BRERISHR AT 12 148,914 119,386
Income tax expense Fri8Mms 16 (17,595) (17,801)
Profit for the year attributable FATREFE AEIEERZEF
to equity holders of the Company 131,319 101,585
HK cents HK cents
Al B
Earnings per share attributable AT IHFA AR
to equity holders of the Company: SkEH 18
- Basic - BK 15.75 12.19
- Diluted - #E 15.75 12.18

HNEV0EF 221 EZMEBHAEMBRERZT
BISLEAER D

The notes on pages 110 to 221 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEENmR

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
ket &
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihEs3 F#T FET
Profit for the year FRiEF 131,319 101,585
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hitt2mEmE - (§518) :
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to ~ HEFT SR EH HIEE
profit or loss: HmRKEL -
Revaluation surplus/(loss) of land and buildings T RIS FE LR (5B 19 5,016 (753)
Deferred taxation arising from revaluation of land T RIBFEHEE ZIELRIE
and buildings 36 (828) 124
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HEB R oJjERESEE
profit or loss: HmRKEL -
Exchange differences on translation of overseas MEBNEBERER
operations 1,931 (6,017)
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of EEE AT HMEE WG,
associates (E518) 22 5,059 (589)
Total comprehensive income for the year BATREIFA AELER
attributable to equity holders of EEIN 4R
the Company 142,497 94,350

The notes on pages 110 to 221 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ ERHE110EF 2221 B WEBRGEHBERERZT
statements. AIFEAEE S ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ma MBI

As at 31st December 2023 R -_E_=F+_"_F=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= “EITHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P EE TF#T T
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ MERHRE 19 337,048 339,757
Investment properties BwEYE 20 50,800 52,000
Intangible assets mEEE 21 = -
Interests in associates B A B R 22 1,258,056 1,192,897
Prepayments TERTRIE 28 2,350 -
Financial asset at fair value through other BARNBEEZEEEMNZENRS
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") FIERMERIE E 23 3,906 3,899
Finance lease receivables R E A E R IE 27 2,499 2,362
Deferred income tax assets IRIEFRISIMEE 36 781 1,213
1,655,440 1,592,128
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =78 25 295,890 286,532
Trade receivables eI B Z I8 26 228,692 192,079
Finance lease receivables fEUN R B B RIS 27 1,726 2,656
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAEWGERIE ~ e RTEMRIE 28 41,900 28,713
Contract assets BHEE 29 344,583 368,298
Tax recoverable EEIE S 3,044 14,242
Time deposits TR 30 287,218 -
Bank balances and cash RITERRRE 30 252,401 547,635
1,455,454 1,440,155
Total assets WEE 3,110,894 3,032,283
Equity R
Share capital g 31 83,370 83,370
Share premium AP mERR 403,164 403,164
Reserves (G 1,690,782 1,573,285
Equity attributable to equity holders of FATIRSIHFE AEL#ER
the Company 2,177,316 2,059,819
The notes on pages 110 to 221 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ &R E110EF 221 Bz WEERESHFREZT

statements.

BISLEAER D

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BEVRFAEBEFRAE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRRER

As at 31st December 2023 R _ZE_=F+_FB=+—H

2023 2022
—g-= B
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 T#T TEx

Non-current liabilities JERBAR
Deferred income tax liabilities IFIEFRSMRasE 36 170,229 169,423
Lease liabilities HEaRs 37 5,969 2,166
176,198 171,589

Current liabilities RENAE
Trade payables e B ZFIE 32 302,821 313,598
Other payables and accruals HihE I mIa st & A 33 179,245 169,077
Receipts in advance TR 34 253,535 246,561
Current income tax liabilities BERFR SR AaE 5,331 7,724
Bank borrowings RITEE 35 11,259 56,347
Lease liabilities HEaR 37 5,189 7,568
757,380 800,875
Total liabilities EL =L 933,578 972,464
Total equity and liabilities miEERAaE 3,110,894 3,032,283
Net current assets RENEEIRRE 698,074 639,280
Total assets less current liabilities WEERTHER 2,353,514 2,231,408
WANG Weihang WANG Yueou
F4EMm FTHEE
Director Director
Eo E

The notes on pages 110 to 221 are an integral part of these consolidated financial R HE110EF 2221 B WEBRGEHBERERZT
statements. AIFEAEE S o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SAHREHE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RRBRASE AL
Share-
Special Property based
Share Share reserve  revaluation  Translation payment Retained

capital premium (Note (1)) reserve reserve reserve earnings Total

Wk(H

RAIE ES HER
BE  ROEER ()  EfifiE  ERBE  URE  REEA gRES

HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR TER TEm TER TER TEw TER

At 1st January 2022 H-%-—%-F-H 83,358 403,043 34,350 262,404 265 7,862 1,199,043 1,990,325
Comprehensive income: b
Profit for the year FREF - - - 101,585 101,585
Other comprehensive income/  Efti2Elis / (§518) :

(loss):
Revaluation loss of land and THREFERSE

buildings - (753) - - (753)
Deferred taxation arising from THRETER ELZ

revaluation of land and buildings ELRE - 124 - - 124
Exchange differences on translation BB ERZEREE

of overseas operations - - - - (6,017)
Share of other comprehensive loss  FE(SBE AR Ht2 AR

of associates (Note 22) (Hi3£22) - - - - (589)
Total comprehensive income/  ER2ENE/

(loss) for the year (5148 - (629) - 101,585 94,350
Transactions with owners: BREAZRS .
Final dividend for the year ended ~ BZE_F_—%

31st December 2021 (Note 17) +ZA=+-RLLEE

ZFBRE (3E17) - - - (25011) (25011)

Issue of ordinary shares upon TEERENE T EER

exercise of share options (Note 31)  (Fif&31) 12 - (31 - 102
Recognition of equity-settled share-  FEsRLARMA ARH

based payment Zfiz#x - - 53 - 53
Lapse of share options transferred ~ ERZERBRFZ

to retained earnings RuERE - - (180) 180 -
Total transactions with owners ~ EEEAZRBHAH 12 121 - (158) (24:831) (24,856)
At 31st December 2022 - St

+ZB=+-H 83370 403,164 34350 261,775 (6,341) 7704 1275797 2059819

The notes on pages 110 to 221 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ ERH110EF 2221 B WEBRGEHBERERZT
statements. BISERER S o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEE@mEER

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FARREHE AL
Share-
Special  Property based
Share Share reserve revaluation Translation ~ payment  Retained
capital  premium (Note (i)) reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
MBR
FRGE & ARR
BE  RTEER (sxi)  Efifs ERRE 2 XfARE  FEEY L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n Ti#n Fi#n Ti#n Ti#n Ti#n Ti#n Fi#n
At 1st January 2023 H-%-=%-H-H 83,370 403,164 34,350 261,775 (6,341) 7,704 1275797 2,059,819
Comprehensive income: 2l
Profit for the year FREH - - - - - - 131,319 131,319
Other comprehensive income/  Eft2Elis / (§548) :
(loss):
Revaluation surplus of land and THRETFERRER
buildings - - - 5,016 - - - 5,016
Deferred taxation arising from THREFERELL
revaluation of land and buildings RIERE - 3 2 (828) 3 = = (828)
Exchange differences on translation  HEEINERZ ERER
of overseas operations - - - - 1,931 - - 1,931
Share of other comprehensive EEHEATEM 2 AN
income of associates (Note 22) (Ff3522) = = = = 5,059 = - 5,059
Total comprehensive income/  FRZEWE/
(loss) for the year (%)% - s c 4,188 6,990 = 131,319 142,497
Transactions with owners: BEEAZRS
Final dividend for the year ended HEZZZZE
31st December 2022 (Note 17) TZA=T—HLEEEZ
FARS (3E17) = = = = = 5 (25011) (25,011
Recognition of equity-settled share-  FEsRLARA AR
based payment ZfizEx - - = = s 1 = 1"
Lapse of share options transferred ~ ERERBRFZ
to retained earnings SRR = = = = = (479) 479 -
Total transactions with owners ~ EEEAZ X RAE = = = = = (468) (24,532) (25,000)
At 31st December 2023 RZEZ=
+ZB=+-H 83,370 403,164 34,350 265,963 649 7,236 1,382,584 2,177,316
Note (i)  The special reserve of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) MaE(): BERSGERERAE (AR RERBAR

(BT A EE) 2HRRERER — N EERR
BIRM EHAETEBEMER > RWEZWE L
BIE#TRMZEE  EZBEMETHER
BIRMZEE  MEZBZZE -

and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1997.

HNEV0EF 2B MEBHGREMBRERZT
BISLEAER D

The notes on pages 110 to 221 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EFEeHERER

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E-= “EITHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B ek TF#T FHE7T
Operating activities REER
Cash generated from operations REEF IV 40(a) 82,501 102,940
Tax paid EfiRE
- Hong Kong profits tax - H5BMNER (20,497) (13,787)
- Overseas tax - BAMRIE (1,283) (439)
Tax refunded REIFRIE
- Overseas tax - BINRIE 8,552 -
Net cash from operating activities REERZREWAPE 69,273 88,714
Investing activities REEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEM*E BERHRE (10,029) (54,525)
Transaction costs in relation to disposal of &M B ABIER 2 22 A
subsidiaries - (1,521)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BERREMERIE
equipment 53 -
Proceeds from disposal of interest in an associate ~ HEBE AT R 2 FIERIE 1,029 -
Investment in financial asset at FVOCI KRERANEBESZBEMEZE
KT IR ERMEE - (3,925)
Placement of time deposits FATERER (281,223) -
Interests received BUF L 4,482 398
Dividends received from an associate Bl—EEE AT ZKRE 699 -
Net cash used in investing activities BREEHZREZHBE (284,989) (59,573
Financing activities R EED
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (45,000) (45,000)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRAEE M5 (7,355) (6,613)
Net proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BITEBRTSNIE PR - 102
Interests paid BAFE (2,676) (3,297)
Dividends paid BRE (25,008) (25,014)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEFHZREZHFE (80,039) (79,822)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEMZ
W BEE (295,755) (50,681)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FHZReRIAEEEBY
the year 547,635 603,947
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMEPE B 2 R B 521 (5,631)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRZ\ERIAEEBY 30 252,401 547,635

HNEV0EF 221 EZMEBHAEMBRERZT
BISLEAER D

The notes on pages 110 to 221 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 R 55 AR B X

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Automated Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). At
31st December 2023, its immediate holding company is Teamsun Technology
(HK) Limited ("Hong Kong Teamsun”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong. Its ultimate holding company is Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Teamsun”), a company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and its shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda, and 15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of its major
associates and subsidiaries are set out in Notes 22 and 46 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors
(the “Board”) on 27th March 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
and the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and include
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The material accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are summarised in Note 3. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts
on the Group's consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for land and buildings, investment properties
and equity investment classified as financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), which are stated at fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The impacts of the adoption of the new and amended HKFRSs are discussed
below:

(a) New and amended HKFRSs that are effective for the
annual periods beginning on 1st January 2023:

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA effective for
the Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1st January 2023:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and
other amendments
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform
= Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 12

The adoption of new and amended HKFRSs has no material impact on
how the results and financial position of the Group for the current and
prior periods have been prepared and presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs:

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements,
certain amended HKFRSs have been published but are not yet effective,

and have not been adopted early by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5'

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants'

Supplier Finance Arrangements’

Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2025

3 Effective date not yet determined

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be adopted in
the Group's accounting policy for the first period beginning on or after the
effective date of the pronouncement. The amended HKFRSs are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st
December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power over the entity, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Where unrealised losses on sales of intra-group asset are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from
the Group's perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of
subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency
with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable
assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the period between non-controlling interests and the equity holders of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3. EEgH SR w

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (a) LREEEwW

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss
has been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Company
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses, unless the investment
is classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost is
adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee's pre or post-acquisition
profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEEHEE @

(Continued)

(b) BHE QB

(b) Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but
not control or joint control, over its management, including participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control of those policies.

In consolidated financial statements, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using
equity method. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the acquisition-date net fair values of the investee’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is recognised as goodwill.
The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment
and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date
of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity
instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable to
the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss in the determination of the Group's share of the associate'’s profit or
loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group's interest in the associate is carried
at cost and adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group's
share of the associate’s net assets less any identified impairment loss,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale). The Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas
the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees'
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the associates.
Where unrealised losses on assets sales between the Group and its
associate are reversed on equity accounting, the underlying asset is
also tested for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Where the
associate uses accounting policies other than those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, adjustments are made,
where necessary, to conform the associate accounting policies to those
of the Group when the associate’s financial statements are used by the
Group in applying the equity method.

BENRAEAEENARRAHHEEREAR
EARREN(MIFEFIHHERFEZER) > S5
S E B R ARG R RB NG S E

ZEHERZ B -

RIREMBREN > RBERTNRER
TR AR R ERFBED AR o I8
BB A B ig W s B AAFR FE SR A S ) 1k Bk
BREFHNEE  BEARABENR
AEEFENERRD > BIRHE B
B AREREE > TERREN—E
DETRET G o WIER AT R Z B
FAXNEE « FREESURENEERAESE
BB THRETANAREER  MERE
EREEEAREAZMEE - ZEMDE
FIHANEE « BEARNABENAAEE
FEBAKIERARNEREE > NERT
&8 > RIS IRm RS - IEERIE R
BERBEARERDGBE QBRI ©

RigEDE > REENBERATNERTY
BEATE > THAERDGZHE QT
EEFENEBRNEZHFELAE > Uk
WEERPHBRERE  IEEDERR
FHE(HFADEARFFHENHESE
) BUBRSN o AEEMBEMGBIRE R B FULE
BFREEEURKTFEEEFRBERR
TR R R MAEEBGERR
BERBRNKERREREEMEER DR
BN aRaRAGa2ERERNE
o KRB BFHBBESHREFENE
ATERE AR -

FREMEHBENRZHR S 2 RERI
G  EUAEEMGBHE AT
BHERIR - HAEMEABMEAD ZHE
EHEZ RESREREEEEHEED
FEMTEHAMEEERERS © 5
BREPMAEERILIFAETERRFELR
BRTREALURZZ REHFARAE > BlEx
SEARKBEDAMERZBE QAR
BREFFLSERE » UEZHE LT
ZE S BRE R EFBFTEAE R -

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BEVRFAEBEFRAE

115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3. EEgH SR w

(b) Interests in associates (Continued) (b) Bt EATIER )

When the Group's share of losses in an associate exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate after applying the expected credit loss
("ECL") model to such other long-term interests where applicable.

After the application of equity method, the Group determines whether
it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss on the
Group's investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is any objective evidence that the investment
in associate or joint venture is impaired. If such indications are identified,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference
between the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) of the associate or joint venture and its
carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the investment, the
Group estimates its share of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the associate, including cash
flows arising from the operations of the associate and the proceeds on
ultimate disposal of the investment.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the date when
it ceases to have significant influence over an associate. If the retained
interest in that former associate is a financial asset, the retained
interest is measured at fair value, which is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKFRS 9. The
difference between (i) the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate; and (i) the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the equity method was
discontinued, is recognised in the profit or loss. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as would have
been required if the associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by the investee would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
entity reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HKD or HK$), which is the Company’'s functional currency
and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net
basis within other gain, net.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

3. BEEEH TR w

(c) FEPRE

REDBzRESNARTIBEERRE
ERMNEREZAN— o FHRARE
ZHTERRIERERRE > HEED
EERIL B ZEED BRI

(d) MRS

(i)

(ii)

DEER 2 I 1

FEFEE TR ERZMBRRAYIE
B ZBEREEMEIERHIRER
Z2BITEB(EERNHE - e
MHBRERUBITEY » HIFAERT
ZREEBRTEBRZ 258 -

R G RAEER

N Z IR 5 BEISEER A (HE
WM BIEE) 2 BTERTEREE
o AN RERZ RIRFERERT
BLUOMBIEz B EBERERPIE
EZ N EWNE AR » R RE
RFESD ©

BRIEE Z SN E UL S B 1R B B5 Al
F—RARGRERERRNEY - FIAH
tINEW TS BRI G A RER 2 H
tEREm 25 o

BAnBESFEBZIINEGIFERMEE
BAnBEEEEHZERITE - 1%
ARBEIRZEERERZTEE
BIRAAREEREBIRZ—
7o flin FEKEEERER M
BAnBESEERT(RANEES
\iRm ) A 2w 2T EEENR
SHERAAREERERBIRZ—
7 MIFEKHEE NRAREES
BHEMEEWE BB 2ITEE
R HAth 2 E W ST o

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BEVRFAEBEFRAE

117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3. EEgH SR w

(d) SrEEIRE &)

(iii) Group companies (iii) EEARE]

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the reporting
date;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss
presented are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
translation reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Currency translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
translation reserve in equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation,
or loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the accumulated exchange differences in
respect of that operation attributable to the Group are reclassified
to profit or loss. Any exchange differences that have previously
been attributed to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but
they are not reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEEHEE @

(Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) W% - RERHIE

Land and buildings are stated at fair value. Property, plant and
equipment, other than land and buildings, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Land and buildings are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the reporting date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings
is credited to the property revaluation reserve, except to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the extent that
it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

THRIBFURAEBETIER - W* ~ HFE
Fe s 5 (Lt s AR FRIN) Th IR PR A (B IR &=
SRTERRBEREBEREIIR - Rxa
EREEZSHAMELZEESH -

THRIEFHRREGBZ 2 AEBERE
FlEE z RBTE R EH K RERERER
BIREMBIRRRTIR - EMEUESH
MARRBMHETH > FIERARAZERE
TEMNARBEIEERDF]

ERREGMITMABFREEZ EHIEE
SPAMEEMEE  EEERLEMERE
ESRER AR 2 EMREE > mgma)
StAGGEaR > BEAANKRZREE -
Ef-REEMELEZFRASHAZED
TSRS RE > BEEBRBEMEIEMZ
BEZEA#FREHOA)

M2~ BRB Rk Z ST E SR A LU (&5 AT
ERFRRNAREGSRZEQED B
ERHEESE

Land and buildings Over the remaining term of the lease T RIEF FARAER N EHAS
or 50 years, whichever is shorter A+
UBFEERE)
Furniture and fixtures 10% - 33'/,% RS 10% - 33'/.%
Motor vehicles 20% A 20%
Computer and office equipment  16%/,% ~ 50% BRI AERME 16%.,% - 50%
Right-of-use assets Shorter of lease term or useful life of ERAEEE TEEFHASK A AR F A

2-5years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold,
the amounts included in other reserves are transferred to retained
earnings.

2-5F (EBAEE R %)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEEHEE @

(Continued)

(f) Investment properties (f) I_REME

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by FAEARPWEAS > MILIFHAER
the Group, is classified as investment properties. Investment property FIEAZMETDEAREYE - EY
is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and XYL R EM A (BIEERS AR E R
where applicable borrowing costs. Cost includes expenditure that is ZEENAR)GE - ABEHEELEYE
directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. FrEEZEHIZESH

After initial recognition at cost, investment properties are carried at fair TEVTHEIREE > BREVMERANEE
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting FIER > A EEIEHRINEGEEMN S E
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, KEEEZARTE - AAEBEREERE
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or MSEEAE  NEHFENEREEZ T
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not available, the B MBS R 2 R ERELAE - 1
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on RELEBEER > AREFBEMBES
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair o BN AER ™IS 2 T RRE S S AL IR
values are recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. HERETEAE - 2RBEEZEHRER

BIRERPHED o

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment W%~ BERREEBEERBREBEMAA
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between AREYE > RZEEARZEEZRE
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of BEEEANBERZ R EENEmERD
transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and AYE S BERRESMD - AWM MAR
equipment. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment BERDEESCA ZRESE > BlEE
loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or R BB RER ©
loss.
(g) Impairment of non-financial assets (g) IEEMEEZRE

The following assets are subject to impairment testing: MTEEBEETRELR !

Intangible assets; - BEEE;

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets); - O ME -BERXECEERAESE

E) 5

Interests in associates; and - HEREIEE &

The Company's investments in subsidiaries © ERRBRNBABNKRE
All assets are tested for impairment whenever there are indications that FIBEEERBERANKEREEREER
the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable. BERUAUREIRNETTRIERIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EESHBE »

(Continued)

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

(g) IEEMEEZHE®

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some
are tested at cash-generating unit level. Corporate assets are allocated
to individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

EEEZIRAESNETKLEEZER 5
RS R ERIEY A RER S
A el R AN BE(RMHSZIERRE
RERAR) BEREEZRSE  NETHE
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ERMARR EAREBUNEMEEREL
ZIRERA > JWREIEER B AL
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f)EE - ALt > B EEM@BETRHE
A MOREREEEBUERETH
o EREEAENHANGEE RN
ERGOEEENREELEM > SR
NEETHEGEE NS EERNE
NREELBAER

HEREEEEN WEIEENGEAEER
ME s - RIBERER T LUEE > ERR
NEERNRIE BB EiE DR EES
BEYIER T MR FE A E B BRI & (A0 PRI

(h) Financial assets and liabilities (h) EMEEREER
(i) Financial assets (i) ZFHEE
Classification bor

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

debt instruments to be measured at amortised cost; and

equity instruments to be measured subsequently at FVOCI.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For debt instruments, the classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial assets and its contractual
cash flows characteristics. For investment in equity instrument, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at FVOCl.

FEBRRESMEERUT 245
paxI

THIHp AT B2 EB TR &

BrREANEESEAEMEEI

mYBRZEET A -

HAOBEURN BEREESHEENE
BIEAREIRS R AFEFRR

HNEHFLE > HoHEURNBRE
BETHEENEBRELASNRS
MzBFH - HRERTAZRE B
REURR AEBERVERRESF
ERETHENERERANEESBR
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited BEVRFAEBEFRAE

121
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e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEHEBE »

(Continued)

(h) ERMEEREE®

(i) Financial assets (Continued) (i) ETHEEGE)

(h) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Classification (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flow represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gain, net together with foreign exchange gains
and losses.

The Group's financial assets are amortised cost comprise “trade
receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”, “finance lease
receivables”, “time deposits” and “bank balances and cash” as set

out in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2023 #Z ===

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity instruments at fair
value. Where the Group's management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity instruments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of
fair value gains and losses to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Dividends from such equity instruments continue to be
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as other
income when the Group's right to receive dividend payments is
established. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity instruments at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include “trade payables”, “other
payables and accruals”, “bank borrowings” and “lease liabilities”.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments. Financial
liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially measured at fair
value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless
the Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
except for derivatives which are not designated and effective as
hedging instruments and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
which are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss.

All interest related charges are recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note 3(r)).
Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in Note 3(t).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade payables and other payables and accruals

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Bank borrowings

They are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

They are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEEHEE @

(Continued)

() EMBEERGHEEZRAIE

(i) Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with
its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and contract assets as
recognised and measured under HKFRS 15.

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 6(b) details how the Group
determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, contract assets and finance lease receivables,
the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost, the Group
adopted a “three-stage” model for impairment based on changes in
credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:

The receivables with low credit risk on initial recognition is classified
in “Stage 1" and has its credit risk continuously monitored by the
Group;

If a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is
identified, the receivables is moved to “Stage 2" but is not yet
deemed to be credit impaired; and

If the receivables is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then
moved to “Stage 3".

Receivables in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount equal
to the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default events possible
within the next 12 months. Instruments in Stage 2 or 3 have their ECL
measured based on ECL on a lifetime basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEEHEE @

(Continued)

() EMEERSGHEEZRE®

(i) Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

(Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the financial
instrument.

When estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the reporting
date; and

lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables, contract
assets, finance lease receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost are set out in Note 6(b).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. BEEEH TR w

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue (see
Note 3(p)) before being unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in Note 3(i) and
are reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration has
become unconditional (see Note 3(h)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue (see Note 3(p)).
A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised (see Note 3(h)). Contract liability is disclosed as
receipts in advance in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or a
net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net
basis.

(k) Inventories

(i) Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods pending
for customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.
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e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEGIHE»

(Continued)
(k) Inventories (Continued) (k) EFE®
(i) BEth&4IREZ

(ii) Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract with a
customer which are not capitalised as inventory (Note 3(k)(i)) or
property, plant and equipment (Note 3(e)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would
not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained e.g. an
incremental sales commission. Incremental costs of obtaining a
contract are capitalised when incurred if the costs relate to revenue
which will be recognised in a future reporting period and the costs
are expected to be recovered. Other costs of obtaining a contract
are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate directly
to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract; generate or enhance resources that will be used to
provide goods or services in the future; and are expected to
be recovered. Costs that relate directly to an existing contract
or to a specifically identifiable anticipated contract may include
direct labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs that are
explicitly chargeable to the customer and other costs that are
incurred only because the group entered into the contract (for
example, payments to sub-contractors). Other costs of fulfilling a
contract, which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of the contract
cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of consideration
that the Group expects to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (i) any costs that relate
directly to providing those goods or services that have not yet been
recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to profit or
loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is recognised. The
accounting policy for revenue recognition is set out in Note 3(p).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(I) Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

(m) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental cost directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
deduction, net of tax, from the proceed.

(n) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the
places/countries where the Company's subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3. EEgH SR w

(n) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(n) BIEARIEIEFRISHR (@)

(ii) Deferred income tax (i) IEHEFRFTF

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary difference. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

For investment property measured using the fair value model in
accordance with the accounting policy above, the measurement
of the related deferred tax liability or asset reflects the tax
consequences of recovering the carrying amount of the investment
property entirely through sale, unless the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the average
tax rates that are expected to apply to the taxable income of the
periods in which the temporary differences are expected to reverse.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEEHEE @

(Continued)

(n) BHAR BT FRISHR ()
(ii) JEFEFFTEHE (4%)

(n) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(iii)

The determination of the average tax rates requires an estimation
of (1) when the existing temporary differences will reverse and (2)
the amount of future taxable profit in those years. The estimate of
future taxable profit includes:

- income or loss excluding reversals of temporary differences;
and

- reversals of existing temporary differences

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses. Where there are a number
of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations
as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

()

(i)

Provisions (Continued)

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
from the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured
at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the net cost of continuing with the contract (which
includes both incremental costs and an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling that contract).

Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not wholly
within the control of the Group, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(p) Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of IT products and contracts for
the IT services.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows a 5-step
process:

Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are
satisfied
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEEHEE @

(Continued)

(p) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(p) YT AFESR (@)

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated amongst
the various performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone
selling prices. The transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or
as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring the
promised goods or services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the customer for more than 12 months,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition
policies are as follows:

(i) Sales of goods and rendering of services

Revenue from the sale of goods for a fixed fee is recognised when (or
as) the Group transfers control of the assets to the customer.

For stand-alone sales of goods that are neither customised by
the Group nor subject to significant integration services, control
transfers at the point in time when the customer takes undisputed
delivery of the goods.

When such items are either customised or sold together with
significant integration services, the goods and services represent
a single combined performance obligation over which control is
considered to transfer over time. This is because the combined
product is unique to each customer (has no alternative use) and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for the work completed
to date. Revenue for these performance obligations is recognised
over time as the customisation or integration work is performed,
using the cost-to-cost method to estimate progress towards
completion. As costs are generally incurred uniformly as the work
progresses and are considered to be proportionate to the entity's
performance, the cost-to-cost method provides a faithful depiction
of the transfer of goods and services to the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Installation service

For sales of goods together with installation service, where the
installation is simple and does not include an integration service
and could be performed by another party, such installation is
accounted for as a separate performance obligation. In this
case, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on the stand-alone selling prices. Where these
are not directly observable, they are estimated based on expected
cost plus margin. For sales of goods, control transfers at the
point in time when the customer takes undisputed delivery of the
goods. Where the installation is complex and goods or services are
highly interdependent or interrelated (i.e. the sales of goods are
significantly affected by the successful installation services in the
contract), the installation and goods or services are not separately
identifiable and revenue is recognised upon completion of the
installation.

Maintenance service

The Group enters into fixed price maintenance contracts with its
customers. Customers are required to pay in advance and the
relevant payment due dates are specified in each contract. Revenue
is recognised over time based on the maintenance service period.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Finance income

Finance income implicit in finance lease is recognised as interest
income over the period of the lease so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of return of the outstanding
net investment in the leases for each accounting period.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(q) Retirement benefit

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans. In addition, the employees employed under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance are also entitled to long service payment
("LSP") if the eligibility criteria are met. The LSP are defined benefits
plans.

(i)

(i)

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans
for all qualifying employees. The MPF Scheme is established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme and other
defined contribution retirement benefit plans are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group's contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme and other defined contribution
retirement benefit plans.

Defined benefit plans

The amount of long service benefit that an employee will receive
on cessation of employment in certain circumstances is defined by
reference to the employee’s length of service and corresponding
salary. The legal obligations for any benefits remains with the
Group.

The LSP obligations recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position is the present value of the LSP obligation at the
end of the reporting period.

Management estimates the LSP obligations annually with the
assistance of independent actuaries. This is based on the discount
rate, the salary growth rate, turnover rate and the expected
investment return on offsetable MPF accrued benefits. Discount
factors are determined close to the end of each annual reporting
period by reference to high quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and
have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
defined benefit liability.
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(q) Retirement benefit (Continued)

(r)

(s)

136

(ii) Defined benefit plans (Continued)

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current and past service cost, and gains
and losses on curtailments and settlements);

net interest expense or income; and
remeasurement.

Service cost on the Group's defined benefit plan is included in
employee benefits expense. Employee contributions, all of which
are independent of the number of years of service, are treated as a
reduction of service cost.

Net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability is included
in employee benefits expenses.

Gains and losses resulting from remeasurements of the net defined
benefit liability, comprising actuarial gains and losses, are included
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Share-based payment

The fair value of services received were determined by reference to the
fair value of shares and share options granted at the grant date and
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the shares and share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share-based payment reserve).

At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of shares and share options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to share-based payment reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred to share
premium. After vesting date, when the shares or share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
dates, the amount previously recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t) Leases
(i) The Group as a lessee
Definition of lease

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether a contract
is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of
a contract, that conveys the right to use an identified asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

To apply this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract
meets three key evaluations which are whether:

the contracts contains an identified asset, which is either
explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by
being identified at the time the asset is made available to the
Group;

the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout
the period of use, considering its rights within the defined
scope of the contract; and

the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use. The Group assess whether it has
the right to direct 'how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use.

For leases of office premises and office equipment in which the
Group is a lessee, the Group elects not to separate non-lease
components and instead accounts for the lease and non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

3. EEgH SR w

(t) Leases (Continued) (t) A& @

(i) ZFEBFEZEBEAE)

(i) The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability on the consolidated statement of financial
position. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made
up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct
costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset at the end of the lease, and any
lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date
(net of any lease incentives received).

While the Group's land and buildings presented in property,
plant and equipment are carried at revaluation model, the Group
has elected not to apply revaluation model to right-of-use office
premises held by the Group as the Group exercises its judgements
and determines that it is a separate class of asset apart from the
land and buildings which is held for own use.

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line
basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the
end of the useful life of the right-of-use assets or the end of the
lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-use assets for
impairment when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability
at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is
readily available or the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
are made up of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable payments
based on an index or rate, and amounts expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee. The lease payments also include
the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payment of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.
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e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEEHEE @

(Continued)

(t) HE®
(i) FEBESEBEA ()

(t) Leases (Continued)

(i) The Group as a lessee(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee (Continued)

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced
for lease payments made and increased for interest cost on the
lease liability. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities whenever there are changes
in lease term or in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date
of reassessment.

For lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of modification.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if
the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases using the
practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset
and lease liability, the payments in relation to these leases are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis

TERAEN Z HES 8 R 5 (8)

RYPstEZ% > AREREHMEFHZ
HEMRFTLURL  THMEEEEZ
FEMATLUE - HAEAEGS
HEEN > MEMFEEEUER
Bk M EEEEMRBRELE > 75
EEWtEAR-

RIERAFEFNTEREEERYN
SHEEELER » AEBERFTENR
8B RILERT » @BBEEMH
MG RGBT RIRREEETTAEN
FUETERIR c EMFTEMEBEESA
f&o

HRAEAEBHESEARNEEE
o AEERBREEEARNEL
BIBTEEEN B IEREETIER
KRETHEIRETINR - &5
StEHERE -

EEMGIEHERER 5 HEZREE
RERPEREEENHEREEED
L EZRRIRE IR o

FEECEENEREERARTE
HAZEAR - BRZEEEZ AR
HEAUBERENBEZNER S
3o MAERAEHAEEEREER

over the lease term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term B o SHREEATIEA12EB T
of 12 months or less. ZHAE -

On the consolidated statement of financial position, right-of-use
assets have been included in property, plant and equipment and
lease liabilities have been presented separately.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

RIREMHBRRE  EAREEESS
AE - BERRBREEAEDE

TE2F e

ENFRENEESRERRBEE B
BREERBIFARMRNURAE
B5tE - YA R A BERSEKRSE
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEEEHEE @

(Continued)

(t) Leases (Continued) (t) HE®
(ii) The Group as a lessor (i) FEBEALFAN
Assets leased out under finance leases as the lessor IR ETAAEBHEN L 2 EE
When assets are leased out under finance leases, the risks and EEERBMEBOBLE  BEE
rewards of ownership are transferred out to customers. When ZRBEERNEBETER - BEE
assets are leased out under finance leases, the present value of the IREMERNBELE > BEREZR
lease payments is recognised as a receivable. BT A EUFRIE
(u) Government grants (u) BXFF#EBD
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where B R BN Y BE % & TR HE E B W AN A R A =
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the E o EMPMEMRSERERRERATETU
Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants are W o EBUN B 2 ABRA R A BIEL N
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to Z B RIS E 2 A ETT AL 2 R
match them with the costs that the grants are intended to compensate. BIATEIBm PR A WA ©
Government grants that compensate the Group for staff cost incurred BN REN e EEmELE S
are set-off with relevant staff costs included in the respective line item IR aiEmi DN MRS 2 Mk
of “cost of services rendered”, “selling expenses” and “administrative ) MEEERIRMTHRERINMERET
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. B AR A TS o
(v) Dividend distribution (v) RESK
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as BARAB RN ZEEREAB KRR
a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in the year BEEWEAMERNEREZFERNTESR
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or EERAABIZMBRERPEDABME -

directors, where appropriate.

(w) Related parties (w)BIEAL
For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is HNZELRaMBmRERMS 0 —HRER
considered to be related to the Group if: ARENEEBREN > W
(a) the party is a person, or a close member of that person's family, is (@ AREAA—BALT  BlZmATZHZEA
related to the Group if that person: TIARBEAEEARE
(1) has control or joint control over the Group; (1) HEAEBHEEZGIERERZES
T
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or (2 BEREEFEARZE; I
(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group B) AXEERAELEEZBATZE
or the Group's parent. EEEENE ©
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b) the partyis an entity and if any of the following conditions applies:

M

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(1) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the reporting
entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

3. BEEEH TR w

(w)BIEAL®

(b) BRARBRLTE TIMERIEME
AERAEMARE

(M
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. E X2 {h st KR HIER
JUDGEMENTS

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the (a) T EBFHHRHNEES
Group's accounting policies sHHIER
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, the Directors R EE G HRBER > EEER
have made the following judgements that have the most significant effect TEE T HIRE STHIER -

on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

(i) Income taxes (i) FrfE#e
The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in which the NEBBERAEBMKENE’ 2 BE
Group operates. Significant judgement is required in determining EE BTSN - EETEFERESE
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and RNEZEREEREZYE - A8
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. EBBREPERLRERTRANE
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues 2R REFAE - AERKEBEEEEE
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. HAFE BN ERIMR TE = (i 51 0 b 52 TE AR
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the MBBFEEZBE - MZREFEZ
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact BREMBERBAYT TR IEER
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which B AEMEERTEFHEEZF
such determination is made. B Z PSR R IEIER B # M o
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and HERERARKRBAERERERE
certain tax losses are recognised as management considers it is SRR FEIEI0 Y R ERE T TS IR ES
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which 18 > BB S0 B B\ E RE R TS IS
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the BEANELMSREE - STaRE
expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences REZAMESI AR > ZEEREE
will impact the recognition of deferred tax and tax in the periods in ZESTEENBERELMSREER
which such estimate is changed. FiSM & ARIHEES o

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (b) fHEtFEMERREKIE

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. REBELBRREZ M5 RER - BE

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal B&E - FEsHESIEVEAERZ BRE

the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a RHERA - FEEARRAMERTEMHEE

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts REERBEZERABFHEAFEZMGE
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: TR T -

(i) Provision for impairment of trade receivables within the (i) BB EREERBITHTEIEEE
scope of ECL under HKFRS 9 FREEIR B EWE Bk B Z i EIR
The provisioning policy for trade receivables of the Group is based AEBEEREZNBEBZBERED
on the evaluation of the risk of default and the expected loss rate. REHENRMRTBRABEEXR 4
A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the EMEE o ST ZERWIAY &
ultimate realisation of these receivables, which include the current KREBIRENFAFLREHE > &
creditworthiness, the past collection history, the realisation of any EERIZES - BEEMGGH ~ £/
repayment pattern promised as well as forward-looking estimates BEBEMRA Z R IRURN&ERE
at the end of each reporting period. Details of which are as set out HAR Z AU M 5T - BRAFFIB AN
in Note 6(b). As at 31st December 2023, the aggregate carrying MizEe(b) s RZEZ=F+"HA=+
amounts of trade receivables amounted to HK$228,692,000 (net of —B > EREZNEZRREES
ECL allowance of HK$9,512,000) (2022: HK$192,079,000 (net of ECL 228,692,00078 7t (MR FEHAE B 518
allowance of HK$9,115,000)). #i59,512,0008 ) (Z2 - 2F :

192,079,000 75 (IR TRFAE E 5518

#4459,115,00037T)) °

142 Annual Report 2023 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. E X2 {hst R HIER «
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 3(p), the
Group uses the cost-to-cost method to estimate progress towards
completion for revenue recognised over time. The progress
is measured by reference to the actual costs incurred up to
the reporting date as a percentage of total estimated costs of
completion. When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it will be probably recoverable.

Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair values estimated. In making its estimates, the
Group considers the information from the valuations of investment
properties and land and buildings performed by external
professional valuers by using the market comparison approach. The
market comparison approach is referenced to recent sale price of
comparable properties on a price per square foot basis, adjusted
for a premium or a discount specific to the quality and floor of the
Group's buildings compared to the recent sales.

Had the Group used different valuation techniques, the fair value of
the investment properties and land and buildings would be different
and thus may have an impact to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income.

At 371st December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group's land
and buildings and investment properties carried at revalued
amount/fair value were HK$311,470,000 (2022: HK$319,075,000)
and HK$50,800,000(2022: HK$52,000,000) respectively.

(b) flist FEEMEEIRRIR ()
(ii) WEAREER
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(iii) REWFE « LHRIEFZIEE
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. E X2 {hst R HIER «
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) (Gt REMEZEEKE @
(iv) —RIFELBHEREIES 2 (R e

(iv) Estimated impairment of interest in an unlisted associate

144

(v)

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

The value in use was determined based on the estimated present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the unlisted group, namely i-Sprint Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“i-Sprint Group”), including cash flows from the
operations of i-Sprint Group and estimated terminal value. Based
on the assessment, the recoverable amount of i-Sprint Group
is higher than its carrying amount. Hence, no impairment loss
(2022: Nil) on interests in i-Sprint Group was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31st
December 2023.

Valuation of financial asset at FVOCI

As at 31st December 2023, financial asset at FVOCI amounted to
approximately HK$3,906,000 (2022: HK$3,899,000) are measured
at fair value with level 3 fair value measurement being determined
based on significant unobservable inputs using valuation
technigues. Judgement and estimation are required in establishing
the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could result in
material adjustments to the fair value of these instruments. See
note 6(d) for further disclosures.
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
earnings as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically. As
part of this review, the directors of the Company prepare the annual budget
taking into account of the provision of funding. Based on the proposed
annual budget, the directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the management of the Group, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues, bank
borrowings and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

As at 31st December 2023, the Group's debt-to-equity ratio was 0.5% (2022:
2.7%), which was calculated as follows:

5.

BFEREER

FERERHAERDHEREAEEZEREAALE
DEF@ERE TR tEFREDTYE > &
BIRARR O -

FEE T AR EBOERRISEABERAT
2 WEBRTIRA  HERRBERS
M BEEERG SRS EHRAEE o

FABEEERRNEERERS o (FAlsTH
PR AABEFEERKETEB TRAE
ERE - REFMEXZEERE > AR8EESF
ERATNAKRERSEEARERNZ AR ° 1R
BAEREEEZERE  AERRBBXMR
B~ BTG ~ RIOTEERBRKRNRER
RERZTRENEERAES A TEHEE
BERLERE -

A TET=ZF+B=1+—H » AEBEZHEE
HHBERIER A0S (CE - _F 1 2.7%) »
THIZU0 AT E

2023 2022

—8_= TR CE

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Bank borrowings RITEE 11,259 56,347
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company PANSI) 2SS T PN ST 2,177,316 2,059,819
Debt-to-equity ratio AREFSBRRERIEE 0.5% 2.7%

There are no changes on the Group's approach to capital risk management
during the year.

FEMEXERRAR AN FEN IR
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in HKD and
United States dollars ("USD"). Foreign exchange exposure to USD
of the Group will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to
peg the HKD to the USD remains in effect. There was no material
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates, and therefore no
related hedging financial instrument was applied during the years
ended 31st December 2023 and 2022.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation in relations to variable interest rate on bank balances
and bank borrowings and time deposits bearing fixed interest rate.
The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments including
bank balances and bank borrowings, at the reporting date and the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year
and held constant throughout the reporting period in the case of
instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended
31st December 2023 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$2,012,000 (2022: HK$273,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowings and bank balances.
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6. WBRAMEERAAEE
STEw
(b) EERE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank balances and cash, time deposits, trade
receivables, contract assets, other receivables and deposit and finance
lease receivables.

Credit risk was managed on a group basis. The Group's policy is to
deal only with credit worthy counterparties. Credit terms are granted
to new customers after a credit worthiness assessment by the credit
control department. When considered appropriate, customers may be
requested to provide proof as to their financial position. Where available
at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers
are obtained and used. Customers who are not considered creditworthy
are required to pay in advance or on delivery of goods. Payment record
of customers is closely monitored. It is not the Group's policy to request
collateral from its customers.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

internal credit rating;
external credit rating;
actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant

change to the debtors' ability to meet its obligations;

actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of
the debtors;

significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of
the same debtors; and

significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of
the debtors, including changes in the payment status of debtors
and changes in the operating results of the debtors.

FERERBRITEMRKRRE - EME™R
BUEZHE s BNEE « HEWRIE
KRR ERREREMBRESL

FERBUEREREE - AEEZER
RERERRFZXZHRETRS - &
FHERZ EENHEEERENPIENE
FETERFEREH - REBRBRT
ERHEREREHEMBOIRT ZEAX
e WEMASE ARSI ERINR
BEENRE/ NEMER ZRE o THRR
HERRYZEREABAMNRNNEE N
e BRZOMELHERZETER B
FEBZHR > FEBFGEREFREM
IR ©

AIHMEEERRAEDANREN - AEEL
REER IR EREQ R RSP R
HERVEXN R > WEBRSEEKRSE
EEFREEER  TEMATIIE
RIER

PIBBIE TR 5

SMNERIEFRETAR 5
RIERNEFABITEEENHIRE
REFHER - BHREERRNE
PREGERIE R &8 ;

BEBANEERENERNBRERE
#;

F— B AR SR TANERER
5 R

B ANTAREIE (T ANE ST
BIEEB AN REFBALE
B4 D IR o
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 6. HIEAMEERRAAEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) HE®

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREK @
Trade receivables and contract assets EUESHEARSHEE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring ECL FEERBEBUFREERFIR 2 MHE
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables FiAstEHEERE > HRAREERE
and contract assets using a provisional matrix. MATBRNEZRERENEEFL 28

FEHRES 1B R o

The Group has policies in place to ensure that receivables with credit FEBEHEER  BERRAEBRFE
terms are made to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and RES2Z2XZHRELEHWNEEERRZIE
management performs ongoing credit evaluations of the counterparties. WHIE > HEEBESRHENTSHRET
The credit period granted to the customers and the credit quality of EAMEL - AEEEEZRER ZHHBMK
these customers are assessed, which takes into account their financial B BRI BATEM BT EE T
position, past experience and available forward-looking information. The BERZEEBAZEERZEEER B
management would make periodic collective and individual assessment BEEREELENTH  BELE > B
on the recoverability of trade receivables based on historical settlement HAOMER B KL e A R M B R RN E SR8
records, past experience, current external information and forward- B[] U5 1 7B BR1F B B8 R (@ Rl 5T M o H
looking information. Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure SRR EREANITRE TEXU LS
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue receivables. HRFEUSERIE ©
To measure the ECL, trade receivables and contract assets have been AT ERBEERE  BRESRERE
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past HNEEERBEBEEERRSERBIE
due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have BUETT DM - ENEEBRRARZMTE
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables TZIFER > BHEREEENZEINES
for the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded MIBHEB ABAEE 2 B E - Bt > &
that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable E@ERLE > RINESFIEZ ARG EXRA
approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets. BHEEZHIBXAEFAIBEEEE o
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate REAERBTFZEEHELR  ART
significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments, the FAEREZEERRLEERAR  FHIE
loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished ERaREtE B EREFEIRE—D
between the Group's different customer bases. RAERFEERFZBEED
ECL loss rates are based on past actual loss experience. These rates ?EHHTD BBz BEEDERABTERES
are adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions during BB HE - ZFHBRESFEEFAE - U
the period over which the historic data has been collected, current J52 B SR BUIR W R R RS 2 B RO ~ BRT
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the RBERREAEEDARBREZREZTR
expected lives of the receivables. SHERAZEERR=EZHNER -
Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when there is e S ETRAA PN EIRINE SR EBERE
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no HNEER > BREME - TeERIETERA
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure WEIRIBEZ R EE (HPEE) EHB AR
of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group. FEAREBIERERGE o
There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to trade HRAERZERHERS > TRKES
receivables as the Group has large number of customers. IR m mERNEERRE o
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 6. A ERRANREE
e =
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continueq) STEw
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERM®
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) BRESHERSHEEE)
For trade receivables and contract assets, ECL allowance as at 31st RN E_=Fk_E__F#+_A=+—
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: H> BREBSHRELRGHNEENTERES
EEEENT
Trade receivables Contract assets
FElE H7RIE BRHEE
Gross ECL Gross ECL
ECL rate amount allowance ECL rate amount allowance
S e TEHEE EHEE
3B WE EERE [iEd mEm ERRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER FiER FiER
At 31st December 2023 RZEZ=#+ZA=+—-H
Collective assessment BRI
- Current to 1 year past due -REEREA—F 0% 228,392 440 0% 344,926 343
- 1-2 years past due - BE—EmE 26% 1,000 260 = = =
- Over 2 years past due - BERIBmE 100% 2,427 2,427 = = =
Individual assessment (ElIRE 100% 6,385 6,385 100% 504 504
238,204 9,512 345,430 847
At 31st December 2022 AR _F+-B=1+—H
Collective assessment BRI
- Current to 1 year past due - A ER—F 0% 192,318 543 0% 368,641 343
- 1-2 years past due -BHR—EmE 25% 404 100 - - -
- Over 2 years past due - BERIBmE 100% 2,087 2,087 - - -
Individual assessment (IR 100% 6,385 6,385 100% 504 504
201,194 9,115 369,145 847
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e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include finance lease
receivables, other receivables and deposits, time deposits and bank
balances and cash.

The Group applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime ECL for
finance lease receivables that results from transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 16. Based on individual assessment, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

For other receivables and deposits, the management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience and available forward-looking information.
Management believes that the credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding other receivable balance is not significant. Besides,
management is of opinion that there is no significant increase in credit
risk on these other receivables and deposits since initial recognition as
the risk of default is low after considering the factors above.

While time deposits and bank balances and cash are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the Group only places deposits in
reputable banks and financial institutions, the identified impairment loss
was immaterial.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Board, which has built a liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities. The Group relies on its
operating cash flows as a significant source of liquidity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

b7 o = |
F+A=+—HLFE

6. WHBRABERRAAEE

n'I'E &)
(c) B @

For the year ended 31st December 2023 #Z ===

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below shows the Group’s financial liabilities analysing into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities.

TERAMAERRPRBESHIBEZ
E?"F%F‘ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ HENEI Dz emE
B RPFMBEZSENEREBEZEH
KINRITERE o

Ondemand Over 1year
or within but within Carrying
1year 5 years Total amount
BHREKRN Bie—F

R—ER BRLER - H IRE(E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET Ti#wT TET Ti#wT

At 31st December 2023 RZEZ=F+"A=+—-H

Non-derivative financial liabilities FrETESHEE

Trade payables N EZTE 302,821 = 302,821 302,821
Other payables and accruals HthEAER & &R 179,245 = 179,245 179,245
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (M:D) 11,259 = 11,259 11,259
Lease liabilities HEaRE 5,709 6,373 12,082 11,158
499,034 6,373 505,407 504,483

At 31st December 2022 RZZ2ZZF+ZRA=+—H

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTAETASRERE
Trade payables e EZ7E 313,598 - 313,598 313,598
Other payables and accruals HitE e ket &R 169,077 - 169,077 169,077
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE () 56,347 - 56,347 56,347
Lease liabilities HEAE 7,765 2,224 9,989 9,734
546,787 2,224 549,011 548,756
Note: PEE

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on
demand or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31st
December 2023, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of such bank
borrowings amounted to HK$11,259,000 (2022: HK$56,347,000). Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the directors of the Company do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the banking facilities.

M #E IR B SR EE R IRIT (AT LB R 9
st A\TRRERSAN —FAINREERRN © 1
TEC=F+2AZ+—H ) ZERTEROE
BEIRANE4EER 211,259,000 (ZE 2 2F :
56,347,00087T) ° EEEAEBEPOMBRR > &
AREFHERIT AR ETERIBEZREEE
Mo ARABEFRMEIE - ZFRTENRRIFRT
R EERMEPMHTATE BIEMR
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 6. WBREEERAAEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) AEw
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) FiBMEm b )
The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank borrowings TERBEI I A E B REE FRRAVIRITER
with repayment on demand clause based on agreed scheduled *E?}éfﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁqﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂ EREMEARAE
repayments set out in the banking facilities. The amounts include HIERDINT - ZZREERAAOFX
interest payment computed using contractual rates. #%Eﬁﬂ%ﬁn °
Over 1 year
Within but within
1 year 2 years Total
Bia—F
R—ER BRAER #act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T T#T T#T
At 31st December 2023 RZE_=H+"H=+—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 11,390 = 11,390
At 31st December 2022 N B2 HF+ZHA=+—H
Bank borrowings RITEE 47,441 11,377 58,818
(d) Fair value measurement (d) 2REEHZE
Financial instruments and non-financial assets measured at fair value RGEMBERRARAUAABEFEZE
in the consolidated statement of financial position are categorised into MTAREEREE  DAZEBANEE
the three level fair value hierarchies as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair Value BR(EEREBMBRESENE 13 KA
Measurement”: NEEFE))
Level 1: Fair value measured only using level 1 inputs, i.e. BB I UE—REBaAEBESEZARN
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or BE > UEREERaENEH
liabilities at the measurement dates. RIS PNRBEREST = ©
Level 2: Fair value measured using level 2 inputs, i.e. observable - BIRE CUEZESAGSEZARN
inputs which fail to meet with Level 1, and not using significant T‘LTE BIE & A B2 PR EI RN
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which —ERAE BEHABLAER
market data are not available. T\ﬂ%ﬁ 2 B o AR ZBAE

AUETBUBETFSEZBAE -

Level 3: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs - FBZRE PREENABZAEE
for the asset or liability. %H)% T”EE EHABUSEZANE
&o
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 6. WBRAKREERANREE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continueq) AEw
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d) 2o EEHFE®
(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (i) THEEREZHEEZAAMBE

At 31st December 2023
W-E=F+"B=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BB BB B=E 4zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#xT TF#T TF#T TF#T

Recurring fair value REEAREENE
measurement
Financial asset at FVOCI BARBESBHEMEE
WS IR SR &=
Unlisted preferred stock (Note 23) JE EH{1B5EAR (F15E23) - = 3,906 3,906
At 31st December 2022
W_EZZF+"HB=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B2 FE F=E rEst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET FET FHET
Recurring fair value REEAREENE
measurement
Financial asset at FVOCI RAAEESBHEMEE
SRR SRS E
Unlisted preferred stock (Note 23) FE_EmBSEAR (HI5E23) - - 3,899 3,899
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 6. HIEAMEERRAAEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) HE®

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d) 22 EEHFEW@
(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (i) THEERZHEBEZAABEGE)
(Continued)
The following table gives information about the fair value TREJEERANBEEBAMS
determination of the financial asset at FVOCI. HW@IRZEMEEZ AREBEEZ
Bt} o
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
&{ES & FARRBABE #E
Investment in unlisted Equity value based on backsolve method ~ Weighted probability rate under qualified ~ Weighted probability rate of
preferred stock measured  with reference to recent market IPO scenario and liquidation scenario* 20% (2022: 20%) and 80%
at Fvodl transaction price allocated to series A (2022: 80%), respectively
preferred stock under qualified IPO scenario

and liquidation scenario®
BAREEREAMEZE EREHE 0 2EOREARRIELRY SERBRLHEERRRFRRRETZ fERERAREERRR

W yERMmst & 2 3L THMERFEAENEREE R BRESET 2 NERED
BEREKE FA20%(ZF -5 1 20%)

R80%(ZB =4 : 80%)*

Volatility 29.19% (2022: 32.91%)
KB 2919%(ZBZ2F
32.91%)
Risk-free rate 4.09% (2022: 4.15%)
EARRE 409%(ZFZ £ : 415%)
*  Qualified IPO scenario represents the circumstances in which the * AEBEA L HEEBERIEELKE
preferred stock converted to common shares and are available to sell to DR EERAAIHAAREEZE
the public e
An increase/decrease in weighted probability rate used under ERIBSEIE T 2R Mg,/
liquidation scenario would result in an increase/decrease in fair AOBERARBEENEHL &
value. An increase/decrease in weighted probability rate used under ERER FEEEERE T ZMAM
qualified IPO scenario would result in a decrease/increase in fair RERE I ISR DR E R AR BER
value. ye:
An increase/decrease in volatility would result in a decrease/ RGN EBUA A EER
increase in fair value. An increase/decrease in risk-free rate would D IEI0 o ARG IR
result in a decrease/increase in fair value. BRANEERD, G0 o
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 6. WEEMEERAAEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) AEw
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d) 2REEAZE®
(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (i) EHEERETMEEZAAMBEGE)
(Continued)
The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the Group’s financial RARBEERE=ZEANDENRE
assets classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follow: EsREERDERROT:
Financial
asset
at FVOCI
BAREE
EiRHME
EU=EIERZ
EWMEE
HK$'000
F#Ex
At 1st January 2022 RZZZZH—HF—H
Additions Em 3,925
Exchange realignment PE R A (26)

At 31st December 2022 and 1st January 2023 WZE=-=H+=-RA=+—H%

—E-=%—H—H 3,899

Exchange realignment B e 7

At 31st December 2023 W_ZE2_=F+"A=+—H 3,906
During the year ended 31st December 2023, there were no BHE_Z_=—F+_"_B=+—HLE
transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2022: Nil). E F—REB -F$_EBRE=B

BREEBB(CE_F 18-

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of other BERA - KoM BREPEMER
financial assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated financial BEREHABENREEREAREB
statements approximate their fair values. BHEE
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 6. WBEMEERAAEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) AEw
(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d) 2REEAZE®
(ii) Fair value of non-financial assets (i) EEFMEEAIABEE
The following table presents the Group's properties measured at TREVAEBZESUEENUR R
fair value on a recurring basis categorised into the three level fair BESEZYE > BENRAAEBEN
value hierarchies: =EEx :

At 31st December 2023
RZE_=%+"H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—E BB H=E 4zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T#xT TF#T F#T T#T

Recurring fair value REMQAREEHHE
measurement
Investment properties (Note 20) &R E#2 (M{5520) = = 50,800 50,800
Land and buildings (Note 19) T RIEF (HHEE19) - - 311470 311,470
- - 362,270 362,270
At 31st December 2022
RIZ2__H+"A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BB BB BB 4ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET FHET FET
Recurring fair value BEMAAEEHNE
measurement
Investment properties (Note 20)  RE¥ % (HI5£20) - - 52,000 52,000

Land and buildings (Note 19) Tt igF (fFEE19) -

319,075 319,075

- - 371,075 371,075

The Group’s investment properties and land and buildings were REBZBEYER T M RIEFTHZ
stated at valuations made at 31st December 2023 and 2022 by AR ERIEI T+ A=+
an independent professional valuer at market value basis which is —HEBUFEEMLEMN2E TS LR
determined by reference to market evidence of recent transactions BEYELRRZ 2ERE » ZEEY
for similar properties. (RO HEEEETEMGRY
fRo

The Group’s management reviews the valuation performed by the AEREEEBRHRE L GEMET
independent valuer for the financial reporting purposes. Discussion ZEEMERFERRA R o (HEBIZ
of valuation processes and results are held at least once every year, ZEmkEREINEFET X
which is in line with the Group’s annual reporting date. BAERFEFRRA—K -

156 Annual Report 2023 %R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M B RRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 6. MERAGEERRANEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) HEw

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued) (d) 22 EBEHFE®W
(ii) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued) (i) FFEHMEEIAEEGE
The valuation technique and significant unobservable inputs of the BEMER T REFRAAEENG
fair value of investment properties and land and buildings are as BEAFRARBEERTREZH AZEN
follows: ~
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
hERS FURRBARE HiREE
Investment properties Market comparison approach Discount on quality of the buildings 9% to 12%
- Hong Kong (2022: 9% to 16%)
REME mHLEE BFE8iTE 9% F12%
-&E (ZZZ2E 9% E16%)
Land and buildings Market comparison approach Discount on quality of the buildings 9% to 12%
- Hong Kong (2022: 9% to 16%)
THRIEF mHLEE BFE8iTE 9% F12%
e (ZZZ2E 9% ZE16%)
Land and buildings Market comparison approach Premium on quality of the buildings 1%
~The PRC (2022:3%)
THRIEF mHLEE BFE8HE 1%
- (CBEZZE 3%)
The fair value of investment properties and land and buildings R BEBERPRAZEENER T MK
located in Hong Kong and the PRC are determined using market BFZRAABEDHEATELEERES
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of ZNAEROTEBRMEGTAR
comparable properties on a price per square foot basis, adjusted ZHHEBRMERE » WiRAEREYE
for a discount specific to the quality and floor of the Group's EEFHAR - WEEENBRSH
buildings compared to the recent sales of similar properties. Higher # IIEHRENARBESS -
discount on quality of the buildings will result in a lower fair value
measurement.
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value measurement (Continued)

6. HERAGEERRANEE
HF=2e
(d) 2o EEHFE®
(i) FSHEERREE )

RARBEEBRE=BANDENEAE
HicBYER T RIEFIREEHIR

(ii) Fair value of non-financial assets (Continued)

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the Group's
investment properties and land and buildings classified within level

3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows: mr
Investment Land and
properties buildings Total
"EME Tt RIEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FEx FEx
At 1st January 2022 RW_E-__&#—HF—H 54,300 281,700 336,000
Addition =+ - 49,175 49,175
Depreciation charge e - (11,047) (11,047)
Fair value loss NAEEEER (2,300) - (2,300)
Revaluation loss BHEE - (753) (753)
At 31st December 2022 and MR-+ =ZR=+—HR
1st January 2023 —E-=%—H—H 52,000 319,075 371,075
Depreciation charge e = (11,724) (11,724)
Fair value loss NABEFRE (1,200) = (1,200)
Exchange realignment E AR = (897) (897)
Revaluation surplus BHRBER = 5,016 5,016
At 31st December 2023 WZEZ=F+ZA=+—H 50,800 311,470 362,270

Fair value loss of investment properties is recognised under line
item “fair value loss on investment properties” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

BENENANEESEREARE
R EWTRENEZ AN EEGEIE
Aepres o

Revaluation surplus/(loss) of land and buildings are recognised
under line item “revaluation surplus/(loss) of land and buildings” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and included
under “property revaluation reserve”.

T REF 2 EHEER (BB IR
BEERERENMESERG,
(B EETEINBEEYMEE
fhfEmEIA o

During the year ended 31st December 2023, there were no
transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 (2022: Nil).

RBEZZ_=F+"A=+—HL
FE B E -B_EBREZEZE
WmEEH(CE - F ) o
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. MA RS ERE ¥

The Group's revenue is analysed as follows: REBBWBADHUT !
2023 2022
—8_= T CE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Sales of goods HEG® 1,179,728 1,090,786
Revenue from service contracts RERBENZRA 1,180,697 1,124,700
2,360,425 2,215,486

The executive directors have been identified as the chief operating decision
maker. The executive directors have reviewed the Group's internal reporting
in order to assess the performance and allocate resources. The executive
directors have determined the operating segments based on the Group's
internal reporting.

The Group is currently organised into two (2022: two) operating divisions —
Information Technology Products (“IT Products”) and Information Technology
Services ("IT Services”). These divisions are the basis on which the Group
reports its primary segment information to the chief operating decision
maker. The business nature of each segment is disclosed as follows:

IT Products

Being the business of information technology in supplying of information
technology and associated products.

IT Services

Being the business of information technology in providing systems
integration, software and consulting services, engineering support for
products and solutions and managed services.

WITESOREDAHEBEERRE - AITE
E A E AP BB EE R LUE ST B R D BT
ER - ATESFRBAER 2 NEREREEKL

.
=ba=i

REFHAME(CEZZF @ mE)&E P4
B - BRI R ER (B ER) RERR R
AR® (BRI o LEPFIRAEEZ R
HESNWEMTEIBEERAREZEE - K
DBz EBIEEIREET ¢

BMRRER

B E AR R ERRIEMER EHN RS
%% o

BRI ARTS

IR ARRER ~ R RERRT - ER&#
RAERZIEEREERBZEMRKRE
%% o
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

7. WA RSDEBER @

Segment information about these businesses is presented below: ZEEBZOBERZFNUNT ¢

Year ended 31st December 2023 BE_ZE-_=F+-A=+—HLFE

160

IT Products IT Services Total

BilliER EMEHRRS 4zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ERT F#ET F#ET

Revenue from external customers REIMBER ZUA 1,179,728 1,180,697 2,360,425

Intersegment revenue DEBEUA 1,765 27,973 29,738

Segment revenue DEBUIA 1,181,493 1,208,670 2,390,163

Reportable segment profit PIERE D BB iE T 98,702 46,720 145,422

Segment depreciation DERTEE 3,385 13,792 17,177
Additions to property, REYE ~ BERRES

plant and equipment * 28 3,091 3,119

Additions to property, plant and equipment of HK$15,727,000 were related to

unallocated assets.

Year ended 31st December 2022

¥ OBERRIREEZREYE - BMERRES

15,727,000 7T ©

HE_Z__S#+_RA=+—HIEE

IT Products IT Services Total

BHRKER BERRHRART wast

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET

Revenue from external customers REIIEEE ZIWA 1,090,786 1,124,700 2,215,486

Intersegment revenue DEBREUTA 2,433 21,695 24,128

Segment revenue DERA 1,093,219 1,146,395 2,239,614

Reportable segment profit PRS0 B0 iE T 101,600 77,818 179,418

Segment depreciation DERTE 3,432 13,531 16,963
Additions to property, REME - BERERE*

plant and equipment * 61 4,314 4,375

Additions to property, plant and equipment of HK$55,085,000 were related to

unallocated assets.
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. MA RSB EPEE @

(Continued)

FEERBARBRAREOME D ZEEHRR
EE2HII0T ¢

The Group’s assets and liabilities by reportable segments as at reporting
dates are presented below:

As at 31st December 2023 H-E-=%+=HA=+—H

IT Products IT Services Total

BEAREER EARSRS et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T#&T F#ET F#ET

Reportable segment assets AR E DI EE 506,343 395,947 902,290

Reportable segment liabilities AmEIHERs 344,080 263,683 607,763
As at 31st December 2022 R_E - _F+_"H=+—H

IT Products IT Services Total

BRI ESR BEfRERE “aEt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET TFET

Reportable segment assets AR EDEE E 467,958 398,915 866,873

Reportable segment liabilities AR EDEEE 378,680 226,424 605,104

(a) BEPEEHER

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as IR E D ERPTER AR & STEURTH B MT5E3()
the Group's accounting policies described in Note 3(c). Performance is Frit AL BN & StEERAR - RIFIHIRE
measured based on segment profit that is used by the chief operating FERERRERN D EE R TG D E
REMHWEFHE - IERBEZTED
FZEPIEREDED ©

(a) Segment accounting policies

decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance. Income tax expense is not allocated to
reportable segments.

FEBBEA B BERERDED

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group are

allocated based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segment profit is profit before income tax, excluding
unallocated other income, unallocated other gain, net, share of results of
associates, unallocated depreciation for property, plant and equipment
that are used for all segments, fair value loss on investment properties,
finance costs and unallocated corporate expenses (mainly include staff
costs and other general administrative expenses) of the head office.

EBRYZEBSRELEDC ©

FIERE ) BB EF RPRFTSIRANES - &
BERDEAEMUEA ~ KD EEMFU
i~ EEEERBEE A DR ER
ZNE - BERRBZRDEINE « ®E
MEZ RABEBIR - BHEREREMHE
BRZARDEABM (FEZBEETMAER
H—R1THER) °
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA RS EEE @

(Continued)

(a) Segment accounting policies (Continued) (a) FEPEHEE @)

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates, deferred
income tax assets, tax recoverable, time deposits, bank balances and
cash and unallocated corporate assets (mainly include property, plant
and equipment and investment properties that are used by all segments,
prepayments, deposits, other receivables and financial asset at FVOCI).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax liabilities,
deferred income tax liabilities and unallocated corporate liabilities, which
mainly include lease liabilities, accrued charges of the head office and
bank borrowings.

RIS DMNEENBRERE AR Em
BIEFFSMEE ~ TRERIE - ERF
o BRTERRRERRDEADEE (X
EOEMADEBERZYE  BERRH
UREEME ~ TRARIE ~ 5 HMAE
WREREAABEBBHMEZE WD
RMERBEE) -

ARENBHNEETBENAMBIRE
& IBEFSRaERkADREAREEE
EOEHEAE BNEEZRAERAR
RITEE) °

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) ATEREZFEBNA - 185 - BE

profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities are
reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

Ea@EmHiR

FISEZDEIRA ~ B - BEREREHA
FEBZERERBEERBEBEHERU

follows: T
2023 2022
—®== ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue KA F#T FET
Reportable segment revenue AIRE D IULA 2,390,163 2,239,614
Elimination of intersegment revenue HEH o0 B E A (29,738) (24,128)
Revenue per consolidated statement of profit or loss R4 & B RIIEFRIUA 2,360,425 2,215,486

Intersegment revenue is charged at cost plus a percentage of profit
mark-up.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RMNEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. MA RSB EPEE @

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) ATREZDEBUWA - 1855 - BE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) b-3=Vi-t:pFa 1 0
2023 2022
—E== =S 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit or loss I TF#T FHBT
Reportable segment profit Tiﬁiﬁ“ﬁ/ 2l 145,422 179,418
Unallocated amounts: ROFCAIAE
Unallocated other income ROFCEMUTA 13,813 4,046
Unallocated other gain, net ROFEMFW R 59,713 61,467
Fair value loss on investment properties REVEZ NAEERIE (1,200) (2,300)
Unallocated depreciation ROBECITE (8,344) (7,709)
Share of results of associates g NI+ (1,685) (62,196)
Finance costs AR (2,563) (3,545)
Unallocated corporate expenses RO ABRX (56,242) (49,795)
Profit before income tax per consolidated PR BB mRTIRH
statement of profit or loss FRPTSIR AR T 148,914 119,386
2023 2022
—E-= ZEITHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets BE TF#T FHET
Reportable segment assets AIRENHEE 902,290 866,873
Unallocated assets: FPEEE -
Interests in associates = /NI 1,258,056 1,192,897
Deferred income tax assets RIEFRSIMEE 781 1,213
Tax recoverable AT EIFRIE 3,044 14,242
Time deposits EHRER 287,218 -
Bank balances and cash RITEMRRE 252,401 547,635
Unallocated corporate assets IR REIEE 407,104 409,423
Total assets per consolidated statement of PR B BT RS RD
financial position BEMREE 3,110,894 3,032,283
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e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA RS EEE @

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) AIEREZ FEBNA -~ 185 - BE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) Ra@EmHk®
2023 2022
—g=-= TECICE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Liabilities =1 F#ET FHET
Reportable segment liabilities AIRENHEE 607,763 605,104
Unallocated liabilities: ROFEERE :
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFRIEIREE 5,331 7,724
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFFISMEE 170,229 169,423
Unallocated corporate liabilities RO ABIEE 150,255 190,213
Total liabilities per consolidated statement of RERE B RTIRD
financial position I=RERGEE 933,578 972,464
The following table sets out information about the geographical segment TREIIBEAREERBINEE R Z WA
location of the Group's revenue from external customers and its non- RIERFEE(EMTARELEMSHEE
current assets (other than financial instruments and deferred income tax RN ZHENEDE - TR ZHMEBMETY
assets). The geographical location of customers is based on the location ERXmERERBNE LG 2T o
at which the services were provided or the goods were delivered. The NEBFERPEEZHEMUEMS » ¥
geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based on X BERSBREEMEDREZEE
the physical location of the asset in the case of property, plant and 2B FRTEM ~ B E E KA RIEA
equipment and investment properties, the location of the operations to SHEHW D ECES 2 PR1EH ~ MRS E#
which they are allocated in the case of intangible assets and prepayment m S HEFSPRTEMH o

and the location of operations in the case of interests in associates.
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA B EPER @

(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) AIEREZ FEBUNA « 1855 - BE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) b-3=Vi-t:pFa 1 0
Revenue from external Specific non-current
customers assets
Place of domicile FR{EH REMBEEZIRA HHIERBDEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—S=fF —T__H Z¥Z= B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET TF#T FHET
Hong Kong 58 2,232,844 2,117,204 333,437 335,461
usS E[H - - 1,232,932 1,172,146
Singapore Hr N = - 25,124 19,952
Mainland China B P it 7,258 4,154 53,902 52,545
Macau Pl 56,202 29,917 1,816 3,688
Thailand B35 50,363 47,529 973 333
Taiwan =y 13,758 16,682 70 529
2,360,425 2,215,486 1,648,254 1,584,654
Information about major customers TEEFFREH
The Group has one (2022: one) customer with whom transaction HE_Z-_=H+"_A=+—HIEE>
exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue amounted to approximately AERBAE—NU(ZE_2F . —)EF
HK$295,481,000 during the year ended 31st December 2023 (2022: NRZZEBERERZEZHBKRANTI0%
HK$377,407,000). The revenue attributable to IT Products segment F£FEA£4295,481,0008 0 (ZE - " F ©
and IT Services segment amounted to approximately HK$133,757,000 377,407,00087T) - BEZE_=F+
(2022: HK$220,549,000) and HK$161,724,000 (2022: HK$156,858,000) ZA=+—BIHFE  BEREMRRK
respectively during the year ended 31st December 2023. D B R B EHL RS 2 BRI R A 2

B#94133,757,0008 (28
220,549,000 7T) K2 161,724,000 75 (—
T4 156,858,000 7T) o
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e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA BRSDEER @

(Continued)
(c) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (c) REEFRAHNZIMARE
customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services FEER—BEENE-—SBRMEBEER
over time and at a point in time, details of the Group's timing revenue FRBUTTERA > AEBHEZZ "=
recognition during the years ended 2023 and 2022 were as follows: FRZEZHF+A=+—HLEFEZ
WO FESR B REEN T
2023 2022
—g=-= TECICE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FHET
Timing of revenue recognition U A FE ST S BG
At a point in time B 1,362,195 1,256,420
Over time —EEE 998,230 959,066
Revenue from external customers REIMNEEZR Z WA 2,360,425 2,215,486
Revenue relates to performance obligation that are unsatisfied as RIBZ=F+ZHB=+—H  x=HE
at 31st December 2023 amounted to HK$1,508,621,000 (2022: NEFEZ WA A1,508,621,000/8T(ZF
HK$1,395,613,000) are expected to be recognised within one to five T4 11,395,613,000/7T) WHEER—E2 R
years. FRHED o
8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hthr A
2023 2022
=8== TECCE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHET
Interest on bank deposits RITERA R 10,736 398
Rental income from investment properties (Note 20) KEKREYEZBEWA FTEE20) 2,836 2,751
Others Hith 2,164 1,278
15,736 4,427
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

9. OTHER GAIN, NET 9. H{thF Uz
2023 2022
—8_= TR CE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  BERRE IR (3) -
Gain on disposal of interest in an associate HE—MEE A B R 2 W 668 -
Exchange loss, net ERBEZ FE (1,319) (2,460)
Net gain on deemed disposal of partial interest in RIEHEHE A BOEER
an associate (Note 22) FUER (FEE22) 60,394 64,063
Others Hh (27) (136)
59,713 61,467
10.FINANCE INCOME 10. 845 UR A
Finance income represents accretion of discount recognised upon initial MBBAIET T R EA R EEREDEWREHE
recognition of finance lease receivables to their fair values. ERIEBEBOALIREM -
11.FINANCE COSTS 1. B4F5 A
2023 2022
—B_=F =
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FHET
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEaBEZMBER 356 387
Interest on bank borrowings RITEENE 2,207 3,158
2,563 3,545
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

12.PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

12.FRFR1S IR AR F

2023 2022
—EZ= ZEITHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T F#ET
Profit before income tax is arrived BREFSIRATEF AR (B A)
at after charging/(crediting): THIEIE
Auditors' remuneration: 2SI B
Audit services ZH AR
- Current year -REE 2,167 2,183
- Under/(over) provision in respect of prior year -IBEEEEENE, (BEEEE) 50 (120)
Non-audit services FERZBARTS 1,082 950
Depreciation: #rEe
- Property, plant and equipment - owned assets - BMEKRRE -BEEE
(Note 19) (FfF5E19) 18,339 17,844
- Property, plant and equipment - right-of-use assets - #1% ~ BEM&fFE - FREEE
(Note 19) (FfF5E19) 7,182 6,828
Lease charges: HEMS
- Short term leases - AR E 730 2,008
ECL allowance of trade receivables (Note 26) [N E ZIa 2 TEERE B IE 5 E
(H35E26) 489 1,207
Reversal of ECL allowance of trade receivables (Note 26) FEWE 7 I8 FAHAE B85 5
(0] (Fi5E26) (92) (396)
Reversal of provision for obsolete inventories, net fREFEREREIFE (3) (48)
Write off of inventories FEMH 79 64

13.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

BESENRASZ (FEEEE

i &)

2023 2022

—E-=F TETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ExT FET

Salaries and other benefits (Note (a)) e REMEF (k@) 564,604 483,218
Performance related incentive bonus RIABRZIRENTEAL 76,478 77,212
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses UMD AERSZ N2 FE 11 47
Retirement benefit costs (Note (b)) BRIREFFH B =R (M sE (b)) 24,957 18,715
666,050 579,192
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

13.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

During the year ended 31st December 2023, no government grant (2022:
HK$19,662,000) was received from the Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”),
which aims to retain employment and combat COVID-19, under the Anti-epidemic
Fund, set up by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR Government”). The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support
to enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be made redundant.
Under the terms of the grant, the Group is required not to make redundancies
during the subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to the
employees.

During the year ended 31st December 2023, no government grants amounting to
(2022: HK$220,000) was received from government authorities in Mainland China,
Macau and Taiwan for supporting the Group's foreign operations.

During the years ended 31st December 2023 and 2022, there were no
contributions forfeited by the Group on behalf of its employees who left the plan
prior to vesting fully in such contribution, nor had there been any utilisation of such
forfeited contributions to reduce future contributions. As at 31st December 2023
and 2022, no forfeited contributions were available for utilisation by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contribution.

14.DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

BESEFREZ (FEIEESE
BlsE)

MI5E :

BE_E-="F+"B=+—HLEE > £&£EH
B BB R Rt E2PESESS
B(ZEZ 24 :19,662,000587T) » STERER
EFMINE2019BHARER - B BN ARE
REMBZR  URBIEEHZEZEBT - R
BEB 2GR > AEERHEREMAIABE R ET
HE > UEMAESARIHTEIIE -

BE_ZC=F+_PA=+—HLEE &R
TS RE P © JRPTR & BT ERPI BT A
BI(ZZ2 =4 :220,00087w) » UEZFHAEEH
WESNERS 2 B o

BE_Z_=F+-RB=+-—HN-TZ_F+
ZA=t—BLLEE  AEREEAREIREE
BRZHRZ AR EF BN ESRBHER - thiR
BREAZFRWEREDRRMR - KT
=E+_A=+-—HBM-Z__F+_/F=+—
B o AE R WA A LREIR A (R
K e

14.E5M=

Rig EHRA -~ FE(REHFRAD H383(1)HFLL
RARBIGRBEEEF DB R RB) 52805 EERY

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as EEZMEWOT -
follows:
2023 2022
—EZ= TECF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FEx
Fees ok 550 487
Other emoluments: Hihpl= -
Salaries and other benefits e R EMEF] 4,700 3,867
Performance related incentive bonus RIRBRIZIRBITEAL 7,289 8,319
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RINERETEIMERR 18 18
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses MR AERE 2 X - 6
12,557 12,697
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (cortinued) VEEME «
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2022: six) directors KA BNREMEA(ZZEZ2F 1 A )E
were as follows: E2MEWT

Year ended 31st December 2023
HE-E-=HE+-PB=t—-HLEE

Performance
related  Retirement Equity-settled
Salaries incentive benefit  share-based
and other bonus scheme payment
Fees benefits (Notea) contributions expenses Total
REARZ MR
HER SEBITEAL BINER  AEREM
Name of director £ kS Hitig# ((iEE)] FHEIHR 2% et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFin TFin Tin TFin Tin Tin

Executive directors HTEE

Wang Weihang (Chairman) THMER) = 2,000 1,115 = - 3,115
Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer) TEB(THES) = 2,700 6,174 18 - 8,892
Non-executive directors FaiTES

Cui Yong (Note (b)) A E()) 2 = = = - 2
Zhang Bingxia (Note () REE (M) 33 s s s s 33

Independent non-executive directors I EHITES

Pan Xinrong R 167 = = = s 167
Deng Jianxin e 200 > > > s 200
Or Siu Ching Rerina & 128 = = = = 128

550 4,700 7,289 18 - 12,557
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) UBVEEFME «

Year ended 31st December 2022
BE_T__E+-RA-t-HALEE

Performance
related Retirement  Equity-settled
Salaries incentive benefit  share-based
and other bonus scheme payment
Fees benefits (Notea)  contributions expenses Total
*HERZ PO
ek RENTEAL RINER AEBZA
Name of director A ik EtizF) (Mzta) HE e 2B% ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
Executive directors BirESE
Wang Weihang (Chairman) THMEFR) 23 1167 1810 - - 3,000
Wang Yueou (Chief Executive Officer) TEEB(THER) - 2,700 6,509 18 5 9232
Non-executive director FHTES
Cui Yong ER 55 - - - 1 56
Independent non-executive directors B EHTES
Pan Xinrong B 134 - - - - 134
Deng Jianxin W 161 - - - - 161
Or Siu Ching Rerina g 114 - - - - 114
487 3,867 8319 18 6 12,697
Notes: BEE -
(@) The performance related incentive bonus are determined as a percentage of profit (@) RFFRAZEBIEATNRAERFEGNETE ©
for the year of the Group.
(b)  Mr. Cui Yong resigned as a non-executive director of the Company with effect from (b) EBERER-_Z_=FHEA-TNHHRERRE
24th May 2023. ZIERITES ©
() Ms. Zhang Bingxia was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company with (@ REBXINR-Z_=FHEA_+THHEZEA
effect from 24th May 2023. KNABZIEHITES
During the year ended 31st December 2023, no remuneration has been paid BHEZZ=F+"B=1+—HILFE &&E
by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the ElmastEsMAREREMZNZME > T
Group and no directors have waived any remuneration (2022: Nil). BREEENEEOUME(CEZ2F 1 &|) -
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

15.FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS L.AREEHMZIES
EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year included one (2022: FRAGB RS

one) director, details of whose emoluments are set out in Note 14 above. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2022: four) highest paid individuals for
the year were as follows:

ZREBE—R/(CE-F:
—R)EF > REZHESFHFBEN EXWE14
WE - FRERNZ(CET2F  OB)ZR
SErEEZMEFBUT ¢

2023 2022

—E-= B F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#T FHT

Salaries and other benefits e R E MR 5,304 5,407
Performance related incentive bonus RIBB R IRENTEAL 20,869 20,038
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRRRFISTEIHRR 202 201
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses UMD BB (I 2 B = 6
26,375 25,652

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

REZMENF T5I8E :

Number of individuals

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000

5,000,001 75 %E5,500,000% 7T
5,500,001 756,000,000 7T
6,000,001 75 %E6,500,000% 7T
7,000,0017#7cE 7,500,000 7T
7,500,001 70 %E8,000,000# 7T
8,000,001 75 %E8,500,000# 7T

BAY
2023 2022
2= TECCF
- 1
2 1
1 —
- 1
- 1
1 —
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

16.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 16.FRiS R B2

2023 2022
—8_-= TR E
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Current taxation: BIEATRIA :
Hong Kong profits tax (Note (1)) EHEMER FHEEa) 13,866 17,943
Overseas taxation (Note (i) TEINRIE (ME(11) 2,557 1,417
Under/(over) provision in respect of prior years: BRFEEREIE (BrEEE) @
Hong Kong profits tax HEMER 85 (63)
Overseas taxation BIMRIE 884 (1,939)
17,392 17,358
Deferred taxation (Note 36): IEIEFRIE (MI5E36) -
Current year KEE 203 443
Income tax expense PSR 17,595 17,801
Notes: 5T
(i)  Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of () IREMKEFFSRRESE > SEREEETEN
qualifying entities will be taxed at 8.25%, and the profits above HK$2 million will EH2EEBITRTIERE.25%HR > MBiE2EH
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits ETTRYE A BIZEIZ16.5% IR o RRF & M AREIA)
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at 16.5%. For the years ended 31st BRMMEGENEETRBEEEIZ16.5%NEE
December 2023 and 2022, Hong Kong profits tax of a subsidiary of the Company is MEGR BE_T_=FR-ZF__F+°A
calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. =+—BHLFE > ARAZ—RWBATZEHS
TSR ERIEM R EIFISRIR TG EE
(i) Taxation on overseas profit has been calculated on the assessable profit for (i) BIMNEFIRIEBEHRAERESEMTER ZIRITR
the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group ERRFENERRATETE o
operates.
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A=
16.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cortinued) 16.FR1FIFSZ @
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical KEERFASENANRN 2 RIBERXBERRE
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to HEREN 2 MEFIIRNFEH 2 B mEE L
profits of the consolidated entities as follows: ZENT
2023 2022
—E-= B
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Profit before income tax BRPrIS IR AT E A 148,914 119,386
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% BEBMEMNNZE16.5% sTHZHRIB
(2022: 16.5%) (ZTE "% :165%) 24,571 19,699
Tax effects of: MBTE .
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose EMBAEATINRZZH 4,307 13,392
Income not taxable for tax purpose ERBHEAERR Z WA (11,312) (14,353)
Effect of different tax rates of overseas operations HEBINEBEFTERZ ARREZFE 622 (41)
Effect of temporary differences not recognised KEDHRERZZE - 675
Effect of two-tiered profits tax rate regime MRBIFIERREGIE 2 & (165) (165)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised ERSAIRER 2 MIBEE (818) (161)
Under/(Qver)-provision in prior years BEFERETR (BRERE) 9269 (2,002)
Others Hih (579) 757
Income tax expense FriSinfs 17,595 17,801
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 11.8% (2022: 14.9%). MEFHBERARERI1.3W( ZEZZ
14.9%) ©
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

17.DIVIDENDS 7.8
2023 2022
—8_-= TECF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Dividend approved and paid: HEERZARKRE
Final dividend in respect of the year ended BHE_Z__F+-B=+—H1I
31st December 2022 of 3.0 HK cents FEZARAREAER3.0EWU
(2022: in respect of the year ended I CF I BEIT
31st December 2027 of 3.0 HK cents) per share +-BA=+—HIEEAERK30
A1) 25,011 25,011
Dividends proposed: BOREE S
Final dividend in respect of the year ended BHEZ=F+"F=+—HL
31st December 2023 of 3.0 HK cents FEZRKEAKREAER3.0511
(2022: in respect of the year ended (B —F  BE_T_—fF
31st December 2022 of 3.0 HK cents) per share (Note) +_B=+—RHI-EEAER
3.071) (i) 25,011 25,011

The Directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31st December 2023 of 3.0 HK cents per share
subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EEURARKNEE_Z_=F+"A=+
—HIEFESRKR3.0EWZ KRR BN R
RERBETZREBERGERRIES °

Note: 5T

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2023, as referred to
above, is calculated on the basis of 833,696,492 (2022: 833,696,492) ordinary shares
in issue as at 31st December 2023 and at a final dividend of 3.0 HK cents (2022: 3.0 HK
cents) per share.

THBECEZ_=F+ _A=T—HLEFEZHEIKR
PREREN-_B2_=Z+"A=+—HEB¥TZ
833,696,492(ZZ " "4 1 833,696,492) f @A K
BRI.0BIL(CZZE2EFE | §R3.081L) 2RI BT
o
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

18.EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 1. ABRTIFEAELE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY R F

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to RRAFIRAFE ABEEREANREERTT)
equity holders of the Company is based on the following data: BIYEERSE
2023 2022
—E-=H B ——
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ERT FHET

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for LIt EEREAR R #ERT 2
basic and diluted earnings per share RABIRAFTTE NEGEF 131,319 101,585

Number of shares

L ES (=
2023 2022
—E=HF - S
‘000 ‘000
Thg TR
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for RLUGtEEREART Z S@K
basic earnings per share (Note (i)) e 9EL (s () 833,696 833,671
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares gy B g Bk 8
- Share options (Note (ii)) L AGEID) - 346
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for RAUstESRE RN 2 ZiEk
diluted earnings per share INHEF 78S 833,696 834,017
2023 2022
—T=f T
HK cents HK cents
g3 11 =3Il
Earnings per share gREF
- Basic -EHK 15.75 12.19
- Diluted -8 15.75 12.18
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

BB RPFHFEAERGS

18.EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Notes:

@

(i)

The 833,696,000 ordinary shares are derived from the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31st December 2023.

The 833,671,000 ordinary shares are derived from the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31st December 2022.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st
December 2023 has not taken into account the exercise of the share options of
the Company granted in 2017 and the effect of the dilutive instruments issued by
the Group's associates as they are considered as anti-dilutive.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st
December 2022 has taken into account the exercise of the share options of the
Company granted in 2012 and 2017 but has not taken into account the effect of
the dilutive instruments issued by the Group's associates as they are considered as
anti-dilutive.

(i)

BREF @

MI5E :

HiEPR833,696,000KENBE_R_=F+_F=
+—HIEFERBEETERRIMETIIE

EiBhg833,671,000RENBE_S__F+_-_A=
+— B I EEHRR B B TS @R 98 o

BE_E_-F+_RA=t+—HLFEZSREER
MBEBRARBD ZE—CtFRU 2 BRERETE
BYRBEREEREARDETZAREFERNIA
FE > ARCMBRaEE REEER -

BHEZ- -+ -A=t+—HIEEZEREIR
FBBEARABDNR _E——FER_E—tEREE
RECETHE  BUEREEAERKENBRTZA
BEEANTARE  RATMERAEEREEE
}Eﬁ o
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

19.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19.95% - BB R E
Furniture Computer
Land and and Motor  and office  Right-of-use
buildings fixtures vehicles equipme(nt assets Total
IHREF  GRERRE HE WAERE  EREEE @it

HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Thn T#r T#m TER TEn

At 1st January 2022 B-%--%-B-AH
Cost or valuation A EE 281,700 29812 1,754 125,964 32424 471,654
Accumulated depreciation REHNE - (26,465) (1,754) (116,350) (20,666) (165,235)
Net book amount REFE 281,700 3347 - 9,614 11,758 306,419
Year ended 31st December 2022 HE-E-"F+-RB=t+-BLLEE
Opening net book amount BRESE 281,700 3347 - 9,614 11,758 306419
Additions e 49175 500 - 4,850 - 54,525
Reassessment of lease term B tENHES - - - - 4935 4,935
Depreciation E (11,047) (1,085) - (5712) (6,828) (24,672)
Exchange realignment ERAE - (22) - (160) (515) (697)
Revaluation loss BB (753) - - - - (753)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 319,075 2740 - 8,592 9,350 339,757
At 31st December 2022 RZE_ZF+ZA=+-H
Cost or valuation WA EE 319,075 30,191 1,746 129,045 37,052 517,109
Accumulated depreciation ZEHNE - (27,457) (1,746) (120,453) (27,702) (177.352)
Net book amount SREFE 319,075 2,740 - 8592 9,350 339,757
Comprising; i
At cost AR - 30,191 1,746 129,045 37,052 198,034
At valuation & 319,075 - - - - 319,075
319,075 30,191 1,746 129,045 37,052 517,109
At 1st January 2023 R-E-=%-A-H
Cost or valuation RS EE 319,075 30,191 1,746 129,045 37,052 517,109
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE = (27,451) (1,746) (120,453) (27,702 (177,352)
Net book amount REFE 319,075 2,740 - 8,592 9,350 339,757
Year ended 31st December 2023 HECE-=E+-RA=+-HLEEE
Opening net book amount HREE 319,075 2,740 - 8,592 9,350 339,757
Additions RE - 5,194 1,000 3,768 67 10,029
Reassessment of lease term BitENHED = = = = 6,325 6,325
Lease modification HEEY S S = = 2,492 2,492
Disposals HE - (49) - (7 - (56)
Depreciation & (11,724) (1,364) (33) (5,218) (7,182) (25,521)
Exchange realignment ERHER (897) 19 = (20) (96) (994)
Revaluation surplus BB 5,016 = = = = 5,016
Closing net book amount BRRERE 311,470 6,540 967 7,115 10,956 337,048
At 31st December 2023 RZEZ=F+-B=+-H
Cost or valuation RALE 311,470 34,592 1,548 130,376 45,650 523,636
Accumulated depreciation REHNE = (28,052) (581) (123,261) (34,694) (186,588)
Net book amount REFE 311,470 6,540 967 7,115 10,956 337,048
Comprising: 12
At cost B - 34,592 1,548 130,376 45,650 212,166
At valuation ftfE 311,470 9 = = = 311,470
311,470 34,592 1,548 130,376 45,650 523,636
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

19.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The Group's land and buildings were stated at revaluations made at 31st
December 2023 and 2022. The land and buildings were revalued by an
independent professional valuer, at 31st December 2023 and 2022, at
market value basis which is determined by reference to market evidence
of recent transactions for similar properties. The revaluation gave rise to a
revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred income taxes of approximately
HK$4,188,000 (2022: revaluation loss net of applicable deferred income
taxes of approximately HK$629,000) which has been included in the property
revaluation reserve. Details of fair value measurements are set out in Note
6(d).

As at 31st December 2023, if the land and buildings had not been revalued,
they would have been included in these consolidated financial statements
at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation, of approximately
HK$76,013,000 (2022: HK$78,947,000).

Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and equipment have been

19.495% BB Bz i

FERBZ TMAREFRER B =ZFR "
TTHE+TR=+—RHZGHEYER - iiﬂl&@
FHBUSEGEMN _S2=FK-2 -
F+ZA=+—BRTEEEFETEMG T
2EMG LREYELRRZZENEE - B
BENRERELMSNEEEEGEEFRAS
4,188,000 (T2 == F | EEENFRERE
IEFrISME EEEMEBI844629,0008 T) -
TESERYEELEHE - ARNEEFEFE
ENUNEESEl(e)

RIEBEZ=F+"A=+—H  HLtKkigF
KRB EERELNANRRSITE
HEREE#%476,013,0008T(Z2 & !
78,947,00087T) st AR BB IRE o

KREBZYE BEARRBZITEERGSE

charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: mRPIFRIT :
2023 2022
o I CE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
Cost of goods sold and services rendered THEMARIZHRFE Z M4 15,513 15,336
Selling expenses HEER 3,579 3,494
Administrative expenses 1T &R 6,429 5,842
25,521 24,672

As at 31st December 2023, the Group had pledged land and buildings with
carrying amount of HK$156,000,000 (2022: HK$159,600,000) to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 44.

WA FE44FTHE » KRB =F+"H=+—
B ANEERE®ZEA156,0000008T(ZF
— £ 1159,600,00087) 2 T M RIEFEIR
o NERRTAERZIRITRE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

= .
19.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19.92% R B B st
(Continued)
As at 31st December 2023 and 2022, the net carrying amount of right-of-use RIBE_=FRZZE_"_F+-A=+—H>
assets included in property, plant and equipment are as follows: SAME BERREBZEAREEZRAS
REOE
Carrying amount Depreciation
IREEE e
For the year
As at 31st As at 1st ended 31st
December January December
2023 2023 2023
BE—_T=-=
R-¥Z= RZE_=% +-A=+—H
+=B=+—H —A—H \EEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT F#ExT F#ET
Office premises WA= 9,248 8,964 6,818
Office equipment MRERE 1,708 386 364
Total 4a2g 10,956 9,350 7,182
Carrying amount Depreciation
IRE&EE #rEe
For the year
As at 31st As at 1st ended 31st
December January December
2022 2022 2022
o —
ATET T AZEZZE +ZHA=1+—H
+ZA=+—H —A—H LFFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Office premises WMAEYE 8,964 11,000 6,456
Office equipment WRERE 386 758 372
Total b 9,350 11,758 6,828
During the year ended 31st December 2023, additions to right-of-use assets, BE_Z_=_F+"_RB=1+—HLEFE  £H
right-of-use assets with reassessment of lease term and lease modification HEEZIEN - EAEERZCRESERE
included in property, plant and equipment amounting to HK$67,000 (2022: BN ERAEEEDRANA67,0008T(Z
Nil), HK$6,325,000 (2022: HK$4,935,000) and HK$2,492,000 (2022: Nil), T TFHE) 63250008 (TE &
respectively, which are related to office premises and office equipment. 4,935,00077T) K 2,492,000/8 70 (Z T —4F :
m) ZEAREERRAEMERRAZTRE
1ERA o
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

20.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2012 M

2023 2022
—®== TR E
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
At valuation fhiE
At 1st January n—B—H 52,000 54,300
Fair value loss RAEEEE (1,200) (2,300)
At 31st December w+ZA=+—H 50,800 52,000
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated statement UTREENGREIBmRER
of profit or loss:
2023 2022
—F= I CE
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Rental income (Note 8) A ON(EER)) 2,836 2,751
Direct operating expense arising from investment EEREWAZKEMEmMEL Y
properties that generate rental income BEELEHS 400 381

The investment properties of the Group were revalued by an independent
professional valuer at 31st December 2023 and 2022 at market value basis,
which is determined by reference to market evidence of recent transactions
for similar properties. Details of fair value measurement are set out in Note
6(d).

The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases are set out in Note 41.

As at 31st December 2023, the Group had pledged investment properties
with carrying amount of HK$50,800,000 (2022: HK$52,000,000) to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group as disclosed in Note 44.

FEEBZREVEHBYERGEMN -
ZFERTEB_F+A=t+—HEHEREE
BETERG > D2EHS LEEYMELIRRS
ZERETE - AREEFEFBEHINMEE6()

RBET AT RS EROR K Z KRR BHEEL
RRHIMIEEAT ©

UM 44FRE, > RS2 Z=F+"A=+—
H > AEEREm£%50,800,0008 (222
£ 152,000,000/ 7T) 2 REWEBS TR > UL
ESRTHIEBRZRITRE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

£ T77 =
21.INTANGIBLE ASSETS Q. E\REE
Development
cost
=3 %N
HK$'000
TFHET
At 1st January 2022, 31st December 2022, 1st January 2023 H¥-ZE=-—-f—H—H
and 31st December 2023 —E-_—#+=-A=+—H8-
—E=%—H—HRK
—E-=%+-HA=+—H
Cost D& 5,006
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Rt R E (5,006)
Net book amount ERENFE -
Speshey — -ll-u
22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22.BE AT
2023 2022
—$== =S
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T TFET
Listed (Note) £ (HED) 1,232,932 1,172,146
Unlisted JELE™ 25,124 20,751
1,258,056 1,192,897
Note: BdEE -
The Group's interest in listed securities represents the Group's interest in Grid Dynamics REER EHESF 2R EEAREENGrid Dynamics
Holdings, Inc. (“GDH"), of which its shares are listed on NASDAQ. As at 31st December Holdings, Inc.(TGDH) Z # % » ERMHIPMAITER &
2023, the fair value of the Group's interest in GDH was USD197,318,000 (equivalent to WMo RIBEZ=ZF+_"_A=+—H» KEBRNGDH
approximately HK$1,541,401,000) (2022: USD166,085,000 (equivalent to approximately ZHBEZAMNEEA197,318,000% T (HHERL
HK$1,294,963,000)), which is based on the quoted stock price of GDH on NASDAQ of 1,541,401,000387T) (B -4 : 166,085,000 7T
USD13.33 (2022: USD11.22) per share as at 31st December 2023 and is within Level 1 of (FEE491,294,963,00087T)) » JHIZBR -2 =F
the fair value hierarchy. +ZA=+—BSRGDHRRNMETET 2 #E1333
ET(CEIE D 11.22%57) c ARBEDERTS

HREEBRAAEBERBRE—E -
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b7 o = |
F+ZA=+—HLEE

2. &S A TR @

For the year ended 31st December 2023 #Z ===

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

2023 2022
—E-= B HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T FEx
At 1st January m—B—H 1,192,897 1,191,768
Net gain on deemed disposal of partial interest in RIEREBE AW O
an associate (Note (i) @Hﬁlm(ﬁﬁ% (0)) 60,394 64,063
Disposal of interest in an associate (Note (ii)) HE— MR A B R (BRI (324)
Dividend received BUWKRE (699) -
Share of results of associates L EE A B A (1,685) (62,196)
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of = /NIRRTl
associates Kk, (E518) 5,059 (589)
Exchange realignment PE RSB 2,414 (149)
At 31st December w+—B=+—H 1,258,056 1,192,897
Notes: BIsE -
(i)  During the year ended 31st December 2023, certain restricted stock units and () BHEZ_=ZF+_B=+—HIEEE > #HR®

(i)

performance stock units granted by GDH to its employees were vested and
certain employees had exercised the vested stock options of GDH (2022: certain
employees had exercised the vested stock options of GDH and GDH concluded a
follow-on public offering of 6.6 million shares of its common stock at USD17.5 per
share). As a result, the Group's interest in GDH was diluted and an aggregate gain
on deemed disposal of partial interest in an associate of HK$60,394,000 (2022:
HK$64,063,000) was recognised in “other gain, net” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

On 4th August, 2023, the Group completed the disposal of its entire interest in
an associate, iN Systems (Macao) Limited, at a consideration of approximately
MOP1,060,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,029,000).

(i)

GDHE T RBZE TS IRHIIR M B KRR #
HZRHENERRE > &TREEITEGDHER
BERE(CE-_"_F . GDHETFEEZETS
BE%JHyfﬁ%u&éﬁiiiﬁh%f@zﬂﬂ“ BABRE -

ETRE REELRFEABTEGOHERER
H%E VPG HEEE » IR GDHUER175ETER

NEBEHCOABRTERRG)  RItAER
AGDHZ W E I iR 5185 %%EPEWE@
FU ) R BB REHEHE AR H D ER
W#560,394,0008 7 (T2 24 : 64,063, ooo,%
JT) ©

RIZZ=F)\ANE » AEERRHEREZ
SR CRP) BRAR (REE—RHE AT 2
2 > EALRFIE1,060,000(HBERL
1,029,000/ 7T) °
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22 E QAT @

Particulars of the Group's associates at 31st December 2023 and 2022 are as N B =FERZEBE__F+R=+—H">
follows: REBZBEATFBENT !
Country/

placeof  Percentage of nominal value of
incorporation issued ordinary share capital held

and operations indirectly by the Company
Name of associate HMEIREE FARIRMEREE Principal activities
WEARRE ZER/ 8 ERTEERTZERL FEEH
2023 2022
Sk} - —
Unlisted associates
FEETHEAR

iN Systems (Macao) Limited Macau - 24% Provision of engineering and
software services
BERGRK(RM)BIRAS BF RETERDRMG RS
ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited Thailand 49% 49% Provision of engineering and
software services
RE RETERIM RS
i-Sprint Holdings Ltd. ("-Sprint”) Cayman Islands 35.42% 35.42% Investment holding
HEHE LEER
-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited Hong Kong 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing, and implementing
technology risk management products
ZiFE (EB) R ARAT Y DR BB
EREREMER
Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd. The PRC 35.42% 35.42% Provision of software development,
distributing, implementing and supporting
technology risk management products
TRZAENRBEREEAT H RERERE 28 Btk
SERMEREEERER
-Sprint Innovations (Beijing) Ltd. The PRC 35.42% 35.42% Provision of software development,
distributing, implementing and supporting
technology risk management products
ZHE LR RRAREEAT H RERERE 28 Btk

SERMEREEERE
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22 BE QTR @

Country/
placeof  Percentage of nominal value of
incorporation issued ordinary share capital held

and operations indirectly by the Company
Name of associate MR REE FARIMEREE Principal activities
WEARRE ZER/$E BRTEERTZERL FEEH
2023 2022
—8-= - St =
-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd Singapore 35.42% 3542%  Investment holding, provision of developing,
distributing, implementing and supporting
technology risk management products
Hnsg REZR - R
28 BiERSCRRM AR
BEEREY
i-Sprint Innovations Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing, implementing and
supporting technology risk management
products
BRAD RN Bt R SERM
RREEERER
i-Sprint Innovations Inc. The US 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing and implementing
technology risk management products
E3E DR BB
RBEEEREH
-Sprint Investment Limited Hong Kong 35.42% 3542%  Investment holding, provision of distributing
and implementing technology risk
management products
BB REZR - RERE
2 Bl RSCRRM AR
EEEREH
--Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co. Ltd Thailand 35.42% 35.42% Provision of distributing, implementing and
supporting technology risk
management products
RE RN Bt K SERAM
RREEERER
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE
22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. &S A TR @

Country/
placeof  Percentage of nominal value of
incorporation issued ordinary share capital held

and operations indirectly by the Company
Name of associate HMEIREE FARIMEREE Principal activities
WEARRE ZER/ BRTEERTZARLE IBRE
2023 2022
- Sk} - —
Listed associates
LHBEAT
Grid Dynamics Holdings Inc. The US 19.51% 19.96% Provision of enterprise-level digital
transformation in the areas of search,
analytics, and release automation
E3El RMHRNES ) M > &
Bz CEEEHUBELER
Grid Dynamics International, LLC The US 19.51% 19.96% Provision of service in
Information technology (“IT") engineering
E3E BB (FER R ) TRIRE
Grid Dynamics DOO Beograd - Vracar Serbia 19.51% 19.96% Provision of service in
computer programming
EMgS BRIERS
Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Russia” Russia 19.51% 19.96%  Provision of service in software development,
consulting and relating professional service
&R B  BEREAEERS
Limited Liability Company “Grid Dynamics Poland” Poland 19.51% 19.96%  Provision of service in software development,
consulting and relating professional service
it BHFRE - BERERERRS
Limited liability Company “Grid Dynamics Ukraine” Ukraine 19.51% 19.96%  Provision of service in software development,
consulting and relating professional service
BrH P - BREREREERS
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22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2023 #Z ===

e M B RRMEE

F+A=+—HLEFE

22. &S A TR @

Country/
placeof  Percentage of nominal value of
incorporation issued ordinary share capital held
and operations indirectly by the Company
Name of associate MR REE FARIMEREE Principal activities
WEARRE ZER/$E BRTEERTZERL FEEH
2023 2022
—%-= - —
Limited Liability Company “Cometera Ukraine” Ukraine 19.51% 19.96%  Provision of service in software development,
consulting and relating professional service
BrH D - BREREEEERS
Limited Liability Company "GD Ukraine” Ukraine 19.51% 19.96%  Provision of service and support on behalf of
Grid Dynamics and its customers
SnHE REGrid Dynamics REZ R 124t
RS IR
Daxx Web Industries B.V. The Netherlands 19.51% 19.96%  Provision of service in software development,
consulting and relating professional service
oL B BEREAEERS
Tacit Knowledge Ltd. United Kingdom 19.51% 19.96% Provision of global consultancy services
focused on digital commerce
i FIRANER BN NEERE
Mutual Mobile Inc. The US 19.51% 19.96% Provision of end-to-end design and
development of next-generation applications,
combining mobile, augmented/virtual/mixed
reality, and cloud edge/loT practices
e

RET-AEBEFHNRIRRS

RBR% - BE%E L/ ERRAERN
REBEE MREER
NextSphere Technologies Inc. The US 19.51% - Provision of application development,
systems monetization, product development,
cloud and infrastructure services,
amd quality assurance
E3El ERREFRE  AMERKE - ERMEE

Note: The Group had 19.51% interest in the listed associate, GDH, as at 31st
December 2023 (2022: 19.96%) and had significant influence through its
representation on the Board of Directors of GDH and participates in all
significant financial and operating decision. Therefore, the Group equity

accounted for its share of GDH's results.

All associates have a reporting date of 31st December and held indirectly by

the Company.

*ﬂ%& SRR B 21ReE

BE_Z_=—4+_A=+—0 ' Ft&&
BALHHEATGDH 19.51%89 (=
TTTH119.96%) 0 BEREEINAR
HGDHEEAFEN 2 WA EAMBN
ARERER o AL > AEBBEILGDHERE
HERALR ©

FIEMEABMNEEARSN+—A=+—
H > WERAABEIERE o
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

P 3 — i L
22.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (corinuea 22 BB AT o
The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the EREVARBDESTATEAERFERNEES
directors of the Company, principally affected the results of the year or form BAFXENENAEREEFETERDZAE
a substantial portion of the new assets of the Group. To give details of other EEHERTNER - KRAEERA > =#H
associates would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in HMBERATNFEREREHERNERBNTT
particulars of excessive length. & o
The following table illustrates the summarised consolidated financial TRETKAEDEARZEEHE QS (GDH
information of GDH Group and i-Sprint Group, which are material associates REWBA B #iBATGDHER ) K&i-Sprint&
accounted for using the equity method, adjusted for fair value adjustments B) 2B ERE > WAERIERA R
on acquisition (if any) and any differences in accounting policies and BERBRWA REstHREERERERS
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements: MBHRERNEESE L HIR
Listed Unlisted
i JELEm
GDH Group i-Sprint Group
GDH £ i-Sprint £[E
2023 2022 2023 2022
ZRI=F T -HF ZBIZF T HF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#rx TETT Fi#x THET

Non-current assets FERBEE 1,016,996 813,915 82,988 74,624
Current assets MENEE 2,477,960 2,519,413 103,228 114,687
Current liabilities mEIAaE (329,836) (301,822) (92,198) (108,449)
Non-current liabilities ERFERE (109,565) (108,789) (1,922) (7,898)
Net assets FEE 3,055,555 2,922,717 92,096 72,964
Revenue for the year FRUWA 2,450,168 2,431,837 126,771 115,419
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EEE),aF (23,340)  (300,076) 8,312 344
Other comprehensive (loss)/income — FREMEME (§518),WE

for the year 16,626 (5,692) 5,065 2,669

Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRREER),WaiEE

for the year (6,714) (305,768) 13,377 3,013
Group’s share of: A EEEFELS ¢
(Loss)/Profit for the year FER(EE),EH (4,853) (62,388) 2,944 122
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  FREMEEIREG(E18)

for the year 3,265 (1,534) 1,794 945

Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRE2E(EE) WeiezE
for the year (1,588) (63,922) 4,738 1,067

Dividend received BUARE - - - -
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

22.INTERESTS |N ASSOC'ATES (Continued)

The financial information of iN Systems (Macao) Limited, which is not a

material associate of the Group, is as below:

2. &S ATIHEE @

WEREBEAZHERADNBERAREK (R
FNBRABZMBERIT !

2023 2022
t i B
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
Group's aggregate share of net assets of an associate ~ AEBEE—EHE AT
FEERE = 799
From From
1st January TstJanuary
2023 2022
to to
4th August 31st December
2023 2022
H-¥-= TEITF
—B—H=E —A—H=
—E-= B
NA@HE +ZA=+—H
Group's share of: EERE -
Profit for the period/year BN, EaT 224 70
Total comprehensive income for the period/year AR, R E R 4REE 224 70

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
amount of each of the investments in GDH Group, i-Sprint Group and iN

Systems (Macao) Limited are set out below:

LB Z R GDHEHE  i-Sprint&EE
REBERGHN (R BRADEBEZRER
EEZHRNT :

GDH Group i-Sprint Group iN Systems (Macao) Limited
BERAHE
GDH £ i-Sprint £ (B ERAF
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
] 2R = = 2R ] RICF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TERT TEn Thn TFi#n TER
Total net assets of associates HENTFEEEE 3,055,555 2,922,717 92,096 72964 e 3,329
Portion of ownership interests held ~ A&EBFHE 2 BHEEHS )
by Group 19.51% 19.96% 35.42% 35.42% - 24%
Group's share of net assets of FEBREHENTTEE
associates 596,018 583411 32,620 25,844 - 799
Others Hith (54,237) (116,776) (22,998) (21,088) - -
Goodwill S 691,151 705511 31,802 31,4% - -
1,232,932 1,172,146 41,424 36,252 - 799
Less: Provision for impairment L RERE = - (16,300) (16,300) - -
Carrying amount of interests in REaMBRRMTREEAR
assodlates in the consolidated ERiREE
financial statements 1,232,932 1,172,146 25,124 19,952 - 799

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BEVRFAEBEFRAE



190

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBHRRME
For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#Z-"ZE - =F+"A=+—HIFE

22.INTERESTS |N ASSOC'ATES (Continued)

For the years ended 31st December 2023 and 2022, the Group has
discontinued recognition of its share of losses of ASL Automated Services
(Thailand) Limited. The amounts of unrecognised share of results of this
associate, extracted from the relevant management accounts of the
associate, both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

22 Bt E A TR )

BEZ=FR-ZITFFTIA=FHIE
FE» AEBE K I EEMASL Automated
Services (Thailand) Limited E518 o FE{G % B
RAZFRRBTZ REREE (RS
ENTZEMEEER)WT ¢

2023 2022
—g=-= TECCE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FHET
Unrecognised share of: FREEDREM -
Profit/(Loss) for the year EREFN(E518) 8 (77)
Other comprehensive income HithemEia -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  ER2E K (§58) %8 8 (77)
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of KRR EGE—RERE AR
an associate Z B8 619 627

23.FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVOCI

BEAMREESBHMEE

W IR ERE E

2023 2022

—g-= B —

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ERT FHET

Preferred stock of an unlisted US company —RFE LM EBEABEER 3,906 3,899

During the year ended 31st December 2022, the Group completed the
subscription of 759,301 series A preferred stock of an unlisted US company
at a consideration of USD500,000. The Group designated the investment as
financial asset at FVOCI.

Details of the fair value measurement of the investment are set out in Note
6(d).
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

24.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 24.igfERZ|9o 2z T A

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the

line items below:

ERMTAZ S BEREEAR TIIIRE !

2023 2022
—E-= —E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T FEx
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost S ER A VIR Z SRS =
Trade receivables FEUN B 5 7008 228,692 192,079
Other receivables and deposits HithEUGRIE R iZE 15,561 12,455
Finance lease receivables R E R ERIE 4,225 5018
Time deposits TE BT 287,218 -
Bank balances and cash RITERRIRE 252,401 547,635
788,097 757,187
Financial asset at FVOCI (non-recycling) BARBEESABHM2EINETIRZ
RS E (RaT#EE)
Financial asset at FVOCI BAMEEREEMEZEWGRYIR
EREE 3,906 3,899
792,003 761,086
Financial liabilities ERAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B ER AR SRl A E
Trade payables e B S8 302,821 313,598
Other payables and accruals HAE (I FIa A fE T E A 179,245 169,077
Bank borrowings IRITEE 11,259 56,347
Lease liabilities HESE 11,158 9,734
504,483 548,756
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

25.INVENTORIES 2578

2023 2022
—E-= B
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Inventories #8
- Goods held for resale -FIFEEZEY 86,799 94,465
- Goods pending for customers’ acceptance - BRRREMZEY 91,202 83,565
178,001 178,030
Other contract costs H S 49 117,889 108,502
295,890 286,532
Goods held for resale and goods pending for customers’ acceptance mainly FEFEEBMREGEREMZEMEES
represent computer equipment and software products. BIRE RS ER
During the year ended 31st December 2023, the cost of inventories BHE_ZE_="F+-_B=+—HLEEFE B
recognised as expenses and included in “cost of goods sold” and “cost BRABE W ATHEMA I RTIRERBEZ
of services rendered” amounted to approximately HK$987,312,000 and RAIZ FEMAD B 4987,312,0008 7T K
HK$187,500,000 (2022: HK$893,392,000 and HK$183,604,000), respectively. 187,500,000/8 75 (ZZF £ : 893,392,00078
7t52183,604,000787T) ©
Other contract costs relate to the incremental sales commissions paid to HMEAM A EEE EHHRSE AT
salesperson whose selling activities resulted in customers entering into sales ESHNZHEANBS N ZIEESHEME KE
contacts and fulfillment costs that generates or enhances resources of the EXSUE MR AR BTN E L AR AU
Group that will be used in satisfying performance obligations and expected Bz AEEERZ BAMRAHR

to be recovered.

Other contract costs are recognised as expenses and included in “cost of HMESAMAR R ERD 2 BERELREE
goods sold” and “cost of services rendered” in the consolidated statement mRAERARSY > Wt ATIHHEREIRI1R
of profit or loss in the period in which revenue is recognised. The amount HRBEZ A o ERNRBEPER ZERL
of capitalised costs recognised in profit or loss during the year was A& EEA287,364,0008B L (2T 2 2F ¢
HK$287,364,000 (2022: HK$309,859,000). There was no impairment in 309,859,000 7T) o BAMEA A 2 BAFAEERSL
relation to the opening balance of capitalised costs or the costs capitalised RBEE_Z_=F+_A=+—HLEFERE
during the year ended 31st December 2023 (2022: Nil). Moz AT BELHE(CEF  |\) °
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

®
26.TRADE RECEIVABLES 26.[E IR & 5 7RI
2023 2022
—E== B
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Trade receivables - gross FEULE 705 - 48 % 238,204 201,194
Less: ECL allowance B TEHREEEEEE (9,512) (9,115)
Trade receivables - net fEUS B Z 7018 - 358 228,692 192,079
The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for 30 days FEBZPAAZEREA EEAE30 BEEH -
and has credit control procedures to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances AEBRKREERESRUREERRBE R
are reviewed regularly by senior management. Further details on the Group's 1K - SREIEE LA 2 RIBHEETFE L E A
credit policy are set out in Note 6(b). EBE - AEBNEEBEREBYIENKIEE6(D)
Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables, RIBVER > BKEBESRIBZREDTWNT !
is as follows:
2023 2022
—B_= I CE
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
0-30days 0&E30Kk 131,852 128,816
31 - 60 days 31E60X 55,324 26,553
61 - 90 days 61E90K 19,190 15,575
Over 90 days BiB90K 31,838 30,250
238,204 201,194
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26.TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movement in the Group's ECL allowance of trade receivables is as

26.FEUNE S FIE )

FERBKEZRENRBESHEREEZED

194

follows:

L

2023 2022

—®== S

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#T FHBT

At 1st January m—B—H 9,115 8,483
ECL allowance TRERfE 1B RE 489 1,207
Reversal of ECL allowance TR E B EEERED (92) (396)
Bad debt written off during the year FIRARMEE - (119)
Exchange realignment PER B - (60)
At 31st December R+ZB=+—H 9,512 9,115

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when
there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. The Group does not

hold any collateral as security.

The gross trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

BEERINGZ 2B —RITERA S EIZES
WEFRMIY - FEB W ERFAETABRTRIES

iR o

FEW B 5 IB4REEL T 5 S s EHE ¢

2023 2022

—E-= TETTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#T FEx

HKD BT 216,200 185,787
usD =T 3,035 4,987
RMB AR 102 48
Thailand Baht (“THB") ik (T&REk) 11,002 5,688
Macau Pataca ("MOP”) R (MRS ) 6,332 1,374
New Taiwan dollars ("NTD") melHman) 1,517 3,310
Other currencies HthEH 16 -
238,204 201,194

As at 31st December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of trade N _EC=FERIZEI”"HF+RA=+—H>

receivables approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

== 4=
27.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 27. R B A S RRIE
The total minimum lease receivables under finance leases and their present UTAREMEBERENRARE 2 REEI
values at the reporting date are as follows: THEMREE R HIRE
2023 2022
—g—= B HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#T FEx
Non-current receivables: JERENREYERIE ©
Gross finance lease receivables FEW RN E T S IE4E 5 2,651 2,552
Unearned finance income FREEE 2 B E WA (152) (190)
2,499 2,362
Current receivables: TREFEURERIE -
Gross finance lease receivables RN R E R EIB4E%E 1,877 2,833
Unearned finance income RERE Z RRE A (151) (177)
1,726 2,656
Gross receivables from finance leases: REREHE ZEITRIEZREE .
Not later than 1 year —FR 1,877 2,833
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years —FBRMERN 1,243 965
Later than 2 years but not later than 3 years MEBR=ZFA 1,226 782
Later than 3 years but not later than 4 years =FEBREFA 182 764
Later than 4 years but not later than 5 years MEBKRAFRN = 41
Gross finance lease receivables RN E R ERIB4E%E 4,528 5,385
Unearned finance income REREN Z AR A (303) (367)
Net finance lease receivables RS ERIE S5 4,225 5018
The net finance lease receivables are RS RIS
analysed as follows: BRUTERSHR .
- Not later than 1 year -—FR 1,726 2,656
- Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years -—FBERAEFA 2,499 2,362
4,225 5018
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=+
28.0THER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 28. ELfthFE W shIE i £ R Fa
=+
PREPAYMENTS 11
2023 2022
—EZ= ZEITHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Other receivables HAh RIS 2,104 2,082
Deposits & 5,975 6,652
Prepayments TEfITFRIE 28,689 16,258
Amount due from ultimate holding company RISERABIIR 832 832
Amounts due from associates &R B 7,482 3,239
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary —FER R M EBA B = 482
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments - gross — EfMEWEIE « & KR Faf - 4858 45,082 29,545
Less: ECL allowance B TRHAE BE 1R EME (832) (832)
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments - net HAEWGRIE « S RTafTHIE
- JPEE 44,250 28,713
Representing: paNillFCn
Non-current assets EREBEE 2,350 -
Current assets TMENEE 41,900 28,713
44,250 28,713
As at 31st December 2023 and 2022, amounts due from ultimate holding AR =ER B CF+__BA=+—H">
company, associates and a fellow subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and BREERABRZ > BERRAXTE—HERER
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair values WEBABRMAARIKE REREEREIE
due to their short maturities. HRBRAME > BEZIREEREANEE
1B o
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®
28.0THER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 28. EL{th FEWrrR IR ~ 8 & B TR
PREPAYMENTS (continued) TAIE (&)
The balances (before ECL allowance) are denominated in the following Ear Gt ATEEREEEBEER) VU TS
currencies: FHE -
2023 2022
—E-= B
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
HKD BT 30,318 17,371
THB Ttk 3,900 3,692
RMB AR 2,152 3,173
NTD Mas 802 703
usD ETT 6,312 3,049
MOP RPEE 1,598 1,557
45,082 29,545
As at 31st December 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of other N _E_=FRZEZ_F+ZR=+—H"
receivables and deposits approximate their fair values. HitnEWHRIBEREE 2 RESEEEAREE
EEER
29.CONTRACT ASSETS .58 E
As at 31st December 2023 and 2022, the balance represented contract costs RIBEZ=FRIZE_"F+-A=+—H>
incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses and progress billings. EEREPTEL 2 A MR MBS &N R B
RESIEREE IR
The movement of contract assets for both years is due to the progress of the MEFENEGNEEEHERAEENEEMN
projects and various billing patterns. As at 31st December 2023, the decrease RE WERS M B _=F+_B=+—
(2022: increase) of contract assets is mainly due to decrease (2022: increase) P BRNBEEZRV(CEZF I EMEE
of ongoing contracts during the year. EEIIET_ ETZENNENRD(CEI2F D 1E
m) e
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30.TIME DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND 30. ERATERRSRITIERA R IR

Time deposits at 31st December 2023 represented bank deposits placed in N ZEC=F+ZA=+—HZEHERAR
banks in the US. The interest rate ranged from 5.0% to 5.3% (2022: Nil) per ERIRTTZIRTTER c FMEA5.0%ZE5.3%(—
annum and are denominated in USD. BT TF L EVRUETEHE ©

As at 31st December 2023, bank balances carry interest at market rates with N_E_=F+_B=+—H RITEHET

BRHESE > PHENERB039%( T2
£ :10.10%) ©

an average interest rate of 0.39% (2022: 0.10%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash are denominated in the following currencies: RITEMRIREU TGS EHE

198

2023 2022
—E-= B —
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#T FET
HKD BT 199,551 209,207
RMB AR 5,395 8,634
NTD ma 9,631 9,355
usD ETT 16,821 293,545
THB ik 11,613 8,109
MOP RPIIE 8,915 18,679
Other currencies HMEH 475 106
252,401 547,635
31.SHARE CAPITAL 31.18 7
Number
of shares Amount
abE S EE] &8
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SRmEEC.10E T ZTiER
Authorised: EEREE
At 1st January 2022, 31st December 2022, et b ) = Bl = I
1st January 2023 and 31st December 2023 g+ -B=+—H-
—E=H—HF—Bk
—E2-=54+-HA=+—H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE :
At 1st January 2022 R_E__#—F—H 833,584,192 83,358
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of share options R EEREEITERFEITZ ZER 112,300 12
At 31st December 2022, 1st January 2023 and WZg-=Z#+=-B=+—H8 -
31st December 2023 —E=5—F—HRK
—E-=%+ZH=+—H 833,696,492 83,370

All the shares in issued during the year rank pari passu with the then existing
shares of the Company in all respects.
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

&
32.TRADE PAYABLES 2T EZRIE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the reporting date, based on FEAE SRR AR AR B IRE A B 2 ARG
payment due date, is as follows: DIAT
2023 2022
—E== B
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Current BNHA 222,681 204,746
Within 30 days 30 RIUA 51,376 69,145
31-60 days 31 &60 Kk 6,132 20,663
61-90 days 61 £90 Kk 3,313 2,059
Over 90 days [ZHEEPN 19,319 16,985
302,821 313,598
The balances are denominated in the following currencies: SRR AT PG EEHE ¢
2023 2022
—E-= B —
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
HKD BT 207,060 235,957
RMB AREE 3,230 4,139
usD ETT 67,782 57,557
THB B 7S 17,257 14,075
NTD ek 3,429 1,621
Other currencies Hth & 4,063 249
302,821 313,598
At the reporting date, the carrying values of trade payables approximate their REERE > BNESZMEZREEREANE
fair values. B8 ©
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

33.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

33. Hfth B (IR IE R fE =t B

2023 2022

—®== =S

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

Other payables HAnRERIE 6,313 5,026
Accruals (Note (a)) FESt & A (I5E(a) 169,198 162,778
Amount due to ultimate holding company (Note (b)) R BRI B FIE (M 5 (b)) 1,460 1,247
Amounts due to associates (Note (b)) KEE A B FIE (MEE (D) 2,252 26
Amounts due to a fellow subsidiary (Note (b)) e SIEEN NS EREIC ) 22 -
179,245 169,077

Notes:

()

Annua

As at 31st December 2023, accruals mainly included provision of employee benefit
expenses amounted to HK$140,223,000 (2022: HK$131,298,000), which include
accrued salary, provision for bonus and provision for long service payments.

The Group's provision for long service payments was determined based on the
actuarial valuation as at 31st December 2023 prepared by a qualified actuary,
using the projected unit credit method.

In June 2022, the Hong Kong SAR Government enacted the Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022. The amendment will come into effect prospectively from a date in 2025 to
be appointed by the Hong Kong SAR Government (“Transition Date”), under which
the accrued benefits attributable to the employers’ mandatory contributions under
the Mandatory Provident Fund would no longer be eligible to offset against the
severance payment and long service payment accrued from the Transition Date.
The retirement benefit obligation arising from long service payments has been
remeasured accordingly.

The amounts due to ultimate holding company, associates and a fellow subsidiary
are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.

| Report 2023 F#R

MysE :

(@) MIZBE_=F+_RA=+—0 EtEHFEL
EEEEM X TEIRA140,223,0008 T (22—
T 1 131,298,000587T) » ERBEESEE
RENCAL B R RIARE S 2B o

FERZRERBEZBEDRESEKRBEELD
MFEstBuBR iR B2 _=F+_"A=+—H
ZIERMGERETE

RIBZZF75A8 > EBFEBTES 72022
FIEERIRINGT BRG] GRIEZHE) (BT IRGI) o
ZIETRBEEBREBNEEN S FHNE
BEBRMEEBH)ERBEXN - BZAE > &
RE TMEIRGHRAIRRNVENTBERIE
HRBE A RERENENENREREE -
It 3 R REIRB R INEF AR B R ER

= o

(b)) REBRZERAF BERAR—BBRRNEBEAT
AR RERT 0 RERERERKEE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

33.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (coniruesy 33 HfthFE(ISRIERESTER

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

(&)
EERTL AT SIS IEEHE ¢

2023 2022

—E-= TETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TF#T F#ET

HKD BT 149,605 142,180
usD ET 12,733 12,434
RMB AR 9,589 10,171
NTD = 705 2,166
THB =K 3,138 1,169
MOP P 3,475 957
179,245 169,077

At the reporting date, the carrying values of other payables and accruals
approximate their fair values.

34.RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to delivery TR I a BNAZ I B AT E 2 B (ERE @A

of goods which is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
upon the delivery of goods; and provision of service which is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the service period stipulated
in the respective customer contract. Contract liabilities arising from billings
in advance of performance recognised and from receiving deposits of orders
are reported as receipts in advance.

The increase (2022: increase) of receipts in advance as at 31st December

2023 is mainly due to increase (2022: increase) in billings in advance and
deposit received from customers during the year.

As at 1st January 2023, receipt in advance amounted to HK$246,561,000

RERA > AtEIRIERESERZREE

BHAREEES -

34. FE I U =5

R ERGIEmRER) ; RREHRBAIEZ
BR(EHNBRZER SO ANRBHME
B ARME) o B ZTANTRIE R B IEE] B

EFFEEZ GMNEEEUFARKEE R

RIBZ=F+"A=+—H > BlRR@EZ1g
I IEARAFERETR

= — —

= ——

mzE=——

Wz BANRIEREEEMN(Z

o) o

VA=PAN
=

18

RZEBEZ_=F—FB—H > BRK=mB

(2022: HK$195,898,000), of which HK$203,510,000 (2022: HK$161,415,000)
has been recognised as revenue during the year ended 31st December 2023.

246,561,000 (2224 : 195,898,000%
70) » B 8E203,510,0008 (T2 224 ¢
161,415,000 ) BERNBE_E_=F+_4
= +—HLEFERERBUA o

35.BANK BORROWINGS 35.8R1TIEE
2023 2022
—E-= —=E=-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHBT
Current RENER(R
Bank borrowings, secured BILRIRTTER 11,259 56,347

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BEVRFAEBEFRAE
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

35.BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group's bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

5. RITEE »

FEFRTEEETRNT :

2023 2022

—®_-= TEICHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ERT FET

Within one year or on demand —FUAFREKREERE 11,259 56,347

The bank borrowings are repayable by 60 equal monthly instalments
commencing from 29th March 2019 and bears interest at floating interest
rate. As at 31st December 2023, the bank borrowings bears interest at
floating interest rate and are denominated in HKD with an effective interest
rate of 6.78% (2022: 5.60%) per annum.

As at 31st December 2023, the bank borrowings are secured by:

(1) the legal charges over the Group's land and buildings with carrying
amount of approximately HK$156,000,000 (2022: HK$159,600,000)
(Note 44);

(2) the legal charges over the Group's investment properties with carrying
amount of HK$50,800,000 (2022: HK$52,000,000) (Note 44);

(3) the guarantees given by the Company and certain subsidiaries of the
Group up to a limit of HK$330,000,000 (2022: HK$330,000,000);

(4) assignment of rental and sales proceeds from the Group's land and
buildings and investment properties; and

(5) assignment of insurance of all insurance policies (other than third party
liabilities and public liabilities) over the Group's land and buildings and
investment properties.

The banking facilities of term loan is subject to the fulfilment of certain
financial and non-financial covenants relating to certain subsidiaries of the
Group, which are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group was to breach the covenants, the drawn down
facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants, is up to
the date with the scheduled repayments of the loans and does not consider
it probable that the banks will exercise its discretion to demand repayment
for so long as the Group continues to meet these requirements.

Subject to repayment on demand clauses which can be exercised at the

banks' sole discretion, the above bank borrowings are classified as current
liabilities as at 31st December 2023 and 2022.
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RITEBER-E—NF=ZA -+ HEZ+
HEREBEIHNREE TR IHFI =t
BE-RIZB_=F+"A=+—08 - B7ES
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1 5.60%) ©

N_E_=FE+"HA=+—0H FTEEUT
DB IE(EIRIR |

(1) ZEBBREEL156,000,0008T(ZF =
T4 159,600,000 7T) 2 T RIEF 2
JETE IR (B5E44) 5

(2) FEBEIRE{ES0,800,0008 T (2T - =
£ 1 52,000,00087T) 2K EWEZ LTIR
R (MF5E44) ;

() HARFEAERETHBARFHZR
= R28330,000,0008T(ZE -4 :
330,000,000 70) Z &R ;

4) HEREEIMREFRREMEZES
Rt 5 K

(5) WEREEITMREFTRREMEMAR
B2 RB(BE=REERAHEERI -

EHERZRTHEATAEMAIERETHE
RBZETHBRIFMBREEMR T PR
B MZERERRNESREBIILZEE
2Hk o MAERERZFE > FIIRINERR AR

TRLE o

FERTEREREETEFEERL 0 BREZA
—ERVEEER > BAEERATELEE
EEREZFEROBERT > RITFKRAIEET
EHEBERERIER

ERTEENBITENREREBEEROE
BF > RZE_=FK_E__F+"H=+
—H > UERITEEDEARHEE -
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T - =F+_FA=+—HIFE

36.DEFERRED INCOME TAX 36. IR ZEFR1F

The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movement during the
year are as follows:

FARGREF BN N ERAER ZIELEFSNE
B/ (BEZBoRESEHITMT

2023 2022

—F== S -

HK$'000 HK$'000

TF#T FEx

At 1st January w—B—H (168,210) (167,916)
Tax (charged)/credited to other comprehensive income B EfhZ2E W FOF) 5 AR IE (828) 124
Tax charged to profit or loss BERIIMRIRE (203) (443)
Exchange realignment FE R EE (207) 25
At 31st December W+-_B=+—H (169,448) (168,210)

The investments in the PRC, Thailand and the US incorporated operations
give rise to taxable temporary differences arising from the distribution of
profits by way of withholding tax.

As at 371st December 2023 and 2022, no deferred income tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries
established in Thailand and the US. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investment in a subsidiary in Thailand and the US
for which deferred income tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$11,277,000 (2022: HK$10,311,000) and HK$1,139,786,000
(2022: HK$1,135,927,000), respectively as at 31st December 2023.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2023, the Group had total
tax losses of approximately HK$2,451,000 (2022: HK$14,177,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred income tax asset has been
recognised in respect of tax loss of approximately HK$2,414,000 (2022:
HK$7,370,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams, of which
approximately HK$2,314,000 (2022: HK$7,270,000) will expire within 1 to 5
years and HK$100,000 (2022: HK$100,000) with unlimited expiry date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for the consideration shares
received by a US subsidiary, GDD in 2020. Such consideration shares will be
taxed until they are sold. As at 31st December 2023, the Group had deferred
tax liabilities in relations these consideration shares of approximately
HK$110,405,000 (2022: HK$110,197,000), which is calculated based on the
US federal tax rate of 21% (2022: 21%).

BRERHTE > REREEMILZ AR ELER
MEFIEER > RRZUBENRTZA D T
TRy o

A B =ERIE I F+ZA=+—8>
REEBNEFRNEZEAREBMR LB A
ZREHBFES ZBIRERIEILRFS
Ko RABEERS  ZEMBRARANARE
RAARAEDRBBBH - PR HEEKRERD
WBASKREAMNEREEZERESHE DL
#11,277,0008L(ZF 224 110,311,000
HIT) & 1,139,786,0008 T (Z 2=

1,135,927,0008 70) W EHERIELEFMERE

& o

ABREEENEEAREN DTS IESRR
RIRFERI AT TR IRE BRI A ELEFT
BREE RIZ=F+ZA=+—H> &
EEARIERFBETELNA2,451,0008T(ZE
T 114,177,000 7T) o] BEIESE R A E A o
R RAETBRI R ACE R AR » I ERR IR IB S
B2 #92,414,0008 7T (Z 2 -~ 4 : 7,370,000
BT BRRIELEFESNEE > HP42,314,000
BT (ZTEB 4 :7,270,0008T)BR—=
REREE > &4100,0008T(ZB-_F
100,000/ 70) AHERE o

IEIEFRSM B AT T — B XM B AT GDDHRE
ATEEEHEFTBEWEZ RDAET U
R mERGCABREERNBETER - NIZ
Z=FE+ZR=+—R8  XEEAREZERHG
RBZIEIERIBEMEL110,405,0008 T (=
Z £ 110,197,000 75) TH IR 18 E B B R
TYIU(ZBZZHF 1 21%) ©
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

[y sB
36. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 36. EIEFR1SIR @@
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally EEARARRESEITHNARESEN
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and ARGERITHET > BEZEEENREREB R
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority. The HEBMEWAENERE  BEMMENEED
movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of BURIEPR ISR B E T ABIREE o INER > IRIEFT
balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year are as follows: BREERBAEMNIEHE—RIBEER 2 &R
AW :
Accelerated
tax
depreciation  Revaluation Interests in LSP
and others  of properties associates Taxloss  obligations Total
MERE REBRH
RERHEM MESR  BEATER HEE i1 Hy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
At TstJanuary 2022 RZE__F—-F—H (6931) (51,937) (110,219 1,17 - (167,916)
Credited to other comprehensive income  EEM2EREHHA - 124 - - - 124
Charged to profit or loss b (392) - - (51) - (443)
Exchange realignment ERAE - - 2 3 - 25
At 31st December 2022 and RIBZZH+ZA=+-Bk
1st January 2023 “Z-=&#—fA—f (7,323) (51,813 (110,197) 1123 - (168,210)
Charged to other comprehensive income B Efi2EWE TR - (828) - - - (828)
(Charged)/Credited to profit or loss (f0kR) /st A 140 - - (1,118) 775 (203)
Exchange realignment ERHER - - (208) 1 - (207)
At 31st December 2023 BZB-=#+-B=+-H (7,183) (52,641) (110,405) 6 775 (169,448)
The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows: EIEPREMZ AT !
2023 2022
—EZ= TETTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T T
Deferred income tax assets EEFREMEE 781 1,213
Deferred income tax liabilities IFIEFTSRasi (170,229) (169,423)
(169,448) (168,210)
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37.LEASE LIABILITIES 37.f0B&E

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group's
lease liabilities:

TR FEBRBEEEZGHEI IR

2023 2022
—g8= s
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
Total minimum lease payments: REBEE AL
Due within one year —FRNEH 5,709 7,765
Due in the second to fifth years “ERFRNE 6,373 2,224
12,082 9,989
Future finance charges on lease liabilities KRBEAEZUBER (924) (255)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaRRE 11,158 9,734
2023 2022
8= TR CE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
Present value of minimum lease payments: HEaERE:
Due within one year —FERNEH 5,189 7,568
Due in the second to fifth years “ERFNEH 5,969 2,166
11,158 9,734
Less: Portion due within one year included under B BETRESeER—ER
current liabilities B HRRY IR 15 (5,189) (7,568)
Portion due after one year included under non-current  G3EfEIEREBAEENR—F%
liabilities ZHARYER 1S 5,969 2,166

During the year ended 31st December 2023, the Group entered into six
(2022: six) lease agreements for use of office premises with remaining
lease term of three months to three years (2022: one to three years). The
Group makes fixed payments during the contract periods. Two of the lease
agreements contains an option for further extending the lease period by
giving three to six-month notice before the end of the lease. The Group
considered that no extension or termination option would be exercised at
the lease commencement date.

During the year ended 371st December 2023, the Group entered into two
(2022: two) lease agreements for use of office equipment with remaining
lease term of three to five years (2022: one to two years). The Group makes
fixed payments during the contract periods. The leases do not contain any
renewal options.

During the year ended 31st December 2023, the total cash outflows for the
leases are HK$8,441,000 (2022: HK$9,008,000).

HE_ £+ _A=-+—HILEE &
BEII AP CRF A5 EHFGH=R
BEZE(CE__F . —E=F)5HERM
NEYPEZHEER - ZEEREHNHEAEE
EH - EEMpEE SR aRNlaEHRE

Bl THEA=ZZENMEABNEUFLIEHAE
%z&ﬂ AERNRAERBBEEZEB AT
ZIER o

BETE_-_F+_A=+—HLEFE &&

BEIMD(CEZ2F M) EMRGR=E
EFE(CEIZF —EMT)BRERMAE
REZHESR - 7EERSHNAREREE M
e MBS EREHER -

BHE_ T =—F+_"_B=+—HLlEE > #HE
ZHIRES T HA8,441,0008 0 (CEBE & ¢
9,008,000587T) °
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38.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company's share option scheme which was adopted on 8th August
2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) was expired and a new share option
scheme was adopted by an ordinary resolution passed at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 13th March 2017 (the “2017 Share Option
Scheme”).

Upon the expiry of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, no further option can be
offered thereunder but any options granted prior to such expiry but not yet
exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable.

(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme

Under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the Directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including Directors and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The total number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 2002
Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time. The total number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any one
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer,
upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There is no general
requirement that an option must be held for any minimum period
before it can be exercised but the Directors of the Company are
empowered to impose at its discretion any such minimum period at the
time of grant of any particular option. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Directors of the Company at
its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will not be
less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant of the options; (b) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and (c) the
nominal value of a share. The 2002 Share Option Scheme expired on 7th
August 2012.
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-l'-*
38. SHARE 0PT|0N SCH EM ES (Continued) 38.;%”&*& E'I';%IJ (4&)
(i) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) —ST-FBIRETE @
The following table discloses details of the share options held by TREBCEREERFRE_ZSZSFER
employees under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and movements in st BRREERNBE_ZE __F+_
such holdings during the years ended 31st December 2022: B=1+—BHLFEZEFE2EFFE
2022 kS
Number of options
e
Exercise At st Granted Lapsed Exercised At31st
price January during during during December
per share 2022 the year the year the year 2022
eSS eSS
Grant date petil=l BRTHE —B—H EREH ERRH ERTE +ZA=+-H
19th March 2012 “Z-"F=At+NH HK$0.704 185,700 - (187,500) - -
0.704%7c

Weighted average exercise price  IIETHERTHEE

per share HK$0.704 - HK$0.704 - -
0.704%7T 0.704E7T
The options granted on 19th March 2012 and 2nd May 2012 were N _E-_F=B+NBEKZZE—_FH
vested equally on each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the BZBERENERECSKCNELEBIENEG
grant date. — BIRFEZFAFEMTEDRES o

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BEVRFAEBEFRAE 207



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRMEE

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

38.SHARE OPT'ON SCH EMES (Continued) 38.;%”&*“%-1';%“ (4&)

(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (i) ZE—tFEkiEt
2017 Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 13th KABNRZE—EtE=ZA+=BHFH_=
March 2017 and is valid and effective for a period of ten years from 13th —tFEREE > EELEMREMEAH
March 2017. “E—tHE=-RBt+=HEFTF
The purpose of the 2017 Share Option Scheme is to enable the 7§—t¢%ﬂ§%§+§um§E’]%Tﬁﬁiﬁﬂ
Company to grant options to the eligible participants as incentives or BEAMMAEERNSEER T ERE R
rewards for their contribution to the Company and/or its subsidiaries. j@%ﬁ¥ﬁ$@7ﬁ/jﬁﬁ1ﬂ§/&j NE
The Board may, at its discretion, grant options to any eligible employee, Bl BZEGMEMEERES ~ ITHA
executive or officer including Directors of the Company or its BUafEE (BEARARENBATZ
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares of the Company. The total number BE)EEBRELGIEAQTRMD o R
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted 7ﬁ—tﬁ%ﬂﬁ%%%ﬁ%%?tﬂE’]Fﬁﬁ%
under the 2017 Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed REEITHR O ETHRMDEE » 5HA
10% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at 13th BN _E—tF=A+=H (Ttt/&?x%?ﬂ
March 2017, the date of approval of the adoption of the 2017 Share Tt FERESEZH) BBITRNLR
Option Scheme. Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, B 210% o [RERRBIREBEHAESS > E
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the 2B BHEARTEUEERSEHERN
options granted to each eligible participant (including both exercised B (BIEETER M ARITENERE)
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% BITEMETRE FTEITHRMESE >+
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue. SBIBARRABBEITRIDMEEI1% °
Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, ERHBRECSANRE AR 28KR
upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The Board may at B BB EREBAIMIBTES
its absolute discretion impose any minimum period for which an option KRB EEFo2ENBERIMNERED
must be held before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets FIIHRIEER2HEERE EEHWFEZTE
which must be achieved before the option can be exercised. The period PR HAR R, HER D FITER S
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the B2EERENZERNRRER - ﬂﬁﬁ
Directors of the Company at its absolute discretion, save that no option BREZHRKAXASEELENIEE
may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted. TE o MR- E T B AR

FH10FEBBRITHRE ©

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and shall be at least the TEEPRESSET BRI DR
higher of (a) the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock T=ERZESE | QRHINERERE
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the options; (b) EIHHT_%’*?&FEE HE|ERFAFIZWHE ;
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company on the bROREEEREREBRAMAEE
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the % BEMZPS HRERMAY 2™
date of grant of the options; and (c) the nominal value of a share of the & RORMEE -

Company.
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=
38.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 38. BB EstEl
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) ZF—tFBERETD @
The following table discloses details of the share options held by TREBECEREE(BEER)FE %
employees (including Directors) under the 2017 Share Option Scheme —tFEREAECERERNBES
and movements in such holdings during the years ended 31st December TERIECICE+ZA=+—HIEE
2023 and 2022: ZERFBZEEFE
2023 ZEZ=HF
Number of options
fRfR A
Exercise At 1st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st
price January during during during  December
per share 2023 the year the year the year 2023
RZIEZ= RZEZ=
Grant date BHAY BRTHEE —A-H FREH FREHY Fhf7E +-A=1+—H
31st March 2017 “E—t&=A=1+-H HK$0.970 16,270,925 - (1,438,800) - 14,832,125
0.9707&7T
28th April 2017 —Z—t£MAZ+N\A HK$0.909 7,260,000 - - - 7,260,000
0.9097#7T
13th December 2017 ZE-t%+ZR+=H HK$0.867 503,400 = = = 503,400
0.867#7T
24,034,325 - (1,438,800) - 22,595,525
Weighted average exercise MEESERITER HK$0.949 - HK$0.970 - HK$0.948
price per share 0.94987T - 097087 - 0.948ET

Number of options exercisable KZ-ZE-=%+-A=+-H

at 31st December 2023 A{TEnERESE 22,549,625
Weighted average R-E-=%+-A=+-H

exercise price per share AI{TIERRRRRRERY INREF LY

of options exercisable BRiTEE HK$0.948

at 31st December 2023 0.948%7T
Weighted average remaining  IIEFYRIEBALEL 3.28 years

contractual life 3.28%
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E TR
38.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 38.&%”&*& E'I';%.IJ ()
(ii) 2017 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) ZE—tFHRETS @
2022 ot -
Number of options
fEleiEsE

Exercise At st Granted Lapsed Exercised At 31st

price January during during during December

per share 2022 the year the year the year 2022

RIZZZ S

Grant date e aL BRORE —A—H FREL FREN FniTE +ZA=1+—H

31st March 2017 “E—+tF=-A=+-H HK$0.970 16,682,300 - (377,575) (33,800) 16,270,925
0970#7

28th April 2017 “2—tFMAZHNR HK$0.909 7,260,000 - - - 7,260,000
0.909%7T

13th December 2017 “2—tF+ZA+=H HK$0.867 785,550 - (203,650) (78,500) 503,400
0.867ATT

24,727,850 - (581,225) (112,300) 24,034,325

Weighted average exercise METEERTEE HK$0.949 - HK$0.934 HK$0.898 HK$0.949

price per share 094937t - 0.934%7T 089837t 094937t

Number of options exercisable ~ BRZZZZF+ZF=+—H

at 31st December 2022 AT EREE S 23,442,875
Weighted average RZE2Z_#+”R=+-H
exercise price per share ATER R MET
of options exercisable SRITHEE HK$0.951
at 31st December 2022 0951%7T
Weighted average remaining TR NEDR 4.28 years
contractual life 428%F
During the year ended 31st December 2023, there was no share options RBEE_E_=ZF+"B=+—HILHE
granted under the 2017 Share Option Scheme (2022: Nil). Er 2B St FERESEITHNE

RigEE(CZ-"F 1 @) o

During the year ended 31st December 2023, the Group recognised total RBEE_E_=ZF+"B=+—HILHE
expense of approximately HK$11,000 (2022: HK$53,000) in relation to B AERRGEBaRPESTE T —
equity-settled share-based payment transactions under the 2017 Share TEBREASTURMDAERSZ 248
Option Scheme and included in the consolidated statement of profit or FZ4911,00080(ZT2 224 1 53,0008
loss with a corresponding credited to the share-based payment reserve. TO) U FE LR AR A B 2 A AR ©
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39.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39.Zx2 BB #EUA R T

THE COMPANY

2023 2022
—EZ= TECF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FEx
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME~ BMEREE 1 15
Investments in subsidiaries PHRB AR ZRE 428,893 428,893
Deferred income tax assets IFIEFRSMEE 95 858
428,989 429,766
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAEWGERIE ~ e RTENRIE 460 246
Amounts due from subsidiaries NN 684,971 692,361
Amount due from an associate i =UN=IPNEN 34 68
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRE 2,115 862
687,580 693,537
Total assets WEE 1,116,569 1,123,303
Equity R
Share capital %N 83,370 83,370
Share premium 1D R EER 403,164 403,164
Reserves (Note) & (sE) 112,160 106,803
Total equity Mt 598,694 593,337
Current liabilities REBE
Other payables and accruals HtE T RIa R EsTE A 10,845 12,598
Amount due to ultimate holding company REREERATRIE 84 86
Amounts due to subsidiaries KB ARRIE 506,630 517,282
Current income tax liabilities BPERFRISIRAaE 316 -
517,875 529,966
Total liabilities mafg 517,875 529,966
Total equity and liabilities BEEkaE 1,116,569 1,123,303
Net current assets MENE EIPRE 169,705 163,571
Total assets less current liabilities WEERTHER 598,694 593,337

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27th March

2024. Tz -
WANG Weihang WANG Yueou
FHEM FEE
Director Director
BE BE

BEEER T NFE=A T+t A EL R

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BEVRFAEBEFRAE
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39.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39.Zx 2 B1BAFEIR R T @
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: The movement of the Company's reserves are as follows:

Mzt : RRBHEBEZEBHINT ¢

Share-
based
Special payment Retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
Liein #ERE
Rl R REEF st
(Note (i)
(B 3Z()
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FiET FHET
At 1st January 2022 A—E - —F—H—H 95,513 7,862 1,293 104,668
Profit for the year FREF - - 27,124 27,124
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of share options  {TfEREMRIER 31T 2 ZiBMR - 31 - €]
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments RSB A RS M 2 - 53 - 53
Lapse of share options transferred to retained earnings B ERERH 2 LM ERE - (180) 180 -
Final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2021  #HEZE-Z-_—F+_BF=+—H1t
FEZRBRE - - (25,011) (25011)
At 31st December 2022 and 1st January 2023 RIEZZH+"A=+—Hk
ZZ=F—F—H 95,513 7,704 3,586 106,803
Profit for the year ERiEH) = = 30,357 30,357
Recognition of equity-settled share- based payments RSB SRR S 2 M = 1 = 1
Lapse of share options transferred to retained earnings SR ERERA 2 LW ERIE - (479) 479 =
Final dividend for the year ended 31st December 2022 ~ #HEZE_Z-__#+_F=+—HIit
FEZRBKRE - - (25,011) (25,011)
At 31st December 2023 WZEZ=F+-RA=+—H 95,513 7,236 9,411 112,160
(i)  The special reserve of the Company represents the difference between the nominal () ARBZFEFREERBEFEEARAT AREH
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for the issued share capital of BABBETRAMET ZRMEERTKE
the subsidiaries and the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired in prior years. WEAREEFEEZRE - REAERE—TL/\—
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus FERNEEEER]) > B S BREBERAEE TS
shall not be distributable if there are reasonable grounds for believing that: I BIA BB HDIK
(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as () H®RABREFHANFEARERENEEE
they become due; or FHRRF T RE ; 5L
(2) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less than the (2) ARBEEZUJSREEZEMIORES
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium BRABETRAURKRM EERZ A
account. o
(i) As at 31st December 2023, in the opinion of the directors, the aggregate amount iy WIEZ=F+"B=+—H >&EFT5 7

MADRTFERBDREFEAZEBHRBENS
104,924,000/ (ZF 224 © 99,099,000
7o) °

of reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$104,924,000 (2022: HK$99,099,000).
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40.CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash generated from operations

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBHRRMEE
For the year ended 31st December 2023 #Z — L - =F+"A=+—HI-FE

40.REREER
(a) EEBIREWA

2023 2022
—E-= ZEITHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHBT
Profit before income tax BRPTSIRATA A 148,914 119,386
Adjustments for: AT
- Share of results of associates (Note 22) - FEEEBVE AT XS (MHEE22) 1,685 62,196
- Deprecdiation of property, plant and -~ BB KRR EITE (HEE19)
equipment (Note 19) 25,521 24,672
- Gain on deemed disposal of - RIEHEBE QRN LR
partial interest in an associate (Note 9) PR (FF5E9) (60,394) (64,063)
- Gain on disposal of interest in an associate - HEBE AR #m 2 W (EE9)
(Note 9) (668) -
- Loss on disposal of property, plant and - HEME  BRERREZHE
equipment 3 -
- Fair value loss on investment properties (Note 20) - 8 E¥)%¥ > A A BEKE (H5E20) 1,200 2,300
- Reversal of obsolete inventories, net (Note 12) - PREFERHEEIEE FTEE12) (3) (48)
- Interest income (Note 8) - FEYA (FIEES) (10,736) (398)
- Interest expenses (Note 11) - FMEZHEEEET) 2,563 3,545
- Equity-settled share-based payment expenses - MR AERE A IS 1 53
- ECL allowance for trade receivables (Note 26) -RWESRIE B EEHEEE
(HfizE26) 489 1,207
- Reversal of ECL allowance for trade receivables - FEIRB SIE 2 FEEA(S B 518 3
(Note 26) 20 (F5E26) (92) (396)
- Write off of inventories (Note 12) - FEEFEEE12) 79 64
Changes in working capital: HEEeED) .
- Inventories -F8 (9,434) (52,530)
- Trade receivables - RN E S RE (36,945) (22,221)
- Finance lease receivables - R ERERIE 793 (730)
- Other receivables, deposits and prepayments - HAnEWGRIE ~ S R TENIE (10,565) (7,233)
- Contract assets -AHEE 23,717 (83,521)
- Trade payables - BB S (10,731) 56,033
- Other payables and accruals - HtERIE R ES & A 10,145 13,637
- Receipts in advance - TRl 6,949 50,987
Cash generated from operations REEBZIRETUA 82,501 102,940

Automated Systems Holdings Limited BEVRFAEBEFRAE
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For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

40.CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below set out the reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities for the years ended 31st December 2023 and 2022:

0. IREREEFH @

(b) MEEBEENARIONIR

TREYEE_ZE_=FK

—=— —

=

F+

TA=THLEFEREETHELENEE

BYHIER -
Bank
borrowings
and interest Lease
payable liabilities Total
RITEER
FEFFIS HEaE et
(Note)
(FF5%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHBT FHBT
At Tst January 2022 A ZE"F—B—H 101,122 12,132 113,254
Cash flows HEne
- Repayment of bank borrowings - (EERIRTEE (45,000) - (45,000)
- Interest paid -BAFME (2,910) - (2,910)
- Principal portion of lease payments - HENRAE 5 - (6,613) (6,613)
- Interest portion of lease payments - HENHF B - (387) (387)
Non-cash changes JFIRE B
- Finance costs - A 3,158 387 3,545
- Reassessment of lease term (Note 19) -EREAREE SR
(Hi5E19) - 4,935 4,935
- Exchange difference -ERER - (720) (720)
At 31st December 2022 and RZE2-_F#+"FB=+—H
1st January 2023 r_E_=F—HF—H 56,380 9,734 66,114
Cash flows RWERE
- Repayment of bank borrowings - BERITEE (45,000) - (45,000)
- Interest paid -BAFE (2,320) = (2,320)
- Principal portion of lease payments - HEMREZEHD - (7,355) (7,355)
- Interest portion of lease payments - AEARF S5 - (356) (356)
Non-cash changes IR E)
- Finance costs - BB 2,207 356 2,563
- Additions, reassessment of lease term -AE BhERAREES
and lease modification (Note 19) THERKREEEN
(FF5E19) - 8,884 8,884
- Exchange difference -ERER - (105) (105)
At 31st December 2023 R-EZ=F+"RA=+—H 11,267 11,158 22,425
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= 3N
40.CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 0IREFEEH @
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) MEEFHEENERNEHER®
activities (Continued)
Note: ST -
The following table shows the breakdown of the bank borrowings and interest TREVNN _B_=FR_ZB__F+B=+
payable as at 31st December 2023 and 2022: —HIRTEERENFE 24 :
2023 2022
—ES-=f BCCH
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Bank borrowings (Note 35) RITEE (MI5E35) 11,259 56,347
Interest payable (included in other payables FEATFIE (BIETE H MR RIE R
and accruals) FESTEAR) 8 33
11,267 56,380
1=
41,LEASE COMMITMENTS 4. FHE R
As lessee EAETAA
At the reporting date, the lease commitments for short-term leases are as REREHARE > REEE 2 HERENT ¢
follows:
2023 2022
—R== TECF
Office premises Office premises
MAEYE WA=
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FET
Not later than one year —FR 486 649
486 649
As at 31st December 2023, the Group had not committed to any lease in AT =FE+"RA=+—H AEBRMERK
which the lease had not yet commenced (2022: not committed to any lease EAMBERRAMAENEETN(CZEIZ
in which the lease had not yet commenced). R AR AEERARFBMAEETL)
As at 31st December 2023, leases for office premises are negotiated for an AZEZ=F+ZA=+—8 WAEYE
average term of one year (2022: one year) and the rentals are fixed over the ZHRAFER—FEE—R(CEBEZ2F . —
terms of the leases. F) » HERANRBETE ©
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1=
41.LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued) NFBAEKIE @
As lessor EmHBA
At 31st December 2023, the Group had contracted with tenants and an RIBEZ=F+"RA=+—H > "EESHM
associate in respect of office premises under operating leases as follows: NREMEZ SEBHNEBE R K—RBEEEABE]
A
2023 2022
—®_= TR CE
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Not later than one year —FR 574 1,378
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years —FBRAEFRN = 163
574 1,541
Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of three years MAEMEZBNTFHR=FEFH —R(ZZZ
(2022: three years) and the rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases. T =8F) ARENIARAETE °
42.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 2. B KR
2023 2022
ZE=H 2T H
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
Contracted but not provided for: BEETAEREE !
Capital expenditure in respect of property, ME - MERZEZERES
plant and equipment 369 1,407
=
43.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43. AR RR
As at 31st December 2023, performance bonds of approximately RIEBEZ=F+ZB=+—H RITKERAE
HK$126,819,000 (2022: HK$112,156,000) have been issued by the bank on EERTEREAGNERBHARENS
behalf of the Group to customers as security of contracts. 126,819,000/ 70(Z "4 1 112,156,000
7o) °
44.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 44. 5 EiR R
As at 31st December 2023, land and buildings with carrying amount RIZBZ=F+ZRA=+—H > "EEZ 1M
of HK$156,000,000 (2022: HK$159,600,000) (Note 19) and investment MiEF 2 REEE4156,000,0008T(ZE =
properties with carrying amount of HK$50,800,000 (2022: HK$52,000,000) Z4F 1 159,600,000 7T) (FizE19) RIGEM ==
(Note 20) were pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings. ZERE£38450,800,000 BT (ZT 24 :

52,000,000 7T) (MI5E20) E AIEAEE 2 R1T
BEZ AT -
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45.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS S.FEANLRZSB
As at 31st December 2023, Hong Kong Teamsun owns 67.66% (2022: 67.66%) RACE_=ZF+_B=+—HFBEBX
of the Company’s issued shares. The remaining 32.34% (2022: 32.34%) of the MEEERABRNDZ67.66%(ZF
Company's issued shares are widely held. The ultimate holding company of 67.66%) > BR N32.34%(ZF " "4 1 32.34%)
the Company is Teamsun. BHBEEMALRFER - XRABRKERAR
AEERFREAL, o
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) BRAEALZRS
2023 2022
—E== B
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Nature of transaction ZH4E
Fellow subsidiaries: RRMEBAT :
Service income charged by the Group REBEBUZ RFBUA = 15
Service fee charged to the Group rERSZNNRBER 962 383
The associates: BEAR :
Sales by the Group KrERHEE 4,427 4,883
Purchases by the Group rEEEE 8,281 5,986
Staff costs charged by the Group rEEBBZETHX 66 66
Rental income charged by the Group AERBBZEASHA 398 398
Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted at normal BEmkRBEERMBEER RER—ME
commercial terms that are consistently applied to all customers and Bz EEEERRETRS °
vendors.
Rental income was transacted with reference to the rental rates HEWATTZ2EMBERMNEEKFE
prevailing in the market. E °
(b) The Group's balances with related parties are set out in Notes 28 and (b) &= EaRE A+~ B SRE NI 28
33. K233 °
(€) Key management personnel remuneration are disclosed in Notes 14 and () =ZBEAEMEIMIEE145K15RHE ©
15.
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46.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2023

218

and 2022 are as follows:

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment

Name of subsidiary and operation

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital

46. T EMBAB 218

RIBET=FK"T-"F+"HA=+—HQH"
FRB 2 EEMBRABFHEULT :

Percentage of issued share
capital held by the Company

Principal activities

i3 AT A BETR AT
WEBARBE REEEZERhE  BRRSHMES BRTRTESLL TEEH
2023 2022
== ZFZC
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
HK$2 products and solutions and provision
of hardware services (including
installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)
BRRR(EBERAT &% 2dREER KB HEBKERKRBALRR
287 R RS (AR ZERFERE) K
B IR (BB RE
BRI REERY)
ELM Computer Technologies Limited Hong Kong 12,000,000 100% 100% Sale of computer products and
ordinary shares solutions and provision of hardware
HK$12,000,000 services (including installation
and maintenance services) and
software services (including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
AMERRERAT &% 12,000,0008% HEBMERRBADRRIEM
BiEk B IR (B R ZERRERS) R
12,000,000 7T RS (EERERE  BRER
FERB)
ASL Softwing Investment Holdings Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Investment holding
Limited HK$10
B EZERERAR &% 108 iRk REZER
1087
(CSA Automated (Macau) Limited Macau MOP10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
products and solutions and provision
of hardware services (including
installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)
BYRR(EF)BRAT Ed HP9#10,0007T RERR  HEBREMKRBRAR
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46.TEMBATIZEEE @

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2023

and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully

KRB =FR_B-__&+-A=+—0"
FRATZEBMBATFHBEOT @ (&)

establishmentand  paid share capital/  Percentage of issued share
Name of subsidiary operation  registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
i AT A BEITR AT
WEARRE RBEZER bR BRRSHBRES ERTRFEAL IBEH
2023 2022
=§== _B_C
ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited Thailand 1,110,000 100% 100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
ordinary shares products and solutions and provision
THB50,000,000 of hardware services (including
installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)
ZE  1,110,0008Z @M REZER  HEBHERRBAAR
%$50,000,0007T RAR R RS (R RE R RERT)
R f BRas (BRI
BEREREXRY)
Guangzhou Automated Systems PRC Registered capital 100% 100% Sale of computer products and
Limited (Note 1) HK$110,000,000 solutions and provision of hardware
(Note 1) services (including installation
and maintenance services) and
software services (including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
EMNREEEERRKERAT H SERER HEBRERRBRAAER
(Hz£1) 110,000,000 7T RUEBHRE (ORZERFERSE) K
(Note 1) B R (BER R - BRIR
BERH)
ASL Security Solutions Limited Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding

HERS

HK$0.1
TREER
0.1%7T

REER
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46.PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

46.TEBMBATIZEEE @

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2023
and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully

RIE-_=FR-_FT-_—_#+-HB=+—0H"
ERBZEBWEBARFENT : (8

establishmentand  paid share capital/  Percentage of issued share
Name of subsidiary operation  registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
MBS FEI BETR VNS
WBARHE REEEZERhE  HRRSHRES BRTRTESL FEEH
2023 2022
=== _B_C
ASL Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%*  Investment holding, sale of computer
UsD1 products and solutions and provision
of hardware services (including
installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)
HBREUESH TREER REZR  HEERERRBRAR
1% RipHEHRS (QETERFERE)
R f BR (BRI R
BEEREXRY)
ELM Technologies Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding
usD1
HBREUES TREER REER
1E7T
Express Success Limited British Virgin Islands* 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
usD2
EERURE’ dREER ESSE]
2ET
Express Returns Limited British Virgin Islands* 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
usD2
EERURE’ dREER ESSE]
2ET
Express Profits Development Limited ~ British Virgin Islands* 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Property holding
usD2
EERURE’ dREER ESSE]
2ET
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46.TEMBATIZEEE @

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31st December 2023
and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully

RIB_=FR-FB__H+_F=t+—8"
KRB TBHBABFENT | (@)

establishmentand  paid share capital/  Percentage of issued share
Name of subsidiary operation  registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
SRS FEI BEITR VNS T
WEBAR R REEEZER e HRRSHRES BRTRTESL FEEH
2023 2022
=§== _B_C

Automated Systems Fortune British Virgin Islands* 1 ordinary share 100%* 100%* Investment holding, international
Investment Holdings Limited usD1 trading, fund investment
and treasury management
EERUEE TREER kEizk BERE5 BERER
(E Ekaspd
GDB International Investment Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares 100%* 100%* Investment holding

USD54,650,001
HBREUES 2dREER REER

54,650,0013 7T
GDD International Holding Company US 100 common stocks 100% 100% Investment holding

USD54,650,100
ESEl 100M: B 1R LA

54,650,100 7C

Notes: 5T

1. Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the PRC as a wholly
foreign-owned enterprise. The paid up capital up to 31st December 2023 was
HK$95,000,000 (2022: HK$95,000,000).

# These companies operate in Hong Kong.

*  Subsidiaries held directly by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

reporting period.
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Particulars of Investment Properties

REYEFS

For the year ended 31st December 2023 H#E T _=F+_A=+—HILFE

Particulars of the Group's investment properties at 31st December 2023 areas W Z_=Z&+_A=+—0 > AEBZREYE

follows:

Location

Uk

BB :

Gross floor area (sq.ft) Use
EBEER(FEAR) A&

Units 1to 7 and 15to 21 on 12th Floor
Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

E

Bk

JhH

ZIOET 1158

| 8E 5

12 VBT R I15E 2158 8B 1L

Car parking space No. P4 on Ground Floor
Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street
Shatin

New Territories
Hong Kong

BN

Gika

pl==

L1157
E|EE%S
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11,761 sq.ft Commercial
11,761 5 R [EES

125 sq.ft Commercial
125 FAHR [EES



HONG KONG

Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2601 6998

Fax: +852 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Limited
16/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2541 9900

Fax: +852 2541 1338

i-Sprint Innovations (HK) Limited
Room 6-7, 10/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2608 6226

Fax: +852 2645 8069

Automated Center of Excellence (ACOE)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2601 6998

Fax: +852 2601 6936

Security Operation Center Plus (SOC+)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2601 6998

Fax: +852 2601 6936

Service Center

15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2601 6998

Fax: +852 2601 6936

Service Center

Unit 2303, 23/F,

148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2601 6998
Fax: +852 2601 6936

Unified Operation Center (UOC)
15/F, Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2601 6998

Fax: +852 2601 6936

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
- Information of Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers
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ZIOE1158

E|EES 1512

EE5E 1 +852 2601 6998
fEH  +852 2601 6936

MBI A RS
BBV H
ZOH1158

E)ERES 612

3% | +852 2541 9900
S5 © +852 25411338

ZAFEBRRBRAR
BB H

201158
#E|BFEIS10126-7E

5% | +852 2608 6226
BH | +852 2645 8069

BEH R F =0 (ACOE)
HBMFVE

Z 1158

E|EES 1512

EE5E 1 +852 2601 6998
fEH  +852 2601 6936

EHZ2EEH(SOCH)
BRI HE
201158
#=|EEIE 1 518

BEE  +852 2601 6998
82 +852 2601 6936

ARES
BB H
201158
EIRES1512

5% | +852 2601 6998
85 © +852 2601 6936

BRFH L

HBILA

BRE1485
23182303%

EE5E 1 +852 2601 6998
fEH  +852 2601 6936
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BEE 1 +852 2601 6998
fEHE 1 +852 2601 6936
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited

- Information of Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers
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MAINLAND CHINA

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited

Room 1701-1709, HNA Building,

No 8 Lin He Zhong Road,

Tian He District, Guangzhou, Guangdong, China
(Postal Code: 510610)

Tel: +86 020 2203 8111

Fax: +86 020 2203 8000

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
Room 1701-1709, HNA Building

No 8 Lin He Zhong Road,

Tian He District, Guangzhou, Guangdong, China
(Postal Code: 510610)

Tel: +86 020 2203 8111

Fax: +86 020 2203 8000

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
Room 809, 810, 811,
Lingnan Tiandi Commercial Plaza,

No. 29, Zumiao Road, Chancheng District, Foshan, China

(Postal Code: 528000)
Tel: +86 757 8203 1609

Offshore Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC)
Room 1412A,1412B,1412C, F2 Building,

Lugu Enterprise Plaza, No. 27 Wenxuan Road,
Yuelu District, Changsha, China

(Postal Code: 410000)

Tel: +86 731 8289 5651

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd

Room 9, Floor 9, Shougang, International Tower,
No. 60 Xizhimen North Street,

Haidian District, Beijing, China

(Postal Code: 100082)

Tel: +86 108 273 6009

Fax: +86 108 273 6009 ext 623

Beijing i-Sprint Technology Ltd, Zhuhai Branch
4/F, Block B2, Southern Software Park,

No.1 Software Road Zhuhai,

Guangdong, China

(Postal Code: 519080)

Tel: +86 075 6632 2666

Fax: +86 075 6632 2660

Annual Report 2023 £k
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MACAU

CSA Automated (Macau) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D'’Assumpcao, No. 180
Edificio Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo
14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: +853 2878 6392

Fax: +853 2878 6390

Security Operation Center SOC?
Rua de Lagos, Telecentro, 4/F
Taipa, Macau

Tel: +853 8891 5000

Fax: +853 8891 3031

TAIWAN

Taiwan Automated Systems Limited
9F., No.19, Ruihust., NeihuDist.,
Taipei City 114067, Taiwan (R.O.C.)
Tel: +886 2 2659 8598

Fax: +886 2 2659-8569

THAILAND

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building
Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: +662 185 3206

Fax: +662 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: +662 185 3206

Fax: +662 185 3207

]
BBRMORFDBIRRE
TRPIR E 4 EI5 18098
REREEFD
14180-R%E

EE5E 1 +853 2878 6392
fEE | +853 2878 6390

BN 2B EPOSOC
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E5E 1 +853 8891 5000
fEE © +853 8891 3031
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EE5E 1 +886 02 2659 8598

fEH : +886 2 2659-8569
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ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building
Unit 0901, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

EE 1 +662 1853206

fEH : +662 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th Floor

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13)
Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

EE 1 +662 1853206

fEH : +662 185 3207
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- Information of Major Subsidiaries, Associates and Relevant Centers
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i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
Tel: +662 185 3206

Fax: +662 185 3207

SINGAPORE

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Chai Chee Road

#08-01 ESR BizPark @ Chai Chee (Lobby 1)
Singapore 469004

Tel: +65 6244 3900

Fax: +65 6244 8900

MALAYSIA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
Lot 4-401 & 402, Level 4,

Suite 25, The Starling Mall,

No 6 Jalan SS 21/37
Damansara Utama 47400
Petaling Jaya Selangor, Malaysia
Tel: +60 127 922 088

ARMENIA
Engineering Center

6 Bryusov street, Yerevan, 0023
Armenia

INDIA
Engineering Center

HITEC City, Hyderabad, Telangana 500081
India

JAMAICA

2752+84W, Mona Rd, Kingston,
Jamaica

MEXICO

Engineering Center

Av. Américas 1545, Piso 7 Colonia Providencia,

Guadalajara Jal, 44630
Mexico
Tel: +52 333 615 4413

Annual Report 2023 £k

i-Sprint Innovations (Thailand) Co., Ltd
Level 32, Interchange 21

399 Sukumvit Road, North-Klongtoey
Wattana, Bangkok, 10110, Thailand
Tel: +662 185 3206

Fax: +662 185 3207

N

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

Blk 750D Chai Chee Road

#08-01 ESR BizPark @ Chai Chee (Lobby 1)
Singapore 469004

Tel: +65 6244 3900

Fax: +65 6244 8900

R

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
Lot 4-401 & 402, Level 4,

Suite 25, The Starling Mall,

No 6 Jalan SS 21/37
Damansara Utama 47400
Petaling Jaya Selangor, Malaysia
55 - +60 379 325688
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6 Bryusov street, Yerevan, 0023
Armenia
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TP
HITEC City, Hyderabad, Telangana 500081

India

JAMAICA

2752+84W, Mona Rd, Kingston,
Jamaica
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Av. Américas 1545, Piso 7 Colonia Providencia,

Guadalajara Jal, 44630
Mexico
EEE 1 +52 3336154413
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MOLDOVA

Engineering Center

38, Serghei Lazo str. business center "AVENUE” MD-2004,

Chisinau, Moldova
Tel: +37 322 856 985

NETHERLANDS
Office

Zaandijkerweg 8, 1521 AX Wormerveer
Amsterdam, Netherlands

POLAND
Engineering Center

Grzybowska 78, 12th floor,
00-844 Warsaw, Poland
Tel: +48 733 732 767
Engineering Center

Aleja 3 Maja 9, 3rd floor
Krakdw, 30-062, Poland
Tel: +48 733 732 767
Engineering Center

Jaworska Street 13, CU Office A building,
6th floor, 53-612 Wroctaw, Poland

Tel: +48 734 732 767

Engineering Center

Olivia Star, 19th floor Aleja Grunwaldzka 472C,
80-309 Gda sk, Poland
Tel: +48 884 777 288

ROMANIA
Office

Mindspace Business District + Globalworth Campus A,
Bulevardul Dimitrie Pompeiu 4-6, Bucuresti 020335
Romania

SERBIA
Engineering Center

18 Bulevar Kralja Aleksandra, 11000 Belgrade
Serbia

E@mZREME
Ty

38, Serghei Lazo str. business center TAVENUEJ MD-2004,
Chisinau, Moldova
54« +37 322 856 985

o
LY/ NES

Zaandijkerweg 8, 1521 AX Wormerveer
Amsterdam, Netherlands

g
TiEdil

Grzybowska 78, 12th floor,
00-844 Warsaw, Poland
E5E L +48 733732 767

TiEFD

Aleja 3 Maja 9, 3rd floor
Krakdw, 30-062, Poland
B 1 +48 733732767

TR

Jaworska Street 13, CU Office A building,
6th floor, 53-612 Wroctaw, Poland
BEh 1 +48 734732 767

TiERD

Olivia Star, 19th floor Aleja Grunwaldzka 472C,
80-309 Gda sk, Poland
EEEE 1 +48 884777 288
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Mindspace Business District * Globalworth Campus A,
Bulevardul Dimitrie Pompeiu 4-6, Bucuresti 020335
Romania

EWMEE
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18 Bulevar Kralja Aleksandra, 11000 Belgrade
Serbia
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SWITZERLAND
Office

Oberallmendstrasse 18, 6300 Zug
Switzerland

UKRAINE

Limited Liability Company “GD Ukraine”

Engineering Center

Business Center ArtGarmat,

1, 4 floors, 4 Garmatna str, Kyiv, Ukraine
Engineering Center

5A Pidmurna str, 6-9 floors, Lviv, 79000,
Ukraine
Tel: +38 032 242 0475, +38 032 242 0474

Engineering Center

Kharkiv, 46 Nauky avenue, 61000
Ukraine
Tel: +38 050 911 8862

Engineering Center

Sviatoslava Khorobroho, 12,
Dnipro, 49001, Ukraine
Tel: +38 056 785 6829

UNITED KINGDOM
Office

10 Midford Place London, W1T 5AG,
London, United Kingdom
Tel: +44 020 740 480 40

UNITED STATES

Grid Dynamics Holding Inc.
Corporate Headquarters

5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 520
San Ramon, CA 94583, United States
Tel: +1 650 523 5000

Engineering Center

5601 Granite Parkway, Ste 720,
Plano,TX 75024,United States

Annual Report 2023 £k
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Oberallmendstrasse 18, 6300 Zug
Switzerland

Limited Liability Company FGD Ukraine,

T2

Business Center ArtGarmat,
1, 4 floors, 4 Garmatna str, Kyiv, Ukraine

Tl

5A Pidmurna str, 6-9 floors, Lviv, 79000,
Ukraine
FBEE | +38 032 242 0475, +38 032 242 0474

T

Kharkiv, 46 Nauky avenue, 61000
Ukraine
Tel: +38 050 911 8862

TEHD

Sviatoslava Khorobroho, 12,
Dnipro, 49001, Ukraine
BEE 1 +38 056 785 6829
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MAE

10 Midford Place London, W1T 5AG,

London, United Kingdom
BEEE 1 +44 020 740 480 40
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Grid Dynamics Holding Inc.

NENRE

5000 Executive Parkway, Suite 520
San Ramon, CA 94583, United States
BE5E 1 +1 650 523 5000

T

5601 Granite Parkway, Ste 720,
Plano,TX 75024,United States
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Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BEBRGEEBRERLA"

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2601 6998 Fax: +852 2601 6936

Website: www.asl.com.hk
EAFFRLBZOEREIEES 1518

5L - +852 2601 6998 {EE : +852 2601 6936
8k - www.asl.com.hk
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